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ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
GENERAL

The Company is a leading remanufacturer of replacemlternators and starters for imported and domears and light trucks in the United
States and Canada. The Company's full line ofradters and starters are remanufactured for vehitlpsrted from Japan, Germany, Swe(
England, France, Italy and Korea and, as receptiyncenced, for domestic vehicles. The imported Vesifor which the Company
remanufactures alternators and starters also iaalatlicles produced by General Motors, Chryslerfeord that are originally equipped with
components produced by foreign manufacturers, aladsplants,” which are manufactured in the Un@i&ates by Toyota, Nissan, Honda,
Mazda and other foreign manufacturers. The Compdstyassembles and distributes ignition wire saténfiported and domestic cars and
light trucks.

The Company's products are sold throughout theedrtates to many of the nation's largest chaimstail automotive stores, including
AutoZone, CSK Auto, The Pep Boys, O'Reilly Autormetand Trak Automotive, and throughout Canadaab ¢buntry's largest chain of
retail automotive stores, Canadian Tire. The Com@dso supplies remanufactured alternators antessaior imported vehicles to Delphi, a
division of General Motors. During the last sevemrs, the Company's marketing and sales of adymts for imported vehicles principally
has been to retail automotive chains, which the g believes has been the fastest growing segohéimé automotive aftermarket indus!
During fiscal 1998, approximately 87% of the Comyarsales were to retail automotive chains comgrigeapproximately 5,000 stores, with
the balance of sales primarily to large warehousteiloutors.

THE AUTOMOTIVE AFTERMARKET INDUSTRY

The Company's historical market, the import automeocaftermarket for alternators and starters, xpegenced significant growth in recent
years. The Company believes that this growth hadtesl from, among other trends, (i) the prolifenatof imported cars and light trucks

use, (ii) the increase in the number of miles drieach year and (iii) the growth in the numbemmported vehicles at the prime repair age of
four years and older. In addition, the Company médgesntered the significantly larger domestic atdive aftermarket for alternators and
starters, which the Company believes representstautial growth opportunities.

Two distinct groups of end-users buy replacemeturaative parts:

() individual "do-it-yourself* consumers; and (pyofessional "do-it-for-me" installers. The indivial consumer market is typically supplied
through retailers and through retail arms of watsteodistributors. Automotive repair shops generailischase parts through local
independent parts wholesalers, through nationadiarse distributors and, at a growing rate, thraugbmotive parts retailers.
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The increasing complexity of cars and light truaksl the number of different makes and models dehvehicles have resulted in a
significant increase in the number of differenealtors and starters required to service imparteddomestic cars and light trucks. The
technology used in starters and alternators hasnbeenore advanced in response to the installatimehicles of an increasing number of
electrical components such as cellular telephaglestrically powered windows, air conditioning eguient, and radio and stereo systems.
Consequently, per unit sale prices have increaseslich alternators and starters.

Remanufacturing, which involves the reuse of patikch might otherwise be discarded, creates a gugfparts at significantly lower cost to
the user than newly manufactured parts, and malkaable automotive parts which are no longer bemanufactured. By making readily
available parts for automotive general use, rensiufing benefits automotive repair shops by raligthem of the need to rebuild worn
parts on an individual basis and conserves matshalh would otherwise be used to manufacture replacement parts. Most importantly,
however, the Company's remanufactured parts adeasalignificantly lower prices than competitivexneeplacement parts.

COMPANY PRODUCTS

The Company's primary products are remanufactieplcement alternators and starters for both iredaahd domestic cars and light trucks.
The Company also assembles and distributes ignitiomsets for the automotive aftermarket for usa wide variety of makes and models of
foreign automobiles. Alternators, starters andtigniwire sets are essential components in all makel models of automobiles. These
products constitute non-elective replacement pasts;h are required for a vehicle to operate. Mifgshe Company's products are sold for
resale under customer private labels, with the neimg products being sold under the Company's bremmde, which includes the use of its
registered trademark, "MPA." Customers that s@l@ompany's products under private label includ®Zone, CSK Auto, The Pep Boys,
Delphi, Canadian Tire and APS Holdings.

The Company's alternators and starters are prodoaaeet or exceed automobile manufacturer spatifics depending upon the make and
model of the automobile. The Company remanufactate®ad assortment of starters and alternatayedier to accommodate the numerous
and increasing varieties of these products cugrémtlise. The Company currently provides a fulélof approximately 1,100 different
alternators and 800 different starters. The Comsamport alternators and starters are providediftually all Japanese manufacturers,
including Toyota, Honda, Nissan, Mazda and Mitshbifor certain European manufacturers, includingréédes Benz, BMW, Volvo and
Volkswagen, for vehicles manufactured by Chryskeneral Motors and Ford that are equipped with aorapts produced by foreign
manufacturers, and for manufacturers of transplants
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CUSTOMERS

The Company's products are marketed throughouttiited States and Canada. The Company's customessstof many of the largest
chains of retail automotive stores and automotiaealvouse distributors in the United States. The [y also sells its products to Canada's
largest chain of retail automotive stores, Canadia® The Company services automotive retail clsaime accounts servicing approximately
5,000 retail outlets and warehouse distributor ant®servicing approximately 6,000 jobbers. Eativgy in turn sells to various automotive
repair facilities, such as garages, dealers andcsestations, as well as to individual motorists.

Many of the largest chains of retail automotiveasan the United States obtain their importedatgrnators and starters from the Company.
Consequently, a significant percentage of the Catyipasales has been concentrated among a relasivelif number of customers. The
Company's three largest customers accounted fooxzippately 43%, 17% and 15%, respectively, of rad¢s during fiscal 1998. The
Company's three largest customers accounted fopxzippately 29%, 18% and 18%, respectively, of rads during fiscal 1997. The
Company's four largest customers accounted foroxprpately 21%, 20%, 18% and 11%, respectivelyhef€ompany's net sales during
fiscal 1996. There can be no assurance that thiserration of sales among customers will not caiin the future. The loss of a signific
customer or a substantial decrease in sales tossaahtomer would have a material adverse effeth@Company's sales and operating
results. The Company's arrangements with mossafustomers are based principally on the receiptiofhase orders and any long-term
written contracts generally may be terminated Ist@mers upon short notice. In addition, customeag demand price concessions from the
Company that could adversely affect profit margins.

OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
CORES

In its remanufacturing operations, the Companyiabtased alternators and starters, commonly kn@awvie@es," which are sorted by make
and model and stored until needed. When needeerimsinufacturing, the cores are completely disaskezhilto component parts.
Components which can be incorporated into the refaatured product are thoroughly cleaned, testedrefinished. All components known
to be subject to major wear, and those componetésrdined not to be reusable or repairable, alace@d by new components. The unit is
then reassembled on an assembly line into a fidipheduct. Inspection and testing are conducteg@us stages of the remanufacturing
process, and each finished product is inspectedesteld on equipment designed to simulate perfocmander operating conditions.
Components of cores which are not used by the Coynipaits remanufacturing process are sold as scrap

The majority of the cores remanufactured by the @amy are obtained from customers as trade-ins,hndmie credited against future
purchases. The Company's customers encourage cersstorexchange their used units at the time aftage through the use of credits. 1
lesser
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extent, the Company also purchases cores in the mpeket from core brokers, who are dealers speitiglin buying and selling cores.
Although the Company believes that the open mat&es not and will continue not to represent a prynsaurce of cores, this market offers a
reliable source for maintaining stock balance. ©thaterials and components used in remanufactari@eglso purchased in the open market.
The ability to obtain cores of the types and queestirequired by the Company is essential to thegzmy's ability to meet demand and
expand production.

The price of a finished product generally is corsgdi of a separately invoiced amount for the cazkidted in the product ("core value") and
an amount for remanufacturing. Upon receipt of e @s a trad@, credit generally is given to the customer foe amount originally invoice
with respect to that core. The Company limits tradeto cores for units included in its sales @ajaland in condition able to be
remanufactured. Credit for cores is allowed onlgiagt purchases by a customer of similar remanuifadtproducts within a specified time
period. A customer's total allowable credit foretmrade-ins is further limited by the dollar voluwifethe customer's purchases of similar
products within such time period. Core values fhlat¢ on the basis of several economic factorsydet) market availability and demand and
core prices then being paid by other remanufactuared core brokers.

Beginning with fiscal 1997, the Company implemengetew accounting presentation with respect tepsrting of sales. In the past, the
Company deducted the value of all cores returnaah fts customers in order to reach net sales. Uttdenew presentation, revenues are
reported on a gross basis, that is core returms énastomers are not deducted in order to reachaies$, but rather are included in cost of
goods sold. Net sales and cost of goods sold for pears have been reclassified to reflect this peesentation. The Company believes that
this new presentation provides a truer depictioaatfial sales and cost of goods sold. In addittorflects a more proper relationship
between sales and inventory.

PRODUCTION PROCESS

The initial step in the Company's remanufacturingcpss begins with the receipt in boxed quantidfesores from various sources, including
trade-ins from customers and purchases in the o@gket. The cores are assessed and evaluated/émtany control purposes and then
sorted by part number. Each core is then complelisgssembled into all of its fundamental composieRthie components are cleaned in a
process that employs customized equipment andiolpamaterials. The cleaning process is accomplishedcordance with the required
specifications of the particular units.

After the cleaning process is complete, the comptenare then inspected and tested as prescribtdteyompany's rigorous quality control
program. This program, which is implemented thramghhe operational process, is known as statlgticeeess control. Upon passage of all
tests, the components are placed on an automati@gor for assembly into the required units. Theeatbly process is monitored by
designated quality control personnel. Each fullseasbled unit is then subjected to additional tgstinensure performance and quality.
Finished products are then
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either stored in the Company's warehouse facilitpackaged for immediate delivery. To maximizeaiincy, the Company stores in its
warehousing facilities component parts ready feeasbly. The Company's management information systemoluding hardware and
software, facilitate the remanufacturing processificores to finished products. This process tagpsoximately four days.

The Company generally assembles ignition wires feomponents manufactured by third parties. Thenalslseprocess involves the cutting
predetermined lengths of wire, which have been rfzatured to the Company's specifications, and tteehing of terminals to the ends of
such wires. The final product ultimately is teséell packaged under the Company's name or custqgunigege labels.

The Company conducts business through two whollyemlvforeign subsidiaries, MVR Products Pte Limit&dVR"), which operates a
shipping warehouse and testing facility and manstaiffice space and remanufacturing capabilityimg&pore, and Unijoh Sdn, Bhd
("Unijoh"), which conducts in Malaysia remanufadtgr operations similar to those conducted by then@any at its remanufacturing facility
in Torrance. These foreign operations are condustddquality control standards and other interm@ttrols similar to those currently
implemented at the Company's remanufacturing feslin Torrance. The facilities of MVR and Unijare located approximately one hour
drive apart. The Company believes that the operstid its foreign subsidiaries are important beeaafghe lower labor costs experienced by
these subsidiaries in the same remanufacturingepsoc

In April 1997, the Company acquired all of the ¢asling capital stock of MVR and Unijoh from itsassBholders, Mel Marks, Richard Mal
and Vincent Quek (each of whom owned one-thirdaafheacquired entity), for an aggregate purchase poi all such selling shareholders for
both acquired entities of 145,455 shares of Com8took. The shares of Common Stock constitutingptirehase price have not been
registered for sale pursuant to the SecuritiesofA@933 and are subject to a lock-up arrangememtdsn the Company and each such selling
shareholder releasing for public resale one-foaftbuch shares on each of the first four annivegsaf the acquisitions. The purchase price
and other terms of the acquisitions were determinethe Special Committee of the Board of Directafrthe Company following

negotiations with the selling shareholders. In @mtion with, and as a condition to, the acquisidhe Special Committee received a fairt
opinion from Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin, a spalty investment banking firm.

PRODUCT TRADE-INS

The Company has a trade-in policy that it beliegagpical for the remanufactured automotive reptaent parts industry. A manufacturer
typically provides a product warranty that is hatwhether or not the purchaser continues to dmésss with the manufacturer. As the
Company believes is the practice in its industoxwéver, the Company accepts product trade-insibttye purchaser makes future purchases
from the Company within a specified time periodbdRrct trade-ins to the Company result only in deedgainst future purchases. If a
customer ceases
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doing business with the Company, the Company rdzegmo further obligations to that customer wéhpect to product trade-ins and no
additional product returns would be accepted byGbmpany. The customer would return any returnpiadducts to a new remanufacturer
maintaining the same policy, which remanufactureuld accept the product trade-ins and grant apaipcredits regardless of whether the
units were originally purchased from that new reuofaaturer.

As a result of the product trade-in policy in then@pany's industry, the Company accounts for protfade-ins on a current basis. No reserve
is made for future product trade-ins since theri®n-going obligation to accept such trade-inth@absence of continuing sales to the
returning customer. The Company believes thaeitsrn rate has been consistent with the returis ggeerally experienced in its industry. In
addition, the obligation to accept trade-ins isyamicognized as a credit against future salesdridhm of a reduction in the purchase price for
those sales.

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

The Company markets and distributes its produgfi®nally through salaried personnel and indepensaleis representatives. The Company's
products are sold under either its registered namdetrademark, "MPA," or private label names.

Approximately 87% of the Company's sales are tonsher retail stores, which, the Company beliecesstitute the dominant distribution
channel in the Company's market. Sales to chainstait stores involve fewer tiers in the distriloat process. Products are delivered directly
by or on behalf of the Company to the chain's ifistion centers, which then deliver the merchandisectly to the retail stores for purchase
by consumers. By contrast, sales to warehousehdiirs involve more participants in the distriloutinetwork. Products are delivered to
warehouse distributors, which then deliver the mandise to jobbers, which then sell the merchartdiseitomotive repair facilities as well
to individual motorists. The Company believes ihags obtained significant marketing and distridmat as well as manufacturing, efficienc
through its focus on sales efforts to chains obmdttive retail stores.

Each year, the Company exhibits its products abousr-sponsored trade shows and several majom@dtiade shows, including the trade
shows of the Automobile Parts and Accessories Aagon, Automotive Parts and Rebuilders Associagttbe Automotive Service Industries
Association and the Automotive Warehouse Distrimgifsssociation. The Company believes that its braarde is recognized throughout its
industry. The Company prepares and publishes a imapsive catalog of its starters and alternaioctyding a pictorial product
identification guide and a detailed technical giogsand explanation guide. The Company believesitingaintains one of its market's most
extensive catalog and product identification systenffering one of the widest varieties of alteanatand starters available in that market.
Company further believes that certain of its custmshuse of and reliance on the catalog and pradentification system provide incentives
to those customers to continue to purchase produtsthe Company.
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COMPETITION

The automotive aftermarket industry of remanufaatsiand rebuilders of alternators and starterbditit imported cars and light trucks is
highly competitive. The Company's competitors idelseveral other relatively large sources of rerfeantured units and numerous smaller,
regional rebuilders. Certain of the Company's cditgs sell a wide variety of other automotive gathereby establishing broader name
recognition in the entire automotive aftermarketatidition, certain of the Company's competitoesdivisions or subsidiaries of entities also
engaged in other businesses which have substgrgiahter resources than those of the CompanyCbhepany also competes with several
large regional remanufacturers and with remanufacsuvhich are franchised by certain original equeépt manufacturers to remanufacture
their products for regional distribution. Alterneg@and starters produced by regional and otherl setalilders typically are not processed and
finished to the same extent as, and do not contetetly with, the Company's products. The Compalsp competes with numerous
rebuilders which serve comparatively local areas.

Retailers and other purchasers of replacement aigerparts for resale are constrained to a fiaiteount of space in which to display and
stock products. Consequently, the reputation faliuand customer service which a supplier enjeya significant factor in a purchaser's
decision as to which product lines to carry inlthdted space available. The Company believesttiege factors favor the Company, which
provides quality replacement automotive produ@pid and reliable delivery capabilities and promadil support. In this regard, there is
increasing pressure from customers, particularlydaones, for suppliers to provide "“just-in-tintglivery, which allows delivery on an as-
needed basis to promptly meet customer ordersChnepany believes that its ability to provide "justime" delivery distinguishes it from
many of its competitors and provides it a significeompetitive advantage and also may represeatraéebto entry to current or future
competitors.

The Company's products have not been patentedoesrtie Company believe that its products are fitn The Company will continue to
attempt to protect its proprietary processes ahdrahformation by relying on trade secret laws aod-disclosure and confidentiality
agreements with certain of its employees and gihesons who have access to its proprietary prosessother information.

GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION

The Company's operations are subject to fedegdk sind local laws and regulations governing, anathgr things, emissions to ai,
discharge to waters and the generation, handltotage, transportation, treatment and disposalast@&and other materials. The Company is
not subject to any such laws and regulations whrehspecific to the automotive aftermarket industiye Company believes that its business,
operations and facilities have been and are bgiegated in compliance in all material respects &jiplicable environmental and health and
safety laws and regulations, many of which provatesubstantial fines and criminal sanctions falafions. Potentially significant
expenditures, however, could be required in ord@omply with evolving
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environmental and health and safety laws, regulatar requirements that may be adopted or impas#tkifuture.
EMPLOYEES

The Company has approximately 690 full time empésy@©f the Company's employees, 30 are considerathestrative personnel and eight
are sales personnel. None of the Company's emdayeeparty to any collective bargaining agreemEmé Company has not experienced
any work stoppages and considers its employedaetato be satisfactory.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The Company maintains facilities in Torrance, @atifa, Roslyn Heights, New York and Nashville, Tessee. The Torrance facilities con
an aggregate of approximately 352,000 square fabaacommodate most of the Company's corporategnesters and remanufacturing,
warehousing and other office requirements. The Gompnoved into its initial Torrance facility, coasng of approximately 125,000 square
feet, in September 1993. The lease for the irfidiaility provides for a monthly rental of $44,28%dugh September 1999, increasing
thereafter to $47,601 through March 31, 2002, ¢henination date of the lease. In September 19@5Cthmpany entered into a lease for an
additional approximately 80,000 square feet incsd facility in the same industrial area in Tomamnd, in April 1997, increased its leased
space in the second facility to a total of appraatialy 227,000 square feet. The lease for the sefamility provides for a base monthly rental
of $60,252 through September 1999, increasing #fiereto $64,771 through March 31, 2002, the teatiim date of the lease. The
Company's facilities were designed and equippedrdatg to specifications generated by the Compargrder to accommodate the
Company's current and projected needs. The Comipeligves that its facilities are sufficient to shtiits foreseeable production
requirements. The Company also maintains an Eastt@alministrative and sales office in Roslyn HeigNew York. This site contains
approximately 1,000 square feet of office spac®diober 1995, the Company opened a 31,000-sqoatevarehouse and distribution
facility in Nashville, Tennessee to service the @any's growing East Coast and Southern marketlélgse for this facility expires on
October 31, 1998 and provides for a monthly reot&9,331. In addition, the Company has facilig¢éts subsidiaries' locations in Malaysia
and Singapore.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

There are no pending material legal proceedingghich the Company or any of its properties is scia@r, to the knowledge of the
Company, are any such legal proceedings threatened.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

None.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The Company's Common Stock, par value $0.01 peegtze "Common Stock"), is quoted on the Natigkgdociation of Securities Dealers
Automated Quotation ("NASDAQ") National Market umdile symbol MPAA. The following table sets fortrethigh and low bid prices for
the Common Stock during each quarter of fiscal 188 fiscal 1998 as reported by NASDAQ. The priegmrted reflect inter-dealer
guotations, may not represent actual transactindsia not include retail mark-ups, mark-downs anoassions.

FISCAL 1997 FISCAL 1998
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
First Quarter 19 14.250 18.50 13.250
Second Quarter 15.750 9.375 20.50 16.750
Third Quarter 15 11.875 20.250 16.250
Fourth Quarter 17.625 13.250 18 14.750

As of June 26, 1998, there were 6,433,455 shar€swimon Stock outstanding held by 47 holders afnekc
The Company has not declared or paid dividendfierfCommon Stock during the last two fiscal years.

The declaration of dividends in the future will &iethe election of the Board of Directors and @#@pend upon the earnings, capital
requirements and financial position of the Compaygneral economic conditions, state law requiremant! other relevant factors. In
addition, the Company's agreement with its ban&demprohibits payment of dividends without the Bamkior consent, except dividends
payable in Common Stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The following selected financial data has beenvaerirom the Company's audited financial statemértte Income Statement Data relating
to the fiscal years 1998, 1997 and 1996 and thari@el Sheet Data as of March 31, 1998 and 1997d&hbeulead in conjunction with the
Company's audited consolidated financial statememisnotes thereto appearing elsewhere herein.

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

(in thousands, except per share data)
INCOME STATEMENT DATA (1):

Net sales ......ccocovevvviiniiiic e, $112,952 $ 86,872 $ 64,358 $ 39,235 $ 29,018
Cost of goods sold ................. 91,317 69,255 50,965 30,690 21,816
Research and development 549 185 -- -- --
Selling eXPENSES .....cccovvvieeeiiiiiieeeeniis 2,417 2,305 1,984 1,498 2,117
General and administrative expenses .............. 6,298 4,974 4,577 3,704 2,593
MOVING EXPENSES .....vvvvviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeenns -- -- - -- 256
Operating iINCOME ........ceeeveviiiiiiiiiiinenns 12,371 10,153 6,832 3,343 2,236
Interest expense (net of interest income) ........ (2,577)  (1,090) (833) (540) (453)
Income before income taxes ...........ccccceeuee 10,794 9,063 5,999 2,803 1,783
Provision for income taxes (pro forma for fiscal
1994) (2) wooieieiieeee e 4,192 3,529 2,353 1,197 728
Netincome .......ccccvvvveveeenreennnn. $ 6602 $ 5534 $ 3,646 $ 1,606 $ 1,055
Basic income per share (pro forma for
fiscal 1994) (3) .eeevvveiiiieiiiienen. $ 120 $ 114 $ 096 $ 0.50 $ 0.52
Diluted income per share (pro forma for
fiscal 1994) (3) .eeevvreiiiireiiieenen. $ 116 $ 111 $ 093 $ 049 $ 0.52
Weighted average common shares outstanding -
basic income per share (pro forma for fiscal
1994) (3) cooiieeeiie e 5,521 4,859 3,812 3,208 2,018
Weighted average common shares outstanding -
diluted income per share (pro forma for fiscal
1994) (3) coivvieeeiie e 5,693 5,007 3,939 3,295 2,018
MARCH 31,
1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
(in thousands)
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total aSSets ..ocovvvvereerieneeieeieenenn $ 98,245 $ 75,510 $ 60,189 $ 25,823 $ 16,871
Working capital .......ccccceeeveiviiiiiiiiiines 75,333 51,800 44,254 18,096 12,041
Long-term debt and capitalized lease
obligations -- less current portions ........ 14,585 17,839 15,135 9,502 4,920
Shareholders' equity .........cccccceeviuerennen. 68,127 40,108 34,031 10,016 8,410

(1) Net sales and cost of goods sold for fiscalb19995 and 1994 have been reclassified to incre@steof goods sold, rather than decrease
net sales, by core trade-ins. See Note A[8] tdittancial statements contained herein.

(2) From January 1, 1987 through December 31, 11B@3Company was subject to taxation as an "S"aratjn in accordance with the Co
As a result, the net income of the Company dufirag time was taxed for federal (and some stat@niectax purposes directly to the
Company's shareholders rather than to the Comgpanyforma data reflects the income tax expenseabatd have been recorded had the
Company not been exempt from the payment of suctsta

(3) Pro forma data for fiscal 1994 reflects thecktsplit effected by the Company in January 19%ictvincreased the number of issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock from 54.3428esha 2,000,000 shares.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
GENERAL

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with the financial statements ates thereto appearing elsewhere
herein.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

1998 1997 1996
Net sales 100.0 % 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of goods sold 80.8 79.7 79.2
Gross profit 19.2 20.3 208
Research and development 0.4 0.2 0.0
Selling expenses 2.1 2.7 3.1
General and administrative expenses 5.6 5.7 7.1
Operating income 10.9 11.7 10.6
Interest expense, net of interest income 1.4 1.3 1.3
Income before income taxes 9.5 10.4 9.3
Provision for income taxes 3.7 4.1 3.7
Net income 5.8 % 64% 5.7%

In its remanufacturing operations, the Companyiobtased alternators and starters, commonly kn@wvica@res,” from its customers as trade-
ins and by purchasing them from vendors. Such tnaslare recorded when cores are received fronomess. Credits for cores are allowed
only against purchases of similar remanufacturedyxts and generally are used within 60 days oBisse by the customer. Due to this trade-
in policy, the Company does not reserve for trate-in addition, since it is unlikely that a custmwill not utilize its trade-in credits, the
credit is recorded when the core is returned assgghto when the customer purchases new produdwsCdmpany believes that this polic
consistent throughout the remanufacturing and téimgj industry.

Beginning with fiscal 1997, the Company implemengetew accounting presentation with respect tepsrting of sales. In the past, the
Company deducted the value of all cores returnaah fts customers in order to reach net sales. Uttdenew presentation, net sales are
reported on a gross basis, that is core returms énasstomers are not deducted in order to reachates, but rather are included in cost of
goods sold. The Company's financial information lm@sn reclassified to reflect this new presentafitre Company believes that this new
presentation provides a truer depiction of actalsand cost of goods sold and reflects a mongepmelationship between sales and
inventory.
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Fiscal 1998 compared to Fiscal 1997

Net sales for fiscal 1998 increased $26,080,0080db%, from $86,872,000 to $112,952,000, over aletssfor fiscal 1997. The increase in
sales is primarily attributable to sales to onéhef Company's largest customers of alternatorddarestic vehicles in connection with the
recent expansion of the Company's product linet¢tude remanufactured products for domestic veicle

Cost of goods sold for fiscal 1998 increased $220®0 or 31.9%, from $69,255,000 to $91,317,00@ inkrease primarily is attributable to
additional costs incurred in connection with ine@é production. As a percentage of net sales,of@gtiods sold increased to 80.8% for fiscal
1998 as compared to 79.7% for fiscal 1997. Thecimee as a percentage of net sales is attributalilestightly reduced efficiencies resulting
from increased labor and overtime costs in conaratiith increased production requirements in respdn strong demand for the Compa
products, (ii) lower gross margins relating to @@mpany's new product line, and, (ii) to a lesséem®, pricing pressures.

Selling expenses increased over the periods by,8002r 4.9%, from $2,305,000 to $2,417,000. Tisease resulted principally from an
expansion of the Company's sales force and retededl expenses offset partially by reduced sab@smissions to outside sales agents. As a
percentage of net sales, selling expenses decrérase@.7% to 2.1%, reflecting the leveraging ofgh expenses over the Company's
increased net sales.

General and administrative expenses increasedtioggreriods by $1,324,000 or 26.6%, from $4,97410086,298,000. The increase over
periods resulted principally from the addition eftain management personnel in connection witfeitpansion of the Company's operations,
an increase in certain compensation expense anddlsion of general and administrative expens&sted to the Company's ownership of
MVR and Unijoh effective April 1997. Notwithstandjrihe increase, general administrative expensagascentage of net sales decreased
over the periods from 5.7% to 5.6%, reflecting lthesraging of these expenses over the Companysased net sales.

For fiscal 1998 interest expense net of interestrime was $1,577,000. This represents an incree&8af000 or 44.7% over net interest
expense of $1,090,000 for fiscal 1997. Intereseasp was comprised principally of interest on tbenBany's revolving credit facility,
borrowings under which increased over the periadsiere significantly reduced by payments fromghaceeds of the Company's public
offering in November 1997.

Fiscal 1997 compared to Fiscal 1996

Net sales for fiscal 1997 increased $22,514,0086d0%, from $64,358,000 to $86,872,000, over niesdar fiscal 1996. The increase
attributable to the general growth of business wiisting customers, including the commencemesatds of alternators for domestic
vehicles to one of the Company's largest custonaais an unusually large increase in the numbetookseeping
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units ("SKUs") that these customers offer in ttstares. In addition, the Company believes thattinued aging of the import vehicle fleet
also contributed to its increased sales.

Cost of goods sold for fiscal 1997 increased $1B@30 or 35.9%, from $50,965,000 to $69,255,00@y cost of goods sold for fiscal 1996.
The increase is primarily attributable to additiboasts in connection with increased productionst@d goods sold as a percentage of net
sales increased over the periods from 79.2% td?d9\VWhile the increase in cost of goods sold overgériods is minimal, it can be primarily
attributed to pricing pressures experienced byabmpany as offset by the continuing lowering of ofaoturing costs by the Company.

Selling expenses for fiscal 1997 increased $321¢00®.2%, from $1,984,000 to $2,305,000, oveirsgkkxpenses for fiscal 1996. Selling
expenses as a percentage of net sales decred@&ador fiscal 1997 from 3.1% for fiscal 1996. $hiecrease in selling expenses as a
percentage of net sales represents the continuerhling of selling costs over the Company's irsgdanet sales.

General and administrative expenses for fiscal 18&éased $397,000 or 8.7%, from $4,577,000 t6 84000, over general and
administrative expenses for fiscal 1996. As a paage of net sales these expenses decreased eymrtbds from 7.1% to 5.7%. This
decrease represents the continued leveraging &4 ttsts over the Company's increased net salesnditease over the periods was the re
of additional insurance costs, general salary Bs®e and certain non-income-based state and foe.t

Interest expense net of interest income was $10080pr fiscal 1997. This represents an increask?26f,000 or 30.9% over interest expense
net of interest income for fiscal 1996. Interegtense was comprised principally of interest paidhenCompany's revolving credit facility,
borrowings under which increased over the peridtie. balance of interest expense relates to the @oygcapital leases.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company's recent operations have been fingmiecpally from the net proceeds of the Compapyklic offering in November 1997,
borrowings under its revolving credit facility andsh flow from operations. As of March 31, 199& @ompany's working capital was
$75,333,000, including $3,108,000 of cash and easlivalents.

Net cash used in operating activities during fis@98, 1997 and 1996 was $15,616,000, $5,978,006 45,344,000, respectively. T
principal use of cash in fiscal 1998 related toremease in inventory of $12,850,000 and an ineréasiccounts receivable of $7,263,000.
increase in inventory was due principally to thditidn of inventory in connection with the Compasgécent entrance into the business of
remanufacturing alternators and starters for domeshicles. The increase in accounts receivabkdug primarily to the increased net sales
in fiscal
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1998, although the days outstanding of the accaectivable remained relatively constant over tgopls. As of March 31, 1998, the curr
portion of capitalized lease obligations was $306,0

Net cash used in investing activities during fist@98 was $1,367,000 as compared to net cash et investing activities during fisc
1997 of $6,770,000 and net cash used in investtigiges of $10,770,000 during fiscal 1996. Durifigcal 1998, the Company used
$1,874,000 of investments to fund its operatiorts gurchased $3,241,000 of property, plant and et in order to facilitate the continued
expansion of the Company's manufacturing capacity.

Net cash provided by financing activities in fis¢@98, 1997 and 1996 was $16,431,000, $2,583,0025,667,000, respectively. The
cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 89®imarily was attributable to the net proceedthmamount of $19,807,000 from the
Company's public offering in November 1997, thecpexls from which were used in part for a net rédnaif borrowing during the year
under the Company's revolving line of credit in #meount of $3,513,000. The Company also receiveglfiscal 1998 $911,000 from the
exercise of stock options. The net cash providefiayncing activities in 1997 primarily was attribble to an increase in borrowing over the
year under the revolving line of credit and prosefrdm the exercise of warrants and stock optiensftset primarily by payments or

capital lease obligation. The increase in fisc&lGl&as primarily attributable to the net proceedthe amount of $19,501,000 from the
Company's public offering in November 1995 ancdh tesser extent, an increase in borrowing of $5(B&2during the year under the
Company's revolving line of credit and the exerabearrants and stock options.

The Company has a credit agreement expiring in 1988 with Wells Fargo Bank, National Associatitiee("Bank") that provides for a
revolving credit facility in an aggregate princiahount not exceeding $25,000,000, which creditifiaés secured by a lien on substantially
all of the assets of the Company. The credit fgciirovides for an interest rate on borrowingshatBank's prime rate less .25% or LIBOR
plus 1.25%. Under the terms of the credit facitibd included in the maximum amount thereunderBtmek will issue letters of credit and
banker's acceptances for the account of the Comipaany aggregate amount not exceeding $2,500,000lakch 31, 1998, the outstanding
balance on the credit facility was approximatel$ $83,000.

The Company's accounts receivable as of March@®8 tvas $29,591,000, representing an increase, 263,000 or 32.5% over accounts
receivable on March 31, 1997. This increase consparthe 30.0% increase in net sales from fiscar 6 fiscal 1998. In addition, the
Company occasionally extends payment terms wittaitecustomers. The Company partially protectdfifsem losses due to uncollectible
accounts receivable through an insurance policly aiit independent credit insurance company at ansdpnemium of approximately
$90,000. The Company's policy generally has beésstee credit to new customers only after the enets have been included to some ex
under the coverage of its accounts receivable amser policy. As of March 31, 1998, the Companytoants receivable from its largest
customer represented approximately 49% of all atsoeceivable.
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The Company's inventory as of March 31, 1998 wak&5,000, representing an increase of $12,874H080.7% over inventory as of
March 31, 1997. This increase, as discussed alpowvearily reflects the Company's anticipated growtimet sales in connection with
domestic vehicles and, to a lesser extent, inccelgsiness from existing customers and the nebdue sufficient inventory to support
shorter lead times for deliveries to customersoAlse Company continues to increase the numb8Kafs sold requiring the Company to
carry raw materials for this wider variety of parts

The Company currently expects that its capital egtares (exclusive of any potential acquisitiond) be approximately $3,500,000 in fist
1999. However, the Company's capital expendituidde affected by, and may be greater than culyeaticipated depending upon, the ¢
and nature of new business opportunities.

Disclosure Regarding Private Securities LitigatiorReform Act of 1995

This report contains certain forward-looking states with respect to the future performance ofGbenpany that involve risks and
uncertainties. Various factors could cause acesllts to differ materially from those projectedirch statements. These factors include, but
are not limited to, the uncertainty of long-ternsukts from the Company's recent entrance into tisinless of remanufacturing alternators and
starters for domestic vehicles, concentration t#ssto certain customers, the potential for chamgesnsumer spending, consumer
preferences and general economic conditions, isedeaompetition in the automotive parts remanufargundustry, unforeseen increases in
operating costs and other factors discussed hareirin the Company's other filings with the Segesiand Exchange Commission.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this item is set farilthe Consolidated Financial Statements, commegneinpage F-1 included herein.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
Not applicable
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT.

The information required by this item is incorp@by reference herein in the "Election of Diresta@ection of the Company's Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this item is incorpewby reference herein in the "Executive Compensasection of the Company's Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference herein in the "Security Ownershiglanagement"” section of the
Company's Proxy Statement to be filed pursuanteguition 14A.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS.

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference herein in the "Certain Transactisastion of the Company's Proxy
Statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A.
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PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.

a. EXHIBITS:

Number Description of Exhibit

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company.

Amendment to Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company.

Amendment to Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company.

Amendment to Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company.

By-Laws of the Company.

Specimen Certificate of the
Company's Common Stock.

Form of Underwriter's Common Stock
Purchase Warrant.

-20-

Method of Filing

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Registration
Statement on Form SB-2
(No. 33-74528) declared
effective on March 22, 1994
(the "1994 Registration
Statement").

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No.
33-97498) declared
effective on November 14,
1995 (the "1995
Registration Statement").

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.3 to the
Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1997
(the "1997 Form 10-K").

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to the 1994
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the 1994
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the 1994
Registration Statement.



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1

10.2

1994 Stock Option Plan.

Form of Incentive Stock Option
Agreement.

1994 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan.

1996 Stock Option Plan.

Executive and Key Employee
Incentive Bonus Plan.

Rights Agreement, dated as
of February 24, 1998, by
and between the Company and
Continental Stock Transfer &
Trust Company, as rights agent.

Credit Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 1996, by and between the
Company and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement,
dated as of November 1, 1996, by and
between the Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A.

-21-

Method of Filing

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the 1994
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.4 to the 1994
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to the
Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1995.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to the
Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-2 (No.
333-37977) declared
effective on November 18,
1997 (the "1997

Registration Statement").

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to the 1995
Registration Statement.

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended December 31,
1996 (the "December 31,
1996 Form 10-Q").

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to the 1997
Form 10-K.



10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement,

dated as of August 8, 1997, by and
between the Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement,
dated as of February 10, 1998,
by and between the Company and Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A.

Lease Agreement, dated March 9, 1993,

by and between the Company and Maricopa

Enterprises, Ltd., relating to the
Company's initial facility located in
Torrance, California.

Second Amendment to Lease, dated
October 1, 1996, by and between the
Company and Maricopa Enterprises, Ltd.
relating to the Company's initial
facility located in Torrance,

California.

Amendment to Lease, dated October 3,
1996, by and between the Company and
Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. relating
to additional property in Torrance,
California.

Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement, dated as of September 1,
1995, by and between the Company and
Mel Marks.

First Amendment to Amended and
Restated Employment Agreement,
dated as of April 1, 1997,
by and between the Company and
Mel Marks.

Amended and Restated Employment
Agreement, dated as of September 1,
1995, by and between the Company and
Richard Marks.

-22-

Method of Filing

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the 1997
Registration Statement.

Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the 1994
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5 to the 1997
Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.17 to the
December 31, 1996

Form 10-Q.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the 1995
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to the 1997
Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.8 to the 1995
Registration Statement.



10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

First Amendment to Amended and
Restated Employment Agreement, dated
as of April 1, 1997, by and between
the Company and Richard Marks.

Employment Agreement, dated as of
February 1, 1994, by and between
the Company and Steven Kratz.

First Amendment to Employment
Agreement, dated as of September 1,
1995, by and between the Company
and Steven Kratz.

Second Amendment to Employment
Agreement, dated as of April 1,
1997, by and between the Company and
Steven Kratz.

Employment Agreement, dated as of
March 1, 1994, by and between the
Company and Peter Bromberg.

First Amendment to Employment
Agreement, dated as of September 1,
1995, by and between the Company
and Peter Bromberg.

Second Amendment to Employment
Agreement, dated as of April 1,
1997, by and between the Company
and Peter Bromberg.

Employment Agreement, dated as of
September 1, 1995, by and between
the Company and Eli Markowitz.

Employment Agreement, dated as of
April 1, 1997, by and among MVR,
Unijoh and Vincent Quek.

Form of Consulting Agreement, dated
as of September 1, 1995, by and

between the Company and Selwyn Joffe.

-23-

Method of Filing

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.10 to the
1997 Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to the 1994
Registration Statement.

Exhibit 10.12 to the 1995
Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.13 to the
1997 Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 to the
1994 Registration
Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 to the
1995 Registration
Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.16 to the
1997 Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.13 to the
1995 Registration
Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.18 to the
1997 Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.14

to the 1995 Registration
Statement.



10.21

between the Company and Karen Brenner. 1997 RatisirStatement.

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

211

23.1

271

Form of Employment Agreement,
dated as of October 1, 1997, by and

Lease Agreement, dated March 28,
1995, by and between the Company
and Equitable Life Assurance
Society of the United States,
relating to the Company's facility
located in Nashville, Tennessee.

Lease Agreement, dated September 19,
1995, by and between Golkar
Enterprises, Ltd. and the Company
relating to the Company's facility
located in Nashville, Tennessee.

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization,
dated as of April 1, 1997, by and
among the Company, Mel Marks,
Richard Marks and Vincent Quek
relating to the acquisition of MVR
and Unijoh.

Form of Indemnification Agreement
for officers and directors.

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of Richard A. Eisner &
Company, LLP.

Financial Data Schedule.

B. REPORTS ON FORM 8-K:

Method of Filing

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.20 to the

Incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.11 to the
Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1995.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.18 to the
1995 Registration
Statement.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.22 to the
1997 Form 10-K.

Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.25 to the
1997 Registration
Statement.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

Filed herewith.

No reports on Form-K were filed by the Company during the fiscal geaended March 31, 1998.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
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Dat e: June 29, 1998
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By: /s/ Mel Marks
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Chi ef Executive Oficer
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Di rector June 29, 1998
Sel wn Joffe
/sl Mel Mbskowitz Di rector June 29, 1998
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Motorcar Parts & Accessories, Inc.
Torrance, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Motorcar Parts & Accessories, Inc.satdidiaries as of March 31, 1998
and 1997 and the related consolidated statemetmsahe, changes in shareholders' equity and ¢awsis for each of the years in the three-
year period ended March 31, 1998. These consotidatancial statements are the responsibility ef@ompany's management. (
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesotidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaltepted auditing standards. Those standardgedbhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethenthedial statements are free of material misstatemd@naudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digelesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememtell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statete@mumerated above present fairly, in all mateeispects, the financial position of Motor
Parts & Accessories, Inc. and subsidiaries as atMal, 1998 and 1997 and the results of its ojperatnd its cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended March 31, 1998, in conformitthvgenerally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Richard A Eisner & Conpany, LLP

Ri chard A Eisner & Company, LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k
May 19, 1998
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

MARCH 31,
1998 1997
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,108 $ 3,539
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doub tful
accounts of $250 and $200, respectively 29,591 22,328
Inventory 54,736 41,862
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,862 593
Deferred income tax asset - 142
Total current assets 89,297 68,464
Long-term investments -- 1,874
Plant and equipment - net 7,141 4,291
Other assets 1,807 881
$98,245 $75,510
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current portion of capital lease obligations $ 395 $ 743
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11,816 13,777
Income taxes payable 1,592 2,005
Deferred income tax liability 161 --
Due to affiliate - 139
Total current liabilities 13,964 16,664
Long-term debt 13,983 17,496
Capitalized lease obligations - less current portio n 602 343
Other liabilities 1,163 570
Deferred income tax liability 406 329

Commitments and other matters

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 5,000,00 0
shares authorized; none issued

Series A Junior participating preferred stock; par

value $.01 per share, 20,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock; par value $.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares

authorized; 6,428,000 and 4,868,000 shares issu ed

and outstanding 64 49
Additional paid-in capital 50,927 28,973
Unearned portion of compensatory stock options (48) --
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustment (57) --
Retained earnings 17,241 11,086
Total shareholders' equity 68,127 40,108

$98,245 $75,510

See notes to financial statements
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share data)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

1998 1997 1996

Income:

Net sales $112,952 $86,872 $ 64,358
Operating expenses:

Cost of goods sold 91,317 69,255 50,965

Research and development 549 185 --

Selling expenses 2,417 2,305 1,984

General and administrative expenses 6,298 4,974 4,577

Total operating expenses 100,581 76,719 57,526

Operating income 12,371 10,153 6,832
Interest expense (net of interest income of $101, $ 218 and

$219 for 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively) 1,577 1,090 833
Income before income taxes 10,794 9,063 5,999
Provision for income taxes 4,192 3,529 2,353
NET INCOME $ 6,602 $ 5534 $ 3,646
BASIC INCOME PER SHARE $ 120 $ 114 $ .96
DILUTED INCOME PER SHARE $ 116 $ 111 $ .93

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING - BASIC

INCOME PER SHARE 5521 4,859 3,812
Effect of potential common shares 172 148 127
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING - DILUDE 5,693 5,007 3,939

INCOME PER SHARE

See notes to financial statements



MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands)

BALANCE - MARCH 31, 1995

Proceeds from exercise of warrants and options

Proceeds from public offering (net of costs of
$1,874)

Net income

BALANCE - MARCH 31, 1996
Proceeds from exercise of options
Tax benefit from exercise of options
Net income

BALANCE - MARCH 31, 1997

Issuance of shares for MVR and Unijoh

Proceeds from public offering (net of costs of
$1,806)

Proceeds from exercise of warrants and options

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options

Compensatory stock options issued

Translation adjustment

Net income

BALANCE - MARCH 31, 1998

See notes to financial statements

COMMON STOCK
-- ADDITIONAL COMPENSATORY CU

MBER OF
HARES

UNEARNED ACC
PORTION OF FO

PAID-IN STOCK  TRAN
AMOUNT CAPITAL OPTIONS  ADJ

3,208 $
112

32 $ 8,078 -
1 867 -
15 19,486 -
48 28,431 -
1 355 -
187 -
49 28973 -
1 679 -
13 19,794 -
1 910 -
381 -
190 $ (48)
- - $

64 $50,927 $ (48) $

F-5

UMULATED

REIGN

RRENCY

SLATION RETAINED
USTMENT EARNINGS TOTAL
- $ 1,906 $10,016

- - 868

- -- 19,501
- 3,646 3,646

- 5,652 34,031
- -- 356
- -- 187
- 5534 5,534

- 11,086 40,108
- (447) 233

- ~ 19,807
- - 911

- - 381

- - 142
67 - (57)
- 6,602 6,602

(57) $17,241 $68,127




MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 3 1,
1998 1997 1996
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 6602 $ 5534 $ 3,646
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,237 717 429
Noncash charge for compensatory stock options i ssued 142 -- -
Changes in:
Accounts receivable (7,263) (5,064) (6,589)
Inventory (12,850) (13,311) (16,434)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,195) 44 (300)
Other assets (926) (732) (50)
Deferred income taxes 380 314 (82)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,295) 5,134 3,094
Income taxes payable (32) 861 785
Due to affiliate 7 (45) 157
Other liabilities 577 570 -
Net cash used in operating activities (15,616) (5,978) (15,344)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,241) (2,085) (657)
Change in investments 1,874 8,855 (10,113)
Net cash (used in) provided by investi ng activities (1,367) 6,770 (10,770)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in borrowings under lin e of credit (3,513) 2,955 5,552
Payments on capital lease obligation (774) (728) (254)
Proceeds from public offerings 19,807 - 19,501
Proceeds from exercise of warrants and options 911 356 868
Net cash provided by financing activit ies 16,431 2,58 25,667
Effect of exchange rate change on cash 3) - -
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT S (555) 3,375 (447)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 3,539 164 611
Beginning cash balance of pooled entity 124 - -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 3,108 $ 3539 $ 164
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 1,717 $ 1262 $ 1,035
Income taxes 3,844 2,354 1,590
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Property acquired under capital lease 685 454 707
Property acquired included in accounts paya ble and accrued expense
at March 31, 1996 and financed through a capitalizable lease
during fiscal 1997 - 212 212

See notes to financial statements
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE A - THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Motorcar Parts & Accessories, Inc. and subsidigties "Company"), remanufactures and distributesrahtors and starters and assemble
distributes spark plug wire sets for the automotifter-market industry (replacement parts soldu® on vehicles after initial purchase).
These automotive parts are sold to automotivelretains and warehouse distributors throughoutthiéed States.

[1] PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION:
The accompanying consolidated financ ial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its wholly o wned subsidiaries as of March
31, 1998 and for the year then ended. A Il significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been elim inated in consolidation. The
Company had no subsidiaries at March 31, 1997.

[2] CASH EQUIVALENTS:
The Company considers all highly li quid short-term investments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

[3] INVESTMENTS:
The Company's marketable securit ies are classified as
available-for-sale and reported at fair value. Unrealized gains or
losses are classified as a separate component of shareholders'
equity.

[4] INVENTORY:
Inventory is stated atthe lower of cost or market; cost is
determined by the average cost method.

[5] INCOME TAXES:
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS ") No. 109, "Accounting for
Income Taxes" which requires the use of the liability method of
accounting for income taxes. The liabili ty method measures deferred
income taxes by applying enacted stat utory rates in effect at the
balance sheet date to the differences be tween the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial
statements. The resulting asset or lia bility is adjusted to reflect
changes in the tax laws as they occur.

[6] DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:

Property and equipment are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.
amortized by the straight-line method
estimated useful lives or the term of th
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE A - THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7]

(8]

9]

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION:

Results of the Company's foreign opera
average exchange rates during the peri
and liabilities are translated at the e
balance sheet date. Gains or losses from
financial statements are accumulated
stockholders' equity.

REVENUE RECOGNITION:

The Company recognizes sales when produ

obtains used alternator and starter uni
from its customers as trade-ins and by p
Cores are an essential material
operations. During the year ended Ma
implemented a new accounting present
reporting of sales. In the past, nets
inventory value to reflect deductions
from customers ("core trade-ins") an
issued in excess of core inventory valu
reclassified, net sales are reduced by
deductions and allowances only and co
cost of goods sold. Net sales and cos
ended March 31, 1996 were reclassified t

Trade-ins are recorded upon receipt of ¢
for core and product trade-ins are a
purchases of similar remanufactured pr
by the customer within sixty days of
Company does not provide a reserve for t
it is remote that a customer will not u

the credit is recorded when the core i
the customer purchases new products.
throughout the remanufacturing and rebui

EARNINGS PER SHARE:

The Company calculates its income per
SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share".
presentation of "basic" and "diluted" in

the statements of operations. Basic in
dividing the net income by the weighted
common stock outstanding during each per
includes the effect, if any, from
conversion of securities, such as stock
would result in the issuance of incremen

tions are translated using
od, while the related assets
xchange rate in effect at the
translating foreign currency
in a separate component of

cts are shipped. The Company
ts, commonly known as cores,
urchasing them from vendors.
needed for remanufacturing
rch 31, 1997, the Company
ation with respect to its

ales were reduced by the core
for cores returned for credit

d by the value of the credits

e ("product trade-ins"). As
product trade-ins and other
re trade-ins are included in

t of goods sold for the year

o reflect this change.

ores from customers. Credits
llowed only against future
oducts and are generally used
issuance. Accordingly, the
rade-ins. In addition, since
tilize its trade-in credits,
s returned as opposed to when
This policy is consistent
Iding industry.

share under the provisions of
SFAS No. 128 requires a dual
come per share on the face of
come per share is computed by
average number of shares of
iod. Diluted income per share
the potential exercise or
options and warrants, which
tal shares of common stock.



MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE A - THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(10]

[11]

(12]

(13]

USE OF ESTIMATES:

The preparation of financial statements
accepted accounting principles requires
and assumptions that affect the rep
liabilities and disclosure of contingen

the date of the financial statements
revenues and expenses during the report
could differ from those estimates.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS:

The Company adopted SFAS No. 121, "Acc
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Ass
the year ended March 31, 1997. SFAS
standards for the impairment of |
identifiable assets, and goodwill relat

no effect of adoption of SFAS 121 on the

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

The carrying amounts of cash and cas
accounts receivable, accounts payabl
liabilities, capitalized lease obli
approximate their fair value.

Estimated fair value of these financial
are for short durations, has been dete
information. In evaluating the fair val
judgment is required to interpret the ma
estimates. The use of different market
valuation technigues may have a material
value amounts. Accordingly, the estim
herein may not be indicative of the amou
a current market exchange.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION:

The Financial Accounting Standards Board
No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Com
but does not require, companies to r
stock-based employee compensation und
The Company has elected to continue to
employee compensation using the intrins
Accounting Principles Board Opinio
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employee
effects on net income and earnings pe
such compensation been expensed. Under
compensation cost for stock options is
any, of the quoted market price of the C
date of the grant over the amount an emp
stock.
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in conformity with generally
management to make estimates
orted amounts of assets and

t assets and liabilities at

and the reported amounts of
ing period. Actual results

ounting for the Impairment of
ets to be Disposed Of" during
121 establishes accounting
ong-lived assets, certain
ed to those assets. There was
financial statements.

h equivalents, investments,
e, accrued expenses, other
gations and long-term debt

instruments, some of which
rmined using available market
ue information, considerable
rket data used to develop the

assumptions and/or different

effect on the estimated fair
ates of fair value presented
nts that could be realized in

(the "FASB") has issued SFAS
pensation”, which encourages,
ecord compensation cost for
er a fair value based method.
account for its stock-based

ic value method prescribed by
n No. 25 ("APB No. 25"),

s" and disclose the pro forma

r share had the fair value of
the provisions of APB No. 25,
measured as the excess, if
ompany's common stock at the
loyee must pay to acquire the



MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE A - THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

[14] RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS:

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1
Income." SFAS No. 130 establishes sta
display of comprehensive income and it
general purpose financial statements. Co
as the change in equity of a business
resulting from transactions and other ev
nonowner sources. The Company is revi
SFAS No. 130, which will be effective
ending March 31, 1999.

In June 1997, the FASB issued SFAS
Segments of an Enterprise and Related
requires publicly-held companies to
information about key revenue-producin
which such information is available
operating decision maker. Specific i
individual segments includes profit o
expense items and total assets. A reconc
information to amounts reported in the f
provided. SFAS No. 131 is effective f
ending March 31, 1999. The Company curre
as one segment.

In April 1998, the American Institute of
issued Statement of Position 98-5 ("SO
Costs of Start-Up Activities," which
activities and organization costs to
Company believes that SOP 98-5 would n
its financial statements as of March
effective for the Company during the yea
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)

30, "Reporting Comprehensive
ndards for the reporting and

s components in a full set of
mprehensive income is defined
enterprise during a period,
ents and circumstances from
ewing the impact of adopting
for the Company for the year

No. 131, "Disclosure about
Information." SFAS No. 131
report financial and other
g segments of the entity for
and is utilized by the chief
nformation to be reported for
rloss, certain revenue and
iliation of segment financial
inancial statements would be
or the Company for the year
ntly evaluates its operations

Certified Public Accountants

P 98-5"), "Reporting on the
requires costs of start-up

be expensed as incurred. The
ot have a material effect on
31, 1998. SOP 98-5 becomes
r ending March 31, 2000.



MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE B - INVESTMENTS

The estimated fair value of available-for-sale stweents at March 31, 1997 was $1,874,000 and dedsi$ mortgage-backed securities and
municipal bonds due after one year.

The estimated fair value of each investment wasceqapately equal to the amortized cost at March1®97 and, therefore, there were no
unrealized gains or losses at that date. The Coynghidmot hold any investments at March 31, 1998.

NOTE C - INVENTORY

Inventory is comprised of the following (in thousiajx

MARCH 31
1998 1997
Raw material $28,609 $24,046
Work-in-process 7,066 4,270
Finished goods 19,061 13,546
$54,736 $41,862
NOTE D - PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment, at cost, are summarized sv®(in thousands):
MARCH 31
1998 1997
Machinery and equipment $ 7,346 $ 4,362
Office equipment and fixtures 2,031 1,272
Leasehold improvements 1,211 472
10,588 6,106
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization (3,447) (1,815)
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE E - OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

The Company has various capital leases for magharadt computer equipment. The gross amount of asséts recorded under capital leases
was $2,240,000 and $2,338,000 at March 31, 1998 884, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments at March 31, 199&orcapitalized leases are as follows (in thousgand

1999 $ 478
2000 233
2001 172
2002 172
2003 135

1,190
Amount representing imputed interest 193
Present value of future minimum lease payments 997
Less current maturities 395
Long-term obligation at March 31, 1998 $ 602

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT

In November 1996, the Company amended its revollrggof credit agreement. The agreement providea fcredit facility in an aggregate
principal amount not exceeding $25,000,000 andlisteralized by a lien on substantially all of tesets of the Company. The agreement
expires on June 1, 1998 and provides for intenestarrowings at a fluctuating rate per annum .2%36W the bank's prime rate or at a fixed
rate at 1.65% above LIBOR. The agreement allowLirapany to obtain from the bank letters of creatil banker's acceptances in an
aggregate amount not exceeding $2,500,000 andresdgiie Company to maintain certain financial mtids of March 31, 1998 balances due
under this agreement amounted to $13,983,000.

In August 1997, the Company further amended itslkévg line of credit agreement. The agreement joles for a credit facility in an
aggregate principal amount not exceeding $30,000,06 December 31, 1997, reducing to $25,000@00anuary 1, 1998, and is
collateralized by a lien on substantially all of thssets of the Company. The agreement expirasnenl] 1999 and provides for interest on
borrowings at a fluctuating rate per annum .25%\wehe bank's prime rate or at a fixed rate at%.2hove LIBOR, as further amended in
February 1998. The agreement also amends the eaognts of certain financial ratios.
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE G - RELATED PARTIES

In April 1997, MVR Products Co. PTE, Ltd. ("MVR"nd Unijoh Sdn, Bhd ("Unijoh") became wholly ownadbsidiaries of the Company in
a stock-for-stock merger which has been accoumtethfa manner similar to a pooling of interestader the terms of the merger agreement,
the Company issued 145,455 shares of its commak.stde financial statements prior to the dateavhbination have not been restated as
the effect is not material to the Company's finahcondition and results of operations. The combiagsets and combined liabilities of MVR
and Unijoh aggregated approximately $632,000 are® $®0, respectively, at the date of combination.

Prior to the merger, the Company conducted busiwgbsVIVR, which operates a shipping warehousewhith conducts business with
Unijoh. Unijoh operates a remanufacturing faciitsnilar to the Company. MVR's warehouse is locé@te8ingapore and Unijoh's factory is
located in Malaysia. Two shareholders/officersfctioes of the Company owned 70% of both MVR and @mijwith the remaining 30%
owned by an unrelated third party. All of the copescessed by Unijoh were produced for the Commemg contract remanufacturing basis.
The cores and other raw materials used in produttyoUnijoh were supplied by the Company and wectuded in the Company's invento
Inventory owned by the Company and held by MVR @indoh was $762,000 at March 31, 1997. The Compaoyrred costs of
approximately $1,574,000 and $1,432,000 from tfiézaés for the years ended March 31, 1997 andb188spectively. The amount reported
as due to affiliate at March 31, 1997 was due toRMV

NOTE H - EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS AND BONUS PLAN

The Company has employment agreements with eifloeod, expiring at various dates through Septemb@000, which provide for annual
base salaries aggregating $1,473,000. In add#igrof the officers were granted options pursuarthe Company's stock option plans for the
purchase of 270,000 shares of common stock (889000 and 90,000 granted in fiscal years 19987 Hhd 1996, respectively). Of these
options, 49,000, 25,000 and 10,000 were exercigadgithe years ended March 31, 1998, 1997 and,I@8fectively.

The Company has established a bonus plan for thefibef executives and certain key employees. Gdweus is calculated as a percentage of
the base salary ranging from 14% to 50%. The bpeosentage varies according to the percentageaisera earnings before income taxes
and other predetermined parameters.
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE | - COMMITMENTS

The Company leases offices and warehouse facilitidew York, California and Tennessee under opggdeases expiring through 2002.
The aggregate rentals under these leases and lghisbshave been terminated was $1,175,000, $80%6048 $609,000 for the years ended
March 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. Qeitaises contain escalation clauses for real @stete and operating expenses.

Effective December 31, 1996, the Company amendedsz to acquire additional space at one of itstiegi warehouse facilities.
The Company also leases office equipment and meaghimder noncancellable operating leases havim@iréng terms in excess of one y«

At March 31, 1998, the future minimum rental paytsamder the above operating leases are as fo(ilowWsousands):

REAL

TOTAL ESTATE MACHINERY
1999 $1,464 $1,339 $ 125
2000 1,393 1,321 72
2001 1,381 1,352 29
2002 1,364 1,348 16
2003 5 -- 5

$5,607 $5,360 $ 247

NOTE J - MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND CREDIT CONCENTRATION

The Company partially protects itself from lossas tb uncollectible accounts receivable throughptimehase of credit insurance. Accounts
receivable balances not covered by credit insuraneg@rimarily due from leading automotive partsiters.

The Company's four largest customers accountethéofollowing percentage of net sales:

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,
CUSTOMER 1998 1997 1996
A 17% 18% 21%
B 15 18 11
C 43 29 20
D 5 8 18
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE J - MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND CREDIT CONCENTRATION ( CONTINUED)

Customer A accounted for approximately 17% and 18%tomer B accounted for approximately 18% and ab#customer C accounted
approximately 49% and 57% of the accounts receévabMarch 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

NOTE K - INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlihg (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

1998 1997 1996
Current:
Federal $ 3,100 $ 2,750 $1,913
State 712 465 522
Deferred 380 314 (82)
$4,192 $ 3,529 $2,353

The difference between the tax provision and thewarnthat would be computed by applying the stayutederal income tax rate to income
before taxes is attributable to the following (otisands):

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

1998 1997 1996
Income tax provision at 34% $ 3,62 8 $3,081 $2,040
State and local taxes, net of
federal benefit 46 9 307 345
Permanent differences 2 3 (20) 18
Other 7 2 161 (50)
$4,19 2  $3529 $ 2,353

The deferred income tax asset of $142,000 at Mat¢hi 997 is comprised of temporary differencesingnd financial reporting resulting
primarily from capitalization of certain inventocpsts for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilitie$667,000 and $329,000 at March 31, 1998
and 1997, respectively, are comprised of differerresulting from using accelerated depreciatiomsrédr tax purposes and from certain
expenses for tax purposes which have been capitailivthe Company's financial statements.
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE L - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
[1] COMMON STOCK:

In November 1995, the Company effected a publieraffy of its common stock. The Company issued 1@shares for $14.25 per share,
yielding net proceeds of $19,501,000 after undeimgricommissions and expenses totalling $1,874,008ddition, two principa
shareholders sold an aggregate of 344,500 shacemirection with this offering.

In November 1997, the Company effected a publieraffy of its common stock. The Company issued 1(BDshares for $16.625 per share,
yielding net proceeds of $19,807,000 after undéimgricommissions and expenses totalling $1,806,008ddition, two principa
stockholders sold an aggregate of 250,000 shammninection with this offering.

(2]

PREFERRED STOCK:

In a Rights Agreement, dated as of Feb
Company and Continental Stock Transfer
authorized 20,000 shares of Series A Jun
Stock, par value $.01 per share. The S
Preferred Stock has preferential voti
rights over the Common Stock.

On February 24, 1998, the Company declar
the holders of record at the close of

one Right on each share of Common
exercisable, entitles the registered ho

the Company one one-thousandth of a
Participating Preferred Stock at
one-thousandth of a share (subject to ad

The Rights will not be exercisable or
Common Stock until an Acquiring Pers
Agreement, without the prior consent
Directors, acquires 20% or more of the
Common Stock or announces a tender of
ownership. The Company is entitled to re
Right, any time until ten days aft
acquired. Under certain circumstances,
20% of the Common Stock, each Right
Acquiring Person will entitle its holde
shares of Common Stock having a value
price of the Right.

Holders of a Right will be entitled
Person at a similar discount if, after t

of the Company's outstanding shares of
involved in a merger or other business
another person in which it is not the su
shares are changed or converted, or the
its assets or earning power to another
March 12, 2008 unless earlier redeemed b
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share of Series A Junior

a price of $65 per one
justment).

transferable apart from the
on, as defined in the Rights
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outstanding shares of the
fer that would result in 20%
deem the Rights, at $.001 per
er a 20% position has been
including the acquisition of
not owned by a potential
r to receive, upon exercise,
equal to twice the exercise

to buy stock of an Acquiring

he acquisition of 20% or more
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combination transaction with
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Company sells 50% or more of
person. The Rights expire on

y the Company.



MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE L - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)

[3]  STOCK OPTION PLAN:

In January 1994, the shareholders approv
(the "1994 Plan"), which was amended in
the granting of options to purchase a to
to key employees and directors. Opti
"incentive stock options" within the m
Internal Revenue Code or nonqualified
administered by the Board of Directors,
options exercised, including the exercis
subject to the option and the terms and

In August 1995, the shareholders appr
Stock Option Plan (the "Directors Pla
granting of options to purchase a total
directors. The Directors Plan is ad
Directors.

In September 1997, the shareholders a
Plan (the "1996 Plan") which provides f
purchase a total of 30,000 common
consultants and directors. The 1996 Plan
of Directors.

The following table summarizes the ac

thousands, except for per share data):

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

EXERCISE
SHARES PRICE

Options outstanding at

beginning of year 489 $10.31
Granted 117 17.34
Exercised (101) 7.99
Cancelled -- -
Options outstanding at 505 12.40
end of year =====
Options exercisable at 383 11.95

end of year

F-17

ed the 1994 Stock Option Plan
October 1996, to provide for
tal of 720,000 common shares
ons granted may be either
eaning of Section 422A of the
options. The 1994 Plan is

which determines the terms of
e price, the number of shares
conditions of exercise.

oved a Nonemployee Director
n") which provides for the
of 15,000 common shares to
ministered by the Board of

pproved the 1996 Stock Option
or the granting of options to
shares to key employees,

is administered by the Board

tivity under these Plans (in

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

1997 1996
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE

SHARES PRICE

SHARES PRICE

335 $9.23 250 $7.40
382 12.98 109  12.96
(48) 7.46 (23) 7.19
(180) 14.69 (1) 8.13
489 10.31 335 923
290 934 278 883



MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE L - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)
[3] STOCK OPTION PLAN: (CONTINUED)

The following table presents information relatingstock options outstanding at March 31, 1998Housands, except per share data):

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED  WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
RANGE OF EXERCISE REMAINING EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICE SHARES PRICE LIFEIN YEARS SHARES PRICE
$6.00-$8.13 96 $ 7.66 6 96 $ 7.66
$9.00 - $10.63 174 10.60 8 125 10.59
$11.88 - $13.44 58 12.48 8 37 12.75
$14.69 - $19.13 177 16.72 9 125 16.41
505 12.40 8 383 11.95
As of March 31, 1998, 66,000 options a re available for future grant
under the 1994 Plan, 7,500 options are available for future grant

under the Directors Plan and 15,000 options ar#éadnla for future grant under the 1996 Plan.

The weighted-average fair value at date of granbftions granted during the years ended Marci1838, 1997 and 1996 was $9.68, $5.50
and $5.63 per option, respectively. The fair valfieptions at date of grant was estimated usindtaek-Scholes option pricing model
utilizing the following assumptions:

MARCH 31
1998 1997 1996
Risk-free interest rates 6.5% 5 .8%-6.5% 6.1%-6.9%
Expected option life in years 5 5 5
Expected stock price volatility 55% 36% 38%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Had the Company elected to recognize compensatisinbased on the fair value of the options at #te df grant as prescribed by SFAS 1
net income for the years ended March 31, 1998, 28@71996 would have been approximately $5,952 $681,80,000 and $3,425,000 or
$1.04 per share, $1.03 per share and $.87 per, shapectively.
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MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 1998 AND 1997

NOTE L - SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED)

The effect of applying SFAS 123 for pro viding proforma disclosures
for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 1998
is not likely to be representative of th e effect on future years.

[4]  WARRANTS:

In connection with the Company's initia | public offering the Company
issued to the underwriter 105,000 warr ants to purchase common stock
at an exercise price of $7.20 per share. In connection with a public
offering in November 1995, 90,000 warr ants were exercised. 14,000
additional warrants were exercised du ring the year ended March 31,
1998.
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

of
MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC.
Under Section 805 of the Business Corporation Lathe State of New York

We the undersigned, Richard Marks, President, &telrBromberg, Assistant Secretary of MotorcarP&rAccessories, Inc., a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the SthiMew York, in accordance with the provisions etfon 104 of the Business Corporation
Law of the State of New York, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

1. The name of the corporation is Motorcar Parsc&essories, Inc. (hereinafter called the "Corgordl). The name under which the
Corporation was formed was Motorcar Parts Assogjdie.

2. The Certificate of Incorporation was filed by thepartment of State of the State of New York @nil®2, 1968.

3. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Compaay,amended heretofore (the "Certificate of Incaafon™), is further amended by the
addition of the following provisions stating themlber, designation, relative rights, preferenceslamitations of a series of Preferred Shares
of the Company designated as "Series A Juniordfaating Preferred Stock."”

4. To accomplish the foregoing amendment, a newose(c) of Article FOURTH is added to the Certdte of Incorporation, which section
(c) of Article FOURTH reads in its entirety as folls:

"(c) SERIES A JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK

(1) Designation and Amount. The shares of suclesatall be designated as "Series A Junior Paatioip Preferred Stock™" and the numbe
shares constituting such series shall be 20,000.

(2) Dividends and Distributions.

(A) The holders of shares of Series A Junior Piditing Preferred Stock shall be entitled to reegivhen, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors out of funds legally available for therpose, quarterly dividends payable in cash onakeday of March, June, September and
December in each year (each such date being réferigerein as



"Quarterly Dividend Payment Date"), commencing loa first Quarterly Dividend Payment Date afterfilhg issuance of a share or fraction
of a share of Series A Junior Participating Pref@iBtock, in an amount per share (rounded to taeesecent) equal to the greater of (a) $

or (b) subject to the provision for adjustment lveatter set forth, 1,000 times the aggregate paresamount of all cash dividends, and 1,000
times the aggregate per share amount (payablad) kf all non-cash dividends or other distribusather than a dividend payable in
Common Stock or a subdivision of the outstandingy®mn Stock (by reclassification or otherwise), desfl on the Common Stock since the
immediately preceding Quarterly Dividend PaymenteDar, with respect to the first Quarterly DivideRayment Date, since the first
issuance of any share or fraction of a share agéSéx Junior Participating Preferred Stock. In ¢ivent the Corporation shall at any time after
February 24, 1998 (the "Rights Declaration Datg")léclare any dividend on Common Stock payabl&ammon Stock, (i) subdivide the
outstanding Common Stock, or (iii) combine the taniding Common Stock into a smaller number of shahen in each such case the
amount to which holders of shares of Series A JuRaaticipating Preferred Stock were entitled imratsly prior to such event under clause
(b) of the preceding sentence shall be adjustenddsiplying such amount by a fraction the numeratbwhich is the number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding immediately after suchmeaad the denominator of which is the number afet of Common Stock that were
outstanding immediately prior to such event.

(B) The Corporation shall declare a dividend otribsition on the Series A Junior Participating reéd Stock as provided in Paragraph (A)
above immediately after it declares a dividendistridhution on the Common Stock (other than a divid payable in Common Stock);
provided that, in the event no dividend or disttiba shall have been declared on the Common Stadkglthe period between any Quarterly
Dividend Payment Date and the next subsequent €laRividend Payment Date, a dividend of $0.01 geare on the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock shall neverthelesgayable on such subsequent Quarterly Dividend ayDate.

(C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumsatin outstanding shares of Series A Junior Ppdiitig Preferred Stock from the

Quarterly Dividend Payment Date next precedingddue of issue of such shares of Series A JunidiciReating Preferred Stock, unless the
date of issue of such shares is prior to the redatd for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Datewhich case dividends on such shares
shall begin to accrue from the date of issue oh&lares, or unless the date of issue is a QuaRardend Payment Date or is a date aftel
record date for the determination of holders ofeb@f Series A Junior Participating Preferred Sttitled to receive a quarterly dividend
and before such Quarterly Dividend Payment Dateijthrer of which events such dividends shall beégiaccrue and be cumulative from such
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but ungiiiiends shall not bear interest. Dividends paidhe shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock in an amount lesa tha total amount of such dividends at the timn@wed and payable on such shares shall be
allocated pro rata on a share-by-share basis aalbagch shares at the time outstanding. The BogRirectors may fix a record date for the
determination of holders of
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shares of Series A Junior Participating PrefertediSentitled to receive payment of a dividend istribution declared thereon, which record
date shall be no more than 30 days prior to the fiteéd for the payment thereof.

(3) Voting Rights. The holders of shares of Sefiekinior Participating Preferred Stock shall hawe following voting rights:

(A) Subject to the provision for adjustment heréimaset forth, each share of Series A Junior Bipdting Preferred Stock shall entitle the
holder thereof to 1,000 votes on all matters sulechito a vote of the shareholders of the Corpanatiothe event the Corporation shall at any
time after the Rights Declaration Date (i) declang dividend on Common Stock payable in CommonIStii¢ subdivide the outstanding
Common Stock, or (iii) combine the outstanding Camrtock into a smaller number of shares, themah esuch case the number of votes
per share to which holders of shares of SeriesndodiParticipating Preferred Stock were entitlednediately prior to such event shall be
adjusted by multiplying such number by a fractibe humerator of which is the number of shares sh@on Stock outstanding immediately
after such event and the denominator of whicha@snilimber of shares of Common Stock that were aditg immediately prior to such
event.

(B) Except as otherwise provided herein or by Idhe, holders of shares of Series A Junior Partizipa®referred Stock and the holders of
Common Stock shall vote together as one classlonatiers submitted to a vote of shareholders @Qbrporation.

(C) (i) If at any time dividends on any Series Aidu Participating Preferred Stock shall be in arsan an amount equal to six (6) quarterly
dividends thereon, the occurrence of such contiogshall mark the beginning of a period (hereiezhh "default period") which shall
extend until such time when all accrued and ungdaiilends for all previous quarterly dividend peiscand for the current quarterly dividend
period on all shares of Series A Junior ParticigpPreferred Stock then outstanding shall have Heelared and paid or set apart for
payment. During each default period, all holder®iferred Stock (including holders of the Seriedufior Participating Preferred Stock)
with dividends in arrears in an amount equal to(8)xquarterly dividends thereon, voting as a ¢lassspective of series, shall have the right
to elect two (2) directors.

(il) During any default period, such voting righttbe holders of Series A Junior Participating Brefd Stock may be exercised initially at a
special meeting called pursuant to subparagraptofithis

Section 3(C) or at any annual meeting of sharehs]dand thereafter at annual meetings of sharetg)ldeovided that such voting right shall
not be exercised unless the holders of ten peft@at) in number of shares of Preferred Stock ontiiey shall be present in person or by
proxy. The absence of a quorum of the holders afi@on Stock shall not affect the exercise by thelésa of Preferred Stock of such voting
right. At any meeting at which the holders of Prefd Stock shall exercise such voting right inifialuring an existing default period, they
shall have the right, voting as a class, to elect

-3



directors to fill such vacancies, if any, in theaBa of Directors as may then exist up to two (2¢dors or, if such right is exercised at an
annual meeting, to elect two (2) directors. If thenber which may be so elected at any special ngedbes not amount to the required
number, the holders of the Preferred Stock shak e right to make such increase in the numbdirettors as shall be necessary to permit
the election by them of the required number. Affiter holders of the Preferred Stock shall have és@daheir right to elect directors in any
default period and during the continuance of suafiod, the number of directors shall not be incedasr decreased except by vote of the
holders of Preferred Stock as herein provided osymnt to the rights of any equity securities ragksenior to or pari passu with the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

(iii) Unless the holders of Preferred Stock shdiring an existing default period, have previowestercised their right to elect directors, the
Board of Directors may order, or, subject to thevisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, aseamded, any stockholder or shareholders
owning in the aggregate not less than ten perd®@86) of the total number of shares of PreferrediStutstanding, irrespective of series, 1
request, the calling of special meeting of the addbf Preferred Stock, which meeting shall theoaupe called by the President, a Vice-
President or the Secretary of the Corporation.déodf such meeting and of any annual meeting attwholders of Preferred Stock are
entitled to vote pursuant to this Paragraph

(C)(iii) shall be given to each holder of recordRveferred Stock by mailing a copy of such notagim or her at his or her last address as the
same appears on the books of the Corporation. ®eehing shall be called for a time not earlier tB@rdays and not later than 60 days after
such order or request or in default of the calbfiguch meeting within 60 days after such orderequest, such meeting may be called on
similar notice by any shareholder or shareholdensiing in the aggregate not less than ten percé@36)bf the total number of shares of
Preferred Stock outstanding. Notwithstanding thevisions of this Paragraph (C)(iii), no such spkgiaeting shall be called during the pei
within 60 days immediately preceding the date fif@dthe next annual meeting of the shareholders.

(iv) In any default period, the holders of Commdncg, and other classes of stock of the Corporafiapplicable, shall continue to be

entitled to elect the whole number of directorsiuhe holders of Preferred Stock shall have exetitheir right to elect two (2) directors
voting as a class, after the exercise of whichtrighthe directors so elected by the holders efétred Stock shall continue in office until
their successors shall have been elected by sudhrlar until the expiration of the default periadd (y) any vacancy in the Board of
Directors may (except as provided in Paragraphij@¥(this Section 3) be filled by vote of a majgrof the remaining directors theretofore
elected by the holders of the class of stock whieleted the Director whose office shall have becwasant. References in this Paragraph (C)
to directors elected by the holders of particulass of stock shall include directors elected hatirectors to fill vacancies as provided in
clause (y) of the foregoing sentence.
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(v) Immediately upon the expiration of a defaultipd, (x) the right of the holders of Preferred &t@s a class to elect directors shall cease,
(y) the term of any directors elected by the halddrPreferred Stock as a class shall terminaté(g8rthe number of directors shall be such
number as may be provided for in the Certificaténobrporation or By-laws irrespective of any inese made pursuant to the provisions of
Paragraph (C)(ii) of this Section 3 (such numbéndpsubject, however, to change thereafter in aagmar provided by law or in the
Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws). Any vacags in the Board of Directors effected by the smns of clauses (y) and (z) in the
preceding sentence may be filled by a majorityhefriemaining directors.

(D) Except as set forth herein, holders of SeriekiAior Participating Preferred Stock shall havespecial voting rights and their consent
shall not be required (except to the extent theyeatitled to vote with holders of Common Stoclseisforth herein) for taking any corporate
action.

(4) Certain Restrictions.

(A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other divideodsglistributions payable on the Series A Juniati€ipating Preferred Stock as provided
in Section 2 of this Section (c) are in arrearsreéfter and until all accrued and unpaid dividesnt$ distributions, whether or not declarec
shares of Series A Junior Participating PreferregiSoutstanding shall have been paid in full, @leporation shall not

(i) declare or pay dividends on, make any othetriligtions on, or redeem or purchase or otherwésgiiae for consideration any shares of
stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or mfiquidation, dissolution or winding up) to theri®s A Junior Participating Preferred Stock;

(i) declare or pay dividends on or make any ottistributions on any shares of stock ranking orudty (either as to dividends or upon
liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with the1&es A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, exadipidends paid ratably on the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock and all suatity stock on which dividends are payable or irears in proportion to the total amounts to
which the holders of all such shares are thenledtit

(iii) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire forsideration shares of any stock ranking on aypéeither as to dividends or upon
liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with ther&es A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, preddhat the Corporation may at any time
redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares dfuahyparity stock in exchange for shares of angksbf the Corporation ranking junior
(either as to dividends or upon dissolution, ligidn or winding up) to the Series A Junior Papié@ting Preferred Stock; or
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(iv) purchase or otherwise acquire for considerainy shares of Series A Junior Participating PrefeStock, or any shares of stock ranking
on a parity with the Series A Junior Participatifrgferred Stock, except in accordance with a pgecloffer made in writing or by publication
(as determined by the Board of Directors) to altlkes of such shares upon such terms as the Bé&ulextors, after consideration of the
respective annual dividend rates and other relaigres and preferences of the respective seridsksses, shall determine in good faith will
result in fair and equitable treatment among tlspeetive series or classes.

(B) The Corporation shall not permit any subsidiafyhe Corporation to purchase or otherwise aegjiair consideration any shares of stock
of the Corporation unless the Corporation couldiasrParagraph (A) of this Section 3, purchase logratise acquire such shares at such time
and in such manner.

(5) Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series A d®adicipating Preferred Stock purchased or otisenacquired by the Corporation in any
manner whatsoever shall be retired and cancelleaptty after the acquisition thereof. All such gksshall upon their cancellation become
authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stodkreay be reissued as part of a new series ofiredf&tock to be created by resolution or
resolutions of the Board of Directors, subjectite tonditions and restrictions on issuance set fogtein.

(6) Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up.

(A) Upon any liguidation (voluntary or otherwisé)ssolution or winding up of the Corporation, nstdbution shall be made to the holder:
shares of stock ranking junior (either as to dimgkeor upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up)the Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the holdéshares of Series A Junior Participating Prete8eock shall have received an amount equal
to 1,000 times the Exercise Price, plus an amoguleto accrued and unpaid dividends and distiamstithereon, whether or not declared, to
the date of such payment (the "Series A LiquidaRoeference"). Following the payment of the fullamt of the Series A Liquidation
Preference, no additional distributions shall belen® the holders of shares of Series A Junioiidiaating Preferred Stock unless, prior
thereto, the holders of Common Stock shall haveived an amount per share (the "Common Adjustmexjiipl to the quotient obtained by
dividing

(i) the Series A Liquidation Preference by (ii) @00(as appropriately adjusted as set forth in stdgwaph (C) below to reflect such events as
stock splits, stock dividends and recapitalizatiamith respect to the Common Stock) (such numbetdnse (i), the "Adjustment Number").
Following the payment of the full amount of the i8srA Liquidation Preference and the Common Adjesitin respect of all outstanding
shares of Series A Junior Participating Preferrteg¢iSand Common Stock, respectively, holders ofeSek Junior Participating Preferred
Stock and holders of Common Stock shall receive theable and proportionate share of the remaiasgets to be distributed in the ratio of
the Adjustment Number to 1 with respect to suchidPred Stock and Common Stock, on a per share,basigectively.
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(B) In the event, however, that there are not sigffit assets available to permit payment in fubhef Series A Liquidation Preference and the
liquidation preferences of all other series of predd stock, if any, which rank on a parity witle theries A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, then such remaining assets shall be distribratably to the holders of such parity shargeaportion to their respective liquidation
preferences. In the event, however, that ther@atrsufficient assets available to permit paymeritil of the Common Adjustment, then st
remaining assets shall be distributed ratably échthiders of Common Stock.

(C) In the event the Corporation shall at any tafter the Rights Declaration Date (i) declare aivydénd on Common Stock payable in
Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding ComrBtwock, or (iii) combine the outstanding CommoncBtimto a smaller number of
shares, then in each such case the Adjustment Numbéfect immediately prior to such event shalddjusted by multiplying such
Adjustment Number by a fraction the numerator ofalvhs the number of Common Stock outstanding imiatety after such event and the
denominator of which is the number of Common Stibek were outstanding immediately prior to suchnéve

(7) Consolidation, Merger, etc. In case the Corpioneshall enter into any consolidation, mergembaation or other transaction in which
Common Stock are exchanged for or changed inta sthek or securities, cash and/or any other pitgptren in any such case the shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shalthe same time be similarly exchanged or changad amount per share (subject to the
provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth) &do 1,000 times the aggregate amount of stockirg@s, cash and/or any other property
(payable in kind), as the case may be, into whickoiowhich each share of Common Stock is changexkochanged. In the event the
Corporation shall at any time after the Rights Beation Date (i) declare any dividend on CommorciSfmayable in shares of Common
Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common Staxkiii) combine the outstanding Common Stock iatemaller number of shares, then in
each such case the amount set forth in the pregseimtence with respect to the exchange or chargjeoes of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock shall be adjusted by multiplyinghsamount by a fraction the numerator of whicthishnumber of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event and timohénator of which is the number of shares of Comi8tock that were outstanding
immediately prior to such event.

(8) No Redemption. The shares of Series A Junididfzating Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable

(9) Ranking. The Series A Junior Preferred Sto@tlshnk junior to all other series of the Corparats Preferred Stock as to the payment of
dividends and the distribution of assets, unlesge¢hms of any such series shall provide otherwise.
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(10) Amendment. The Certificate of Incorporatios gmended, of the Corporation shall not be furdmeended in any manner which would
materially alter or change the powers, preferencepecial rights of the Series A Junior PartidipaPreferred Stock so as to affect them
adversely without the affirmative vote of the haklef a majority or more of the outstanding shafeSeries A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, voting separately as a class.

(11) Fractional Shares. Series A Junior PartiaijgpRreferred Stock may be issued in fractionssifare which shall entitle the holder, in
proportion to such holders fractional shares, &reige voting rights, receive dividends, partiogpiat distributions and to have the benefit of
all other rights of holders of Series A Junior Rpating Preferred Stock."

5. The manner in which the foregoing amendmenhefQertificate of Incorporation was authorized fsllbows: The Board of Directors of tt
Corporation authorized the amendment under thepatittvested in said Board under the provisionghefCertificate of Incorporation and of
Section 502 of the Business Corporation Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have subscribed this documerthe date set opposite each of our names kaholdo hereby affirm, under
the penalties of perjury, that the statements @oatbtherein have been examined by us and aratrdeorrect.
Dat e: February 24, 1998

/'SI' Rl CHARD MARKS

Name: Richard Marks Title: Preside

Name: Pet er Bronberg
Title: Chi ef Financial Oficer
and Assistant Secretary
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RIGHTS AGREEMENT

RIGHTS AGREEMENT, dated as of February 24, 1998 (ihgreement"), between Motorcar Parts & Accessoligc., a New York
corporation (the "Company"), and Continental Stocknsfer & Trust Company, a New York corporatidme(tRights Agent"), as Rights
Agent.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, on February 24, 1998 (the "Rights Divid®wetlaration Date"), the Board of Directors of @empany authorized and declare
dividend distribution of one Right for each shafe@mmon stock, par value $0.01 per share, of th@@any (the "Common Stock")
outstanding at the close of business on March 923 Ithe "Record Date"), and has authorized theaisse of one Right (as such number t
hereinafter be adjusted pursuant to the provisidns

Section 11(p) hereof) for each share of CommonkStbthe Company issued between the Record Datetfven originally issued or deliver
from the Company's treasury) and the Distributi@iel each Right initially representing the righptochase one orthousandth of a share
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (theferred Stock") of the Company having the rightavers and preferences set forth in the
form of Certificate of Amendment attached heret&=akibit A, upon the terms and subject to the ctods hereinafter set forth (the
"Rights");

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises ie mutual agreements herein set forth, thegsahereby agree as follov
Section 1. Certain definitions. For purposes of thjreement, the following terms have the meanindisated:

(&) "Acquiring Person" shall mean any Person whwitich, together with all Affiliates and Associatgfssuch Person, shall be the Beneficial
Owner of 20% or more of the shares of Common Sthek outstanding, but shall not include (i) the @amy, (ii) any Subsidiary of the
Company, (iii) any employee benefit plan of the @amy or of any Subsidiary of the Company,

(iv) any Person or entity organized, appointedstalalished by the Company for or pursuant to thdeof any such plan or (v) an Exempted
Person.

(b) "Affiliate" and "Associate" shall have the respive meanings ascribed to such terms in Secti@o®the New York Business Corporat
Law, as amended and in effect on the date of thieément.

(c) A Person shall be deemed the "Beneficial Owné&rand shall be deemed to "beneficially own," apgurities:
(i) which such Person or any of such Person'siafék or Associates, directly or indirectly, has tight to acquire (whether
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such right is exercisable immediately or only aftex passage of time) pursuant to any agreemeahgament or understanding (whether or
not in writing) or upon the exercise of conversimhts, exchange rights, warrants or options, bentise; provided, however, that a Person
shall not be deemed the "Beneficial Owner" of atheneficially own," (A) securities tendered puastito a tender or exchange offer mad
such Person or any of such Person's Affiliatessaogiates until such tendered securities are aatdépt purchase or exchange, or (B)
securities issuable upon exercise of Rights attiamg prior to the occurrence of a Triggering Evemt(C) securities issuable upon exercise of
Rights from and after the occurrence of a Trigggfivent which Rights were acquired by such Pers@nyp of such Person's Affiliates or
Associates prior to the Distribution Date or purgua Section 3(a) or Section 22 hereof (the "®adjRights") or pursuant to Section 11(i)
hereof in connection with an adjustment made wapect to any Original Rights;

(i) which such Person or any of such Person'sliafés or Associates, directly or indirectly, hlas tight to vote pursuant to any agreement,
arrangement or understanding, whether or not itingri provided, however, that a Person shall nadéemed the "Beneficial Owner" of, or
"beneficially own," any security under this subgaeph (ii) as a result of an agreement, arrangewramiderstanding to vote such security if
such agreement, arrangement or understanding:riggsasolely from a revocable proxy or consentmiveresponse to a proxy or consent
solicitation made in accordance with the applicabtevisions of the General Rules and Regulatiorteuthe Exchange Act, and (B) is not
then reportable by such Person on Schedule 13Dr tinel&xchange Act (or any comparable or succasgant); or

(iii) which are beneficially owned, directly or iimdctly, by any other Person (or any Affiliate osgociate thereof) with which such Person (or
any of such Person's Affiliates or Associates)drasagreement, arrangement or understanding (whetmst in writing), for the purpose of
acquiring, holding, voting (except pursuant toeoable proxy or consent as described in the poadsubparagraph (ii) of this paragraph
(c)) or disposing of any voting securities of thentpany; provided, however, that nothing in thisagaaph (c) shall cause a Person engag
business as an underwriter of securities to b&Bkaeficial Owner" of, or to "beneficially own," grsecurities acquired through such person's
participation in good faith in a firm commitmentderwriting until the
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expiration of forty days after the date of suchuasitjon; and provided further, however, that ahgreholder of the Company, with Affiliates,
Associates or other person(s) who may be deemedsmmatives of it serving as director(s) or offispof the Company, shall not be deemed
to beneficially own securities held by other Pessas a result of (i) persons affiliated or otheenassociated with such shareholder serving as
director(s) or officer(s) or taking any action ionmection therewith, (ii) discussing the statugothares with the Company or other
shareholders of the Company similarly situatedignoting or acting in a manner similar to otrerareholder(s) similarly situated, absent a
specific finding by the Board of Directors of arpesss agreement among such shareholders to amtéert with one another as shareholders
S0 as to cause, in the good faith judgment of tharé of Directors, each such shareholder to b&#meficial Owner of the shares held by the
other shareholder(s).

(d) "Business Day" shall mean any day other th&atarrday, Sunday or a day on which banking ingtitgtin the State of New York are
authorized or obligated by law or executive oraeclose.

(e) "Close of business" on any given date shallm&@0 P.M., New York City time, on such date; pdad, however, that if such date is n
Business Day it shall mean 5:00 P.M., New York Giitye, on the next succeeding Business Day.

(f) "Common Stock" shall mean the Common Stockgepxthat "Common Stock” when used with referencantp Person other than the
Company shall mean the capital stock of such Pesgibnthe greatest voting power, or the equity s#ies or other equity interest having
power to control or direct the management, of dRefson.

(9) "Exempted Person" shall mean Mel Marks, Richdeaks and any Affiliate or Associate thereof.
(h) "Person" shall mean any individual, firm, corgtion, partnership or other entity.

(i) "Preferred Stock" shall mean shares of Serigwior Participating Preferred Stock, par valu®$®@er share, of the Company, and, to the
extent that there are not a sufficient number afet of Series A Junior Participating PreferrectiStuthorized to permit the full exercise of
the Rights, any other series of Preferred Stockyalue $0.01 per share, of the Company desigrfatesiich purpose containing terms
substantially similar to the terms of the Serie3ulior Participating Preferred Stock.
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(j) "Section 11(a)(ii) Event" shall mean any evdascribed in
Section 11(a)(ii) hereof.

(k) "Section 13 Event" shall mean any event descriln clauses
(x), (y) or (z) of Section 13(a) hereof.

() "Stock Acquisition Date" shall mean the firsttd of public announcement (which, for purposethisfdefinition, shall include, without
limitation, a report filed pursuant to Section 13¢dder the Exchange Act) by the Company or an AsygPerson that an Acquiring Person
has become such.

(m) "Subsidiary" shall mean, with reference to 8gyson, any corporation of which an amount of ypsiacurities sufficient to elect at least a
majority of the directors of such corporation isbficially owned, directly or indirectly, by suctei®on, or otherwise controlled by such
Person.

(n) "Triggering Event" shall mean any Section 1(ijgEvent or any Section 13 Event.

Section 2. Appointment of Rights Agent. The Compheaseby appoints the Rights Agent to act as agerthé Company and the holders of
the Rights (who, in accordance with Section 3 herdwll prior to the Distribution Date also be ti@ders of the Common Stock) in
accordance with the terms and conditions hereaf ta@ Rights Agent hereby accepts such appointriiéet Company may from time to time
appoint such co-Rights Agents as it may deem nacess desirable.

Section 3. Issue of Rights Certificates.

(a) Until the earlier of (i) the close of businessthe tenth day after the Stock Acquisition Date if the tenth day after the Stock Acquisition
Date occurs before the Record Date, the close gihbss on the Record Date), or (ii) the close afriess on the tenth business day (or such
later date as the Board shall determine) afted#te that a tender or exchange offer by any Pdtber than the Company, any Subsidiary of
the Company, any employee benefit plan of the Camwypa of any Subsidiary of the Company, or any Bei&r entity organized, appointec
established by the Company for or pursuant toghmg of any such plan) is first published or sergieen within the meaning of Rule 14d-2
(a) of the General Rules and Regulations undeExohange Act, if, upon consummation thereof, suets&h would be the Beneficial Owner
of 20% or more of the shares of Common Stock thastanding (the earlier of (i) and (ii) being herezferred to as the "Distribution Date"),
(x) the Rights will be evidenced (subject to theyisions of paragraph (b) of this Section 3) by ¢kdificates for the Common Stock
registered in the names of the holders of the Com8tock (which certificates for Common Stock shalldeemed also to be certificates for
Rights) and not by separate certificates, andhg)Rights will be transferable only in connectioitbmthe transfer of the underlying shares of
Common Stock (including a transfer to the
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Company). As soon as practicable after the DistidnuDate, the Rights Agent will send by first-dagsured, postage prepaid mail, to each
record holder of the Common Stock as of the clddmisiness on the Distribution Date, at the addoéssich holder shown on the records of
the Company, one or more right certificates, inssaifitially the form of Exhibit B hereto (the "Rightertificates"), evidencing one Right for
each share of Common Stock so held, subject tastdgnt as provided herein. In the event that amsagjent in the number of Rights per
share of Common Stock has been made pursuant toisé&d(p) hereof, at the time of distribution b&tRights Certificates, the Company
shall make the necessary and appropriate roundijugtanents (in accordance with Section 14(a) h¢mthat Rights Certificates
representing only whole numbers of Rights are ibisted and cash is paid in lieu of any fractionagt®s. As of and after the Distribution
Date, the Rights will be evidenced solely by suahis Certificates.

(b) As promptly as practicable following the Rec@rate, the Company will send a copy of a Summarights, in substantially the form
attached hereto as Exhibit C (the "Summary of Rijhby first-class, postage prepaid mail, to eacword holder of the Common Stock as of
the close of business on the Record Date, at ttieeasl of such holder shown on the records of threg@oy. With respect to certificates for
the Common Stock outstanding as of the Record Datéd,the Distribution Date, the Rights will beidegnced by such certificates for the
Common Stock and the registered holders of the Cam&tock shall also be the registered holderseffsociated Rights. Until the earlier
of the Distribution Date or the Expiration Date ¢agh term is defined in Section 7 hereof), thadfar of any certificates representing shares
of Common Stock in respect of which Rights haventiesued shall also constitute the transfer oRlghts associated with such shares of
Common Stock.

(c) Rights shall be issued in respect of all shaf6Sommon Stock which are issued (whether origyniasued or from the Company's
treasury) after the Record Date but prior to thdiexeof the Distribution Date or the Expiration 2aCertificates representing such shares of
Common Stock shall also be deemed to be certidateRights, and shall bear the following legend:

This certificate also evidences and entitles thddrdhereof to certain Rights as set forth in thgh®s Agreement between Motorcar Parts &
Accessories, Inc. (the "Company") and Continentatls Transfer & Trust Company (the "Rights Agerddted as of February 24, 1998 (the
"Rights Agreement"), the terms of which are heriglmprporated herein by reference and a copy of wison file at the principal offices of
Motorcar Parts & Accessories, Inc. Under certarawnstances, as set forth in the Rights Agreenseieh) Rights will be evidenced by
separate certificates and will no longer be evideray this certificate. Motorcar Parts & Accesseriac. will mail to the holder of this
certificate a copy of the Rights Agreement, asfieat on the date of mailing, without charge prolytiter receipt of a written request
therefor. Under certain circumstances set fortthéRights Agreement, Rights issued to, or heldaby, Person who is,
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was or becomes an Acquiring Person or any Affilaté\ssociate thereof (as such terms are defindlaeiRights Agreement), whether
currently held by or on behalf of such Person oaby subsequent holder, may become null and voith Wspect to such certificates
containing the foregoing legend, until the earti€(i) the Distribution Date or (ii) the Expiratiddate, the Rights associated with the Comi
Stock represented by such certificates shall beegned by such certificates alone and registerietbioof Common Stock shall also be the
registered holders of the associated Rights, amdrdimsfer of any of such certificates shall alsostitute the transfer of the Rights associated
with the Common Stock represented by such certéica

Section 4. Form of Rights Certificates.

(a) The Rights Certificates (and the forms of étecto purchase and of assignment to be printetth@meverse thereof) shall each be
substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit Breto and may have such marks of identificationesighation and such legends, summarie
endorsements printed thereon as the Company may dppropriate and as are not inconsistent wittptbeisions of this Agreement, or as
may be required to comply with any applicable lawvith any rule or regulation made pursuant theogtwith any rule or regulation of any
stock exchange on which the Rights may from timgéne be listed, or to conform to usage. Subje¢héoprovisions of Section 11 and
Section 22 hereof, the Rights Certificates, whendistributed, shall be dated as of the Record Ratkon their face shall entitle the holders
thereof to purchase such number of one one-thotizanéla share of Preferred Stock as shall beostt therein at the price set forth therein
(such exercise price per one one-thousandth ofiesthe "Purchase Price"), but the amount anddfgecurities purchasable upon the
exercise of each Right and the Purchase Pricedhsihall be subject to adjustment as provided herei

(b) Any Rights Certificate issued pursuant to Set(a) or

Section 22 hereof that represents Rights bendfiaained by: (i) an Acquiring Person or any Assteiar Affiliate of an Acquiring Person,

(i) a transferee of an Acquiring Person (or of agh Associate or Affiliate) who becomes a traredfaafter the Acquiring Person becomes
such, or (iii) a transferee of an Acquiring Pergonof any such Associate or Affiliate) who beconagsansferee prior to or concurrently with
the Acquiring Person becoming such and receives Rights pursuant to either (A) a transfer (whetiremot for consideration) from the
Acquiring Person to holders of equity interestsuich Acquiring Person or to any Person with whoohsAcquiring Person has any
continuing agreement, arrangement or understardiparding the transferred Rights or (B) a trangfieich the Board of Directors of the
Company has determined is part of a plan, arrangearauinderstanding which has as a primary purposdfect avoidance of Section 7(e)
hereof, and any Rights Certificate issued purst@Bection 6 or Section 11 hereof upon transfesharge, replacement or adjustment of any
other Rights Certificate referred to in this sestgrshall contain (to the extent feasible) theofeihg legend:
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The Rights represented by this Rights Certificagecs were beneficially owned by a Person who wasesame an Acquiring Person or an
Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiring Person (agls terms are defined in the Rights Agreement) ofgiagly, this Rights Certificate and the
Rights represented hereby may become null andimdltk circumstances specified in Section 7(eJuchsAgreement.

Section 5. Countersignature and Registration.

(a) The Rights Certificates shall be executed drabi®f the Company by its Chairman of the BoatslMice Chairman, its President or any
Vice President, either manually or by facsimilensityre, and shall have affixed thereto the Compgaseal or a facsimile thereof which shall
be attested by the Secretary or an Assistant $egret the Company, either manually or by facsimsignature. The Rights Certificates shall
be countersigned by the Rights Agent, either maywalby facsimile signature and shall not be vétidany purpose unless so countersigned.
In case any officer of the Company who shall hageesd any of the Rights Certificates shall ceadgetguch officer of the Company before
countersignature by the Rights Agent and issuandedelivery by the Company, such Rights Certifisateevertheless, may be countersigned
by the Rights Agent and issued and delivered byCivapany with the same force and effect as thohgipérson who signed such Rights
Certificates had not ceased to be such officen®@@ompany; and any Rights Certificates may beesigm behalf of the Company by any
person who, at the actual date of the executi@uoh Rights Certificate, shall be a proper officethe Company to sign such Rights
Certificate, although at the date of the executibthis Rights Agreement any such person was rait an officer.

(b) Following the Distribution Date, the Rights Agevill keep or cause to be kept, at its principffice or offices designated as the
appropriate place for surrender of Rights Certtsaupon exercise or transfer, books for registnatind transfer of the Rights Certificates
issued hereunder. Such books shall show the namdeadairesses of the respective holders of the KRigeittificates, the number of Rights
evidenced on its face by each of the Rights Cedtifis and the date of each of the Rights Certificat

Section 6. Transfer, Split Up, Combination and Ede of Rights Certificates; Mutilated, Destroyedst or Stolen Rights Certificates.

(&) Subject to the provisions of Section 4(b), Bec?(e) and

Section 14 hereof, at any time after the closeusfriess on the Distribution Date, and at or poahe close of business on the Expiration
Date, any Rights Certificate or Certificates maytra@sferred, split up, combined or exchanged fhatlzer Rights Certificate or Certificates,
entitling the registered holder to purchase atiémber of one on#housandths of a share of Preferred Stock (opviailg a Triggering Ever
Common Shares, other securities, cash or othetsassethe case may be) as the Rights Certifigaedificates surrendered then entitled
such holder (or former holder in the case of asf@n) to

-7-



purchase. Any registered holder desiring to transfdit up, combine or exchange any Rights Cestf or Certificates shall make such
request in writing delivered to the Rights Agemid &hall surrender the Rights Certificate or Ciedies to be transferred, split up, combined
or exchanged at the principal office or officegtsd Rights Agent designated for such purpose. Betthe Rights Agent nor the Company
shall be obligated to take any action whatsoevér raispect to the transfer of any such surrendeights Certificate until the registered
holder shall have completed and signed the catédicontained in the form of assignment on thersevside of such Rights Certificate and
shall have provided such additional evidence ofidieatity of the Beneficial Owner (or former Berwéil Owner) or Affiliates or Associates
thereof as the Company shall reasonably requestetibon the Rights Agent shall, subject to Secti{tm), Section 7(e) and Section 14 her
countersign and deliver to the Person entitledetioen Rights Certificate or Rights Certificatestr@scase may be, as so requested. The
Company may require payment of a sum sufficierioier any tax or governmental charge that may Ipogad in connection with any
transfer, split up, combination or exchange of RigPertificates.

(b) Upon receipt by the Company and the Rights Agéevidence reasonably satisfactory to them efitiss, theft, destruction or mutilation
of a Rights Certificate, and, in case of loss, ttbefdestruction, of indemnity or security reasdpaatisfactory to them, and reimbursement to
the Company and the Rights Agent of all reasonaxfenses incidental thereto, and upon surrendéetRights Agent and cancellation of
the Rights Certificate if mutilated, the Companyl wkecute and deliver a new Rights Certificatdilaf tenor to the Rights Agent for
countersignature and delivery to the registeredemvimlieu of the Rights Certificate so lost, stgldestroyed or mutilated.

Section 7. Exercise of Rights; Purchase Price; fatiph Date of Rights.

(a) Subject to Section 7(e) hereof, the registbader of any Rights Certificate may exercise thighi evidenced thereby (except as
otherwise provided herein including, without lintitan, the restrictions on exercisability set foiritSection 9(c), Section 11(a)(iii) and Sect
23(a) hereof) in whole or in part at any time aftex Distribution Date upon surrender of the Rigbestificate, with the form of election to
purchase and the certificate on the reverse sitedf duly executed, to the Rights Agent at thagipial office or offices of the Rights Agent
designated for such purpose, together with paymikthte aggregate Purchase Price with respect ttotabnumber of one one-thousandths of
a share (or other securities, cash or other assethe case may be) as to which such surrendégetsRre then exercisable, at or prior to the
earlier of (i) the close of business on March Q& (the "Final Expiration Date"), or (ii) the tina¢ which the Rights are redeemed as
provided in Section 23 hereof (the earlier of (iJdii) being herein referred to as the "Expiratidate").

(b) The Purchase Price for each one one-thousarfdilshare of Preferred Stock pursuant to the eeeof a Right shall initially be $65.00,
and shall be subject to adjustment from time teetam provided in Sections 11 and 13(a) hereof hallllse payable in accordance with
paragraph (c) below.
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(c) Upon receipt of a Rights Certificate represamexercisable Rights, with the form of electiorptochase and the certificate duly executed,
accompanied by payment, with respect to each Riglaixercised, of the Purchase Price per one onsdhdth of a share of Preferred Stock
(or other shares, securities, cash or other assethe case may be) to be purchased as set &alw hnd an amount equal to any applicable
transfer tax, the Rights Agent shall, subject toti®a 20(k) hereof, thereupon promptly (i) (A) résjtion from any transfer agent of the she

of Preferred Stock (or make available, if the Righgent is the transfer agent for such sharesificatés for the total number of one one-
thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock to behpged and the Company hereby irrevocably authmitizéransfer agent to comply with all
such requests, or (B) if the Company shall haveteteto deposit the total number of shares of PredeStock issuable upon exercise of the
Rights hereunder with a depositary agent, reqaisitiom the depositary agent depositary receigieeseenting such number of one one-
thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock as dre purchased (in which case certificates for Haress of Preferred Stock represented by
such receipts shall be deposited by the transfemtagith the depositary agent) and the Companydinéict the depositary agent to comply
with such request, (ii) requisition from the Compaine amount of cash, if any, to be paid in liedrattional shares in accordance with
Section 14 hereof, (iii) after receipt of such fiedites or depositary receipts, cause the sarbe ttelivered to, or upon the order of, the
registered holder of such Rights Certificate, reged in such name or names as may be designawathyholder, and (iv) after receipt
thereof, deliver such cash, if any, to, or upondtder of, the registered holder of such Rightgifieate. The payment of the Purchase Price
(as such amount may be reduced pursuant to Sekti@i(iii) hereof) shall be made in cash or byitied bank check or bank draft payable to
the order of the Company. In the event that the @ is obligated to issue other securities (indgdhares of Common Stock) of the
Company, pay cash and/or distribute other progmrtguant to Section 11(a) hereof, the Companymalke all arrangements necessary so
that such other securities, cash and/or other ptypee available for distribution by the Rightsexd, if and when appropriate. The Company
reserves the right to require prior to the occuwreenf a Triggering Event that, upon any exercisRights, a number of Rights be exercised so
that only whole shares of Preferred Stock wouldsbaed.

(d) In case the registered holder of any Rightdiftzte shall exercise less than all the Rightislenced thereby, a new Rights Certificate
evidencing Rights equivalent to the Rights remajninexercised shall be issued by the Rights Agesidalivered to, or upon the order of,
the registered holder of such Rights Certificatgjstered in such name or names as may be designatich holder, subject to the
provisions of Section 14 hereof.

(e) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreementhe tontrary, from and after the first occurrenca &ection 11(a)(ii) Event, any Rights
beneficially owned by (i) an Acquiring Person or/ssociate or Affiliate of an Acquiring Person) @i transferee of an Acquiring Person (or
of any such Associate or Affiliate) who becomesaasferee after the Acquiring Person becomes sudfii) a transferee of an Acquiring
Person (or of any such Associate or Affiliate) idleromes a transferee prior to or concurrently #ighAcquiring Person becoming such and
receives such Rights pursuant to either (A) a fear(hether or not for consideration) from the Agag Person
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to holders of equity interests in such Acquiringd®a or to any Person with whom the Acquiring Peiisas any continuing agreement,
arrangement or understanding regarding the tranesféights or (B) a transfer which a majority of tBoard of Directors of the Company has
determined is part of a plan, arrangement or utaledsng which has as a primary purpose or effextioidance of this Section 7(e), shall
become null and void without any further action acholder of such Rights shall have any rightstatever with respect to such Rights,
whether under any provision of this Agreement tieotvise. The Company shall use all reasonabletsfforinsure that the provisions of this
Section 7(e) and Section 4(b) hereof are compliigld, Wwut shall have no liability to any holder oigRts Certificates or other Person as a
result of its failure to make any determinationthwispect to an Acquiring Person or its Affiligtéssociates or transferees hereunder.

(f) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement k& tcontrary, neither the Rights Agent nor the Camyphall be obligated to undertake any
action with respect to a registered holder uporottairrence of any purported exercise as set foitthis Section 7 unless such registered
holder shall have

(i) completed and signed the certificate contaiimetthe form of election to purchase set forth om iverse side of the Rights Certificate
surrendered for such exercise, and (ii) providexhsdditional evidence of the identity of the Beéciaf Owner (or former Beneficial Owner)
or Affiliates or Associates thereof as the Compsingll reasonably request.

Section 8. Cancellation and Destruction of Righestificates. All Rights Certificates surrenderedtfte purpose of exercise, transfer, split
combination or exchange shall, if surrendered édoGbmpany or any of its agents, be delivered tdrilgdts Agent for cancellation or in
cancelled form, or, if surrendered to the Right&iAty shall be cancelled by it, and no Rights Gestiés shall be issued in lieu thereof except
as expressly permitted by any of the provisionthisf Agreement. The Company shall deliver to thghf®& Agent for cancellation and
retirement, and the Rights Agent shall so cancélratire, any other Rights Certificate purchasedaguired by the Company otherwise than
upon the exercise thereof. The Rights Agent shaiVer all cancelled Rights Certificates to the Qamy, or shall, at the written request of
Company, destroy such cancelled Rights Certificated in such case shall deliver a certificateestaiction thereof to the Company.

Section 9. Reservation and Availability of CapBabck.

(a) The Company covenants and agrees that it ailse to be reserved and kept available out otittsosized and unissued shares of Prefe
Stock (and, following the occurrence of a TrigggriEvent, out of its authorized and unissued shafr€&ommon Stock and/or other securities
or out of its authorized and issued shares heid imeasury), the number of shares of PreferredkStand, following the occurrence of a
Triggering Event, Common Shares and/or other séesiyithat, as provided in this Agreement including

Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, will be sufficient to npeit the exercise in full of all outstanding Rights

(b) So long as the shares of Preferred Stock fatidwing the occurrence of a Triggering Event, r@saof Common Stock and/or other
securities) issuable and deliverable upon the
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exercise of the Rights may be listed on any natiseeurities exchange, the Company shall use #sdféorts to cause, from and after such
time as the Rights become exercisable, all shasesved for such issuance to be listed on suche@gehupon official notice of issuance uj
such exercise.

(c) The Company shall use its best efforts toilg) Bis soon as practicable following the earlikge after the first occurrence of a Section
11(a)(ii) Event on which the consideration to béwdeed by the Company upon exercise of the Riglatsbeen determined in accordance
Section 11(a)(iii) hereof, a registration statemamder the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Act"), wilspect to the securities purchasable upon
exercise of the Rights on an appropriate formcéilyse such registration statement to become ieffes soon as practicable after such filing,
and (iii) cause such registration statement to nerefiective (with a prospectus at all times megtine requirements of the Act) until the
earlier of (A) the date as of which the Rights modonger exercisable for such securities, andt{B)date of the expiration of the Rights. The
Company will also take such action as may be apjatgpunder, or to ensure compliance with, the istes or "blue sky" laws of the various
states in connection with the exercisability of Rights. The Company may temporarily suspend, foeréod of time not to exceed ninety
(90) days after the date set forth in clause (theffirst sentence of this

Section 9(c), the exercisability of the Rights mer to prepare and file such registration statérand permit it to become effective. Upon i
such suspension, the Company shall issue a puldisiencement stating that the exercisability ofRiights has been temporarily suspended,
as well as a public announcement at such timeeasutbpension is no longer in effect. In additibthe Company shall determine that a
registration statement is required following thetbbution Date, the Company may temporarily suggbe exercisability of the Rights until
such time as a registration statement has beearddabffective. Notwithstanding any provision atAgreement to the contrary, the Rights
shall not be exercisable in any jurisdiction if tleguisite qualification in such jurisdiction shait have been obtained, the exercise thereof
shall not be permitted under applicable law orgisteation statement shall not have been decldfedtwe.

(d) The Company covenants and agrees that itaké &ll such action as may be necessary to ertzatralt one one-thousandths of a share of
Preferred Stock (and, following the occurrence dfiggering Event, shares of Common Stock and/eensecurities) delivered upon exer¢

of Rights shall, at the time of delivery of thetiferates for such shares (subject to payment @Rbrchase Price), be duly and validly
authorized and issued and fully paid and nonaskkessa

(e) The Company further covenants and agreestthdit pay when due and payable any and all fedanal state transfer taxes and charges
which may be payable in respect of the issuancielivery of the Rights Certificates and of any ifiedtes for a number of one one-
thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock (or siiHr€ommon Stock and/or other securities, as éise may be) upon the exercise of Rights.
The Company shall not, however, be required tograytransfer tax which may be payable in respeangftransfer or delivery of Rights
Certificates to a Person other than, or the isseianclelivery of a number of one one-thousandttes sifare of Preferred Stock (or shares of
Common Stock and/or other securities, as the cayebm) in respect of a name other than that oftébistered holder of the Rights
Certificates evidencing Rights
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surrendered for exercise or to issue or delivercamtificates for a number of one one-thousandtfesshare of Preferred Stock (or shares of
Common Stock and/or other securities, as the cayeb®) in a name other than that of the registeodder upon the exercise of any Rights
until such tax shall have been paid (any such &mgopayable by the holder of such Rights Certiice the time of surrender) or until it has
been established to the Company's satisfactiomthatich tax is due.

Section 10. Preferred Stock Record Date. Each pensawhose name any certificate for a number of amethousandths of a share of
Preferred Stock (or shares of Common Stock andfmrsecurities, as the case may be) is issued tigoexercise of Rights shall for all
purposes be deemed to have become the holderartiretsuch fractional shares of Preferred Stoclskares of Common Stock and/or other
securities, as the case may be) represented thereland such certificate shall be dated, the dpda which the Rights Certificate evidenc
such Rights was duly surrendered and payment dPtinehase Price (and all applicable transfer tawes)made; provided, however, that if
the date of such surrender and payment is a date which the Preferred Stock (or Common Sharesoamdiier securities, as the case may
be) transfer books of the Company are closed, Batkon shall be deemed to have become the reclutek flnd such shares (fractional or
otherwise) on, and such certificate shall be datesinext succeeding Business Day on which theeResef Stock (or shares of Common Stock
and/or other securities, as the case may be) gmhebks of the Company are open. Prior to theotseof the Rights evidenced thereby, the
holder of a Rights Certificate shall not be entitte any rights of a shareholder of the Company wéspect to shares for which the Rights
shall be exercisable, including, without limitatjdhe right to vote, to receive dividends or ottistributions or to exercise any preemptive
rights, and shall not be entitled to receive antycecof any proceedings of the Company, exceptrasiged herein.

Section 11. Adjustment of Purchase Price, Numbdrkind of Shares or Number of Rights. The Purchee, the number and kind of
shares covered by each Right and the number otR@hstanding are subject to adjustment from tirteme as provided in this Section 11.

(@) (i) In the event the Company shall at any tafter the date of this Agreement (A) declare adi#ivid on the Preferred Stock payable in
shares of Preferred Stock, (B) subdivide the ontStey Preferred Stock, (C) combine the outstanéireferred Stock into a smaller numbe
shares, or (D) issue any shares of its capitakstoa reclassification of the Preferred Stock I{iding any such reclassification in connection
with a consolidation or merger in which the Compéanthe continuing or surviving corporation), extap otherwise provided in this Section
11(a) and Section 7(e) hereof, the Purchase Rrieffect at the time of the record date for suctiddind or of the effective date of such
subdivision, combination or reclassification, ahd humber and kind of shares of Preferred Stodapital stock, as the case may be, issu
on such date, shall be proportionately adjustetthabthe holder of any Right exercised after sirtie tshall be entitled to receive, upon
payment of the
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Purchase Price then in effect, the aggregate nuanzkkind of shares of Preferred Stock or capitalls as the case may be, which, if such
Right had been exercised immediately prior to dlafe and at a time when the Preferred Stock trabsfeks of the Company were open, he
or she would have owned upon such exercise anddrgéted to receive by virtue of such dividendbdivision, combination or
reclassification. If an event occurs which woulduiee an adjustment under both this Section 1J(aj@ Section 11(a)(ii) hereof, the
adjustment provided for in this Section 11(a)(ixlsbe in addition to, and shall be made prioraioy adjustment required pursuant to Section
11(a)(ii) hereof.

(i) In the event that any Person (other than tbenany, any Subsidiary of the Company, any empldgsefit plan of the Company or of
any Subsidiary of the Company, any Person or eatijanized, appointed or established by the Comfamyr pursuant to the terms of any
such plan, or an Exempted Person), alone or togetitie its Affiliates and Associates, shall, at a&impe after the Rights Dividend Declaration
Date, become the Beneficial Owner of 20% or morthefshares of Common Stock then outstanding, sitesevent causing the 20%
threshold to be crossed is a transaction set for8ection 13(a) hereof, or is an acquisition alrels of Common Stock pursuant to a tender
offer or an exchange offer for all outstanding slsaof Common Stock at a price and on terms detedridy at least a majority of the memt
of the Board of Directors who are not officers loé Company and who are not representatives, nomjiddiiates or Associates of an
Acquiring Person, after receiving advice from onenore investment banking firms, to be (a) at aguvhich is fair to shareholders (taking
into account all factors which such members ofBbard deem relevant including, without limitatigurices which could reasonably be
achieved if the Company or its assets were soldmoorderly basis designed to realize maximum vaned)(b) otherwise in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders (hereinaft&®ualifying Offer"), then, promptly following theccurrence of any such event, proper
provision shall be made so that each holder ofghhtRiexcept as provided below and in Section 7ée¢df) shall thereafter have the right to
receive, upon exercise thereof at the then cuRanthase Price in accordance with the terms oftgisement, in lieu of a number of one
one-thousandths of a share of Preferred Stock, suictber of shares of Common Stock of the Comparshall equal the result obtained by
(x) multiplying the then current Purchase Pricetrythen number of one one-thousandths of
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a share of Preferred Stock for which a Right was@gable immediately prior to the first occurrenéa Section 11(a)(ii) Event, and (y)
dividing that product (which, following such firstcurrence, shall thereafter be referred to aSRhechase Price" for each Right and for all
purposes of this Agreement) by 50% of the curreatket price (determined pursuant to Section 11¢d¢df) per share of Common Stock on
the date of such first occurrence (such numbehafes, the "Adjustment Shares").

(iii) In the event that the number of shares of @wn Stock which are authorized by the Company'sificate of Incorporation, as amended,
but not outstanding or reserved for issuance fopq@ees other than upon exercise of the Rightsatreuificient to permit the exercise in full

of the Rights in accordance with the foregoing swbgraph (ii) of this Section 11(a), the Comparsllg\) determine the value of the
Adjustment Shares issuable upon the exercise d@flat Rhe "Current Value"), and (B) with respectetach Right (subject to Section 7(e)
hereof), make adequate provision to substitutéhferAdjustment Shares, upon the exercise of a Rigtitpayment of the applicable Purchase
Price, (1) cash, (2) a reduction in the Purchagm P{3) shares of Common Stock or other equityisees of the Company (including, withc
limitation, shares, or units of shares, of prefeéistock, such as the Preferred Stock, which thedlbas deemed to have essentially the same
value or economic rights as shares of shares ofm@mntock (such shares of preferred stock beiregnesd to as "Common Share
Equivalents™)), (4) debt securities of the Compdby other assets, or (6) any combination of thhedoing, having an aggregate value equ
the Current Value (less the amount of any redudtidhe Purchase Price), where such aggregate hakibeen determined by the Board
based upon the advice of a nationally recognizedstment banking firm selected by the Board; pregichowever, that if the Company shall
not have made adequate provision to deliver valuieyant to clause (B) above within thirty (30) dégylfowing the later of (x) the first
occurrence of a Section

11(a)(ii) Event and (y) the date on which the Conyxright of redemption pursuant to Section 2&{gjires (the later of (x) and

(y) being referred to herein as the "Section 1iija)(igger Date"), then the Company shall be oateyl to deliver, upon the surrender for
exercise of a Right and without requiring paymeithe Purchase Price, shares of Common Stock ¢extent available) and then, if
necessary, cash, which shares and/or cash hayggeggate value equal to the Spread. For purposihe gireceding sentence, the term
"Spread" shall mean the excess of (i) the
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Current Value over (ii) the Purchase Price. If Board determines in good faith that it is likelattsufficient additional shares of Common
Stock could be authorized for issuance upon exeinifull of the Rights, the thirty (30) day periedt forth above may be extended to the
extent necessary, but not more than ninety (903 détgr the Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger Date, in arthat the Company may seek shareholder
approval for the authorization of such additiortares (such thirty (30) day period, as it may kerked, is herein called the "Substitution
Period"). To the extent that action is to be tagersuant to the first and/or third sentences of Sgction 11(a)(iii), the Company (1) shall
provide, subject to Section 7(e) hereof, that ;action shall apply uniformly to all outstanding Rig, and (2) may suspend the exercisability
of the Rights until the expiration of the SubstitntPeriod in order to seek such shareholder agprfov such authorization of additional
shares and/or to decide the appropriate form dfiligion to be made pursuant to such first sergeam to determine the value thereof. In the
event of any such suspension, the Company sha# s$ublic announcement stating that the exeiitityadff the Rights has been temporarily
suspended, as well as a public announcement atisuelas the suspension is no longer in effect.geoposes of this Section

11(a)(iii), the value of each Adjustment Share Ishalthe Current Market Price per share of CommockSon the Section 11(a)(ii) Trigger
Date and the per share or per unit value of angesti@Common Stock Equivalent shall be deemed talettpe Current Market Price per share
of Common Stock on such date.

(b) In case the Company shall fix a record datetierissuance of rights, options or warrants ttaltlers of Preferred Stock entitling them to
subscribe for or purchase (for a period expirinthimi forty-five (45) calendar days after such recdate) Preferred Stock (or shares having
the same rights, privileges and preferences ashhees of Preferred Stock ("equivalent preferredis)) or securities convertible into
Preferred Stock or equivalent preferred stock@iae per share of Preferred Stock or per shaegoivalent preferred stock (or having a
conversion price per share, if a security convkstibto Preferred Stock or equivalent preferredlstdess than the current market price (as
determined pursuant to Section 11(d) hereof) paresbf Preferred Stock on such record date, theh@se Price to be in effect after such
record date shall be determined by multiplyingBluechase Price in effect immediately prior to stedord date by a fraction, the numerator
of which shall be the number of shares of PrefeBtetk outstanding on such record date, plus theben of shares of Preferred Stock which
the aggregate offering price of the total numbeshafres of Preferred Stock and/or equivalent pedestock so to be offered (and/or the
aggregate initial conversion price of the convégtiecurities so to be offered) would purchaseielh €urrent market price, and the
denominator of which shall be the number of shafdareferred Stock outstanding on such record gétis,the number of additional share:
Preferred Stock and/or
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equivalent preferred stock to be offered for supsion or purchase (or into which the convertibdewsrities so to be offered are initially
convertible). In case such subscription price mayaid by delivery of consideration part or alldfich may be in a form other than cash, the
value of such consideration shall be as determimgdod faith by the Board of Directors of the Camp, whose determination shall be
described in a statement filed with the Rights Agamd shall be binding on the Rights Agent anchtblders of the Rights. Shares of Prefel
Stock owned by or held for the account of the Camypehall not be deemed outstanding for the purpbs@y such computation. Such
adjustment shall be made successively wheneverasuetord date is fixed, and in the event that sigttts or warrants are not so issued, the
Purchase Price shall be adjusted to be the Puréhas=which would then be in effect if such recdede had not been fixed.

(c) In case the Company shall fix a record dateafdistribution to all holders of Preferred Stoticluding any such distribution made in
connection with a consolidation or merger in whilte Company is the continuing corporation) of eniks of indebtedness, cash (other than
a regular quarterly cash dividend out of the eaymior retained earnings of the Company), assdisi(tlian a dividend payable in Preferred
Stock, but including any dividend payable in stotiker than Preferred Stock) or subscription riginte/arrants (excluding those referred to in
Section 11(b) hereof), the Purchase Price to ledfact after such record date shall be determiryehtiltiplying the Purchase Price in effect
immediately prior to such record date by a fractible numerator of which shall be the current miapkiee (as determined pursuant to
Section 11(d) hereof) per share of Preferred Stockuch record date, less the fair market valudétsrmined in good faith by the Board of
Directors of the Company, whose determination dhallescribed in a statement filed with the Rigtgsnt) of the portion of the cash, assets
or evidences of indebtedness so to be distributed such subscription rights or warrants applieabl a share of Preferred Stock and the
denominator of which shall be such current markieep(as determined pursuant to Section 11(d) epsw share of Preferred Stock. Such
adjustments shall be made successively whenevhrasterord date is fixed, and in the event thah slistribution is not so made, the
Purchase Price shall be adjusted to be the Puréhas=which would have been in effect if such rdadate had not been fixed.

(d) (i) For the purpose of any computation hereunaher than computations made pursuant to Sedti¢a)(iii) hereof, the Current Market
Price per share of Common Stock on any date shalelemed to be the average of the daily closirgggmer such share of Common Stock
for the thirty (30) consecutive Trading Days imnadly prior to such date, and for purposes of cdatmns made pursuant to Section 11(a)
(iii) hereof, the Current Market Price per shar€€ofmmon Stock on any date shall be deemed to bavifrage of the daily closing prices per
such share of Common Stock for the ten (10) corisectlirading Days immediately following such daegvided, however, that in the event
that the Current Market Price per share of ComntorlSis determined during a period following th@auncement by the issuer of such
share of Common Stock of (A) a dividend or disttibn on such share of Common Stock payable in shahnes of Common Stocks or
securities convertible into shares of such ComntogkS(other than the Rights), or (B) any subdivisicombination or reclassification of st
shares of Common Stock, and the ex-dividend datsuioh dividend or distribution, or the record datesuch subdivision, combination or
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reclassification shall not have occurred priortte tommencement of the requisite thirty (30) Trgdday or ten (10) Trading Day period, as
set forth above, then, and in each such case,uhe@ Market Price shall be properly adjustedatetinto account ex-dividend trading. The
closing price for each day shall be the last set@pregular way, or, in case no such sale taleemn such day, the average of the closing
bid and asked prices, regular way, in either caseported in the principal consolidated transactéporting system with respect to securities
listed or admitted to trading on the New York Staoichange or, if the shares of Common Stock ardistet! or admitted to trading on the
New York Stock Exchange, as reported in the prisogonsolidated transaction reporting system wepect to securities listed on

principal national securities exchange on whichsihares of Common Stock are listed or admittedatdirig or, if the shares of Common
Stock are not listed or admitted to trading on aatjonal securities exchange, the last quoted prici not so quoted, the average of the high
bid and low asked prices in the over-the-counterketaas reported by the National Association afusiées Dealers, Inc. Automated
Quotation System (the "NASDAQ") or such other systhen in use, or, if on any such date the shd&r€ommon Stock are not quoted by
any such organization, the average of the closid@id asked prices as furnished by a professioagket maker making a market in the
shares of Common Stock selected by the Board. #mynsuch date no market maker is making a mankttei Common Shares, the fair value
of such shares on such date as determined in gdthdofy the Board shall be used. The term "Traddag" shall mean a day on which the
principal national securities exchange on whichGeenmon Stock is listed or admitted to tradingpgo for the transaction of business or, if
the Common Stock is not listed or admitted to tngdin any national securities exchange, a BusibagsIf the Common Stock is not
publicly held or not so listed or traded, Currerdarikket Price per share shall mean the fair valuespare as determined in good faith by the
Board, whose determination shall be describedstagment filed with the Rights Agent and shaltbaclusive for all purposes.

(i) For the purpose of any computation hereunttex,Current Market Price per share of PreferrediSshall be determined in the same
manner as set forth above for the Common Stoclainse (i) of this

Section 11(d) (other than the last sentence therafie Current Market Price per share of Pref@rEtock cannot be determined in the
manner provided above or if the Preferred Stoctoispublicly held or listed or traded in a mannesatibed in clause (i) of this Section 11(d),
the Current Market Price per share of PreferrediSshall be conclusively deemed to be an amouralgqul,000 (as such number may be
appropriately adjusted for such events as stodgtssptock dividends and recapitalizations withpext to the Common Stock occurring after
the date of this Agreement) multiplied by the Catielarket Price per shares of Common Stock. Ifhegithe Common Stock nor the
Preferred Stock is publicly held or so listed @ded, Current Market Price per share of the PredeBtock shall mean the fair value per share
as determined in good faith by the Board, whoserdehation shall be described in a statement filét the Rights Agent and shall be
conclusive for all purposes.

(e) Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding adjustment in the Purchase Price shall benegjunless such adjustment would
require an increase or decrease of at least orgemgfl%) in the Purchase Price; provided, howehet,any adjustments which by reason of
this
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Section 11(e) are not required to be made shaihb@ed forward and taken into account in any sgbsat adjustment. All calculations under
this Section 11 shall be made to the nearest edntthe nearest ten-thousandth of a share of CamBback or other share or one-ten
millionth of a share of Preferred Stock, as theeaaay be. Notwithstanding the first sentence «f 8ection

11(e), any adjustment required by this Sectiont&ll $e made no later than the earlier of three/€23s from the date of the transaction w
mandates such adjustment, or (ii) the ExpiratioteDa

(f) If as a result of an adjustment made pursua@dction 11(a)(ii) or Section 13(a) hereof, thielbpof any Right thereafter exercised shall
become entitled to receive any shares of capitaksdther than Preferred Stock, thereafter the rurobsuch other shares so receivable upon
exercise of any Right and the Purchase Price thehadl be subject to adjustment from time to tim@ manner and on terms as nearly
equivalent as practicable to the provisions wigpeet to the Preferred Stock contained in Sectiddfas), (b), (c), (e), (9), (h), (i), (j), (k) and
(m), and the provisions of Sections 7, 9, 10, 18 B hereof with respect to the Preferred Stock apaly on like terms to any such other
shares.

(9) All Rights originally issued by the Company safjuent to any adjustment made to the Purchase lRgfeunder shall evidence the right to
purchase, at the adjusted Purchase Price, the mwhbee one-thousandths of a share of PreferreckS§turchasable from time to time
hereunder upon exercise of the Rights, all subgefitrther adjustment as provided herein.

(h) Unless the Company shall have exercised itgiefeas provided in Section 11(i), upon each ddjest of the Purchase Price as a result of
the calculations made in Sections 11(b) and (ch &ight outstanding immediately prior to the makef such adjustment shall thereafter
evidence the right to purchase, at the adjustedhase Price, that number of one one-thousandthsbére of Preferred Stock (calculated to
the nearest one-ten millionth) obtained by (i) iplying (X) the number of one one-thousandths share covered by a Right immediately
prior to this adjustment, by (y) the Purchase Piniceffect immediately prior to such adjustmentted Purchase Price, and (ii) dividing the
product so obtained by the Purchase Price in efffettediately after such adjustment of the Purchasee.

(i) The Company may elect on or after the datengfadjustment of the Purchase Price to adjust tineber of Rights, in lieu of any
adjustment in the number of one one-thousandtlassbfare of Preferred Stock purchasable upon theisgef a Right. Each of the Rights
outstanding after the adjustment in the numberigh® shall be exercisable for the number of onethiwusandths of a share of Preferred
Stock for which a Right was exercisable immediafeipr to such adjustment. Each Right held of rdqmior to such adjustment of the
number of Rights shall become that number of Ri¢gtdtculated to the nearest one-ten-thousandti@iredd by dividing the Purchase Price in
effect immediately prior to adjustment of the Parsd Price by the Purchase Price in effect immdgiateer adjustment of the Purchase Pi
The Company shall make a public announcement eléistion to adjust the number of Rights, indiogtine record date for the adjustment,
and, if known at the time, the amount of the adnestt to be made. This record date may be the datehach the Purchase Price is adjuste
any day thereafter, but, if the Rights
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Certificates have been issued, shall be at leagtl®) days later than the date of the public annement. If Rights Certificates have been
issued, upon each adjustment of the number of Rigintsuant to this Section 11(i), the Company shalpromptly as practicable, cause to be
distributed to holders of record of Rights Certiies on such record date Rights Certificates evidgnsubject to Section 14 hereof, the
additional Rights to which such holders shall betlex as a result of such adjustment, or, at {ht@a of the Company, shall cause to be
distributed to such holders of record in substitutand replacement for the Rights Certificates bglduch holders prior to the date of
adjustment, and upon surrender thereof, if requirethe Company, new Rights Certificates evidenaith¢he Rights to which such holders
shall be entitled after such adjustment. Rightdifizates so to be distributed shall be issuedcaterl and countersigned in the manner
provided for herein (and may bear, at the optiothefCompany, the adjusted Purchase Price) andbshedgistered in the names of the
holders of record of Rights Certificates on theordadate specified in the public announcement.

(j) Irrespective of any adjustment or change inRiiechase Price or the number of one one- thousarfdt share of Preferred Stock issuable
upon the exercise of the Rights, the Rights Cediéis theretofore and thereafter issued may cantmaxpress the Purchase Price per one
one-thousandth of a share and the number of on¢hosandth of a share which were expressed imiti@ Rights Certificates issued
hereunder.

(k) Before taking any action that would cause gustthent reducing the Purchase Price below the stetrd value, if any, of the number of
one one-thousandths of a share of Preferred S¢salable upon exercise of the Rights, the Compaaly tsike any corporate action which
may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessanyrdter that the Company may validly and legallyéstully paid and nonassessable such
number of one one-thousandth of a share of Pref&teck at such adjusted Purchase Price.

() In any case in which this Section 11 shall iegjthat an adjustment in the Purchase Price berafidctive as of a record date for a
specified event, the Company may elect to defdt th&t occurrence of such event the issuance thdhder of any Right exercised after such
record date the number of one one-thousandthslohee of Preferred Stock and other capital stodeourities of the Company, if any,
issuable upon such exercise over and above theetushbne one-thousandths of a share of Prefert@zk®nd other capital stock or
securities of the Company, if any, issuable uparh@xercise on the basis of the Purchase Prickeiat @rior to such adjustment; provided,
however, that the Company shall deliver to suclki¢woh due bill or other appropriate instrument emnimng such holder's right to receive such
additional shares (fractional or otherwise) or sities upon the occurrence of the event requiringhsadjustment.

(m) Anything in this Section 11 to the contrarywibhstanding, the Company shall be entitled to nslkeh reductions in the Purchase Price,
in addition to those adjustments expressly requisethis Section 11, as and to the extent thateir good faith judgment the Board of
Directors of the Company shall determine to be sathle in order that any (i) consolidation or suision of the Preferred Stock, (ii) issuance
wholly for cash of any shares of Preferred Stock at
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less than the current market price, (i) issuawbelly for cash of shares of Preferred Stock ousiées which by their terms are convertible
into or exchangeable for shares of Preferred Si@ckstock dividends or (v) issuance of rightstiops or warrants referred to in this Section
11, hereafter made by the Company to holders &fri¢éerred Stock shall not be taxable to such siodders.

(n) The Company covenants and agrees that it sbglat any time after the Distribution Date, @nhsolidate with any other Person (other
than a Subsidiary of the Company in a transactibitlivcomplies with Section 11(0) hereof), (i) mengith or into any other Person (other
than a Subsidiary of the Company in a transactibithvcomplies with Section 11(0) hereof), or

(iii) sell or transfer (or permit any Subsidiarydell or transfer), in one transaction, or a sesfe®lated transactions, assets or earning power
aggregating more than 50% of the assets or eaptngr of the Company and its Subsidiaries (takem&hole) to any other Person or
Persons (other than the Company and/or any olitsifliaries in one or more transactions each o€wbomplies with Section 11(0) hereof),
if (x) at the time of or immediately after such solidation, merger or sale there are any rightsyams or other instruments or securities
outstanding or agreements in effect which wouldssartially diminish or otherwise eliminate the biisentended to be afforded by the
Rights or (y) prior to, simultaneously with or imdiately after such consolidation, merger or sdle,ghareholders of the Person who
constitutes, or would constitute, the "PrincipattiPafor purposes of Section 13(a) hereof shalldheaceived a distribution of Rights
previously owned by such Person or any of its Adfds and Associates.

(o) The Company covenants and agrees that, adpbidtribution Date, it will not, except as perraidtby Section 23 or Section 26 hereof,
(or permit any Subsidiary to take) any action ifreg time such action is taken it is reasonablgdeeable that such action will diminish
substantially or otherwise eliminate the benefitended to be afforded by the Rights.

(p) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary nithstanding, in the event that the Company shalhgttime after the Rights Dividend
Declaration Date and prior to the Distribution D@jaleclare a dividend on the outstanding shaf€doonmon Stock payable in shares of
Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding shaféSommon Stock, or (iii) combine the outstandégres of Common Stock into a
smaller number of shares, the number of Rightscéestsal with each share of Common Stock then oudgtgnor issued or delivered therea
but prior to the Distribution Date, shall be projamately adjusted so that the number of Rightsaiiéer associated with each share of
Common Stock following any such event shall eghalresult obtained by multiplying the number of lRggassociated with each share of
Common Stock immediately prior to such event byaatfon the numerator of which shall be the totahber of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately prior to the occurrencéhefevent and the denominator of which shall bedte number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding immediately following the occuae of such event.

Section 12. Certificate of Adjusted Purchase PoicBumber of Shares. Whenever an adjustment is msgbeovided in Section 11 and
Section 13 hereof, the Company shall (a) prompthpare a certificate setting forth such adjustnagct a brief statement of the facts
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accounting for such adjustment, (b) promptly filehathe Rights Agent, and with each transfer adenthe Preferred Stock and the Common
Stock, a copy of such certificate, and (c) maitause the Rights Agent to mail a brief summaryebito each holder of a Rights Certificate
(or, if prior to the Distribution Date, to each det of a certificate representing shares of ComBtogk) in accordance with Section 25 het
The Rights Agent shall be fully protected in relyion any such certificate and on any adjustmemetheontained.

Section 13. Consolidation, Merger or Sale or Tranef Assets or Earning Power.

(@) In the event that, following the Stock Acqusit Date, directly or indirectly, (x) the Compartyadl consolidate with, or merge with and
into, any other Person (other than a Subsidiath@Company in a transaction which complies withti®®a 11(o) hereof), and the Company
shall not be the continuing or surviving corporataf such consolidation or merger, (y) any Persdhgr than a Subsidiary of the Compan

a transaction which complies with Section 11(oklérshall consolidate with, or merge with or infee Company, and the Company shall be
the continuing or surviving corporation of such solidation or merger and, in connection with suchsolidation or merger, all or part of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be chaimjedr exchanged for stock or other securitiearof other Person or cash or any other
property, or (z) the Company shall sell or otheeatimnsfer (or one or more of its SubsidiariesIg®l or otherwise transfer), in one
transaction or a series of related transactiorsgta®r earning power aggregating more than 508tecdissets or earning power of the
Company and its Subsidiaries (taken as a wholahyoPerson or Persons (other than the Companyyd8aiosidiary of the Company in one
or more transactions each of which complies witttiSa 11(0) hereof), then, and in each such casse(# as may be contemplated by
Section 13(d) hereof), proper provision shall belengo that: (i) each holder of a Right, exceptrasiged in Section 7(e) hereof, shall
thereafter have the right to receive, upon theagerthereof at the then current Purchase Prieaedordance with the terms of this Agreem
such number of validly authorized and issued, fplyd, non-assessable and freely tradeable shi€smamon Stock of the Principal Party
(as such term is hereinafter defined), not sultgeeny liens, encumbrances, rights of first refusadther adverse claims, as shall be equal to
the result obtained by (1) multiplying the thenreat Purchase Price by the number of one one-thadltiss of a share of Preferred Stock for
which a Right is exercisable immediately priortie first occurrence of a Section 13 Event (or, $feaction 11(a)(ii) Event has occurred prior
to the first occurrence of a Section 13 Event, iplyiing the number of such one one-thousandthssifaae for which a Right was exercisable
immediately prior to the first occurrence of a $metl1(a)(ii) Event by the Purchase Price in effewnediately prior to such first occurrenc
and dividing that product (which, following thediroccurrence of a Section 13 Event, shall be mefieio as the "Purchase Price" for each
Right and for all purposes of this Agreement) by52% of the Current Market Price per share of@benmon Stock of such Principal Party
on the date of consummation of such Section 13 E{&nsuch Principal Party shall thereafter keblie for, and shall assume, by virtue of
such Section 13 Event, all the obligations andedubf the Company pursuant to this Agreement;tfig)term "Company" shall thereafter be
deemed to refer to such Principal Party, it beimgctfically intended that the provisions of Sectidnhereof shall apply only to such Principal
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Party following the first occurrence of a SectighBvent; (iv) such Principal Party shall take sat#ps (including, but not limited to, the
reservation of a sufficient number of shares o€itsnmon Stock) in connection with the consummatibany such transaction as may be
necessary to assure that the provisions heredfthlea¢after be applicable, as nearly as reasomahblybe, in relation to its shares of Comr
Stock thereafter deliverable upon the exercisé@Rights; and (v) the provisions of Section 11ijé)éreof shall be of no effect following t
first occurrence of any Section 13 Event.

(b) "Principal Party" shall mean

(i) in the case of any transaction described ins#a(x) or

(y) of the first sentence of Section 13(a), thesBerthat is the issuer of any securities into wisichres of Common Stock of the Company are
converted in such merger or consolidation, anai§acurities are so issued, the Person that isttiee party to such merger or consolidation;
and

(i) in the case of any transaction described ausk (z) of the first sentence of Section 13(&) Rérson that is the party receiving the greatest
portion of the assets or earning power transfgoregduant to such transaction or transactions;

provided, however, that in any such case, (1)déf@mmon Stock of such Person is not at such timdéhas not been continuously over the
preceding twelve (12) month period registered ur@tmtion 12 of the Exchange Act, and such Persartieect or indirect Subsidiary of
another Person the Common Stock of which is andbeas so registered, "Principal Party" shall rédesuch other Person; and (2) in case
such Person is a Subsidiary, directly or indireafymore than one Person, the Common Stock ofomaore of which are and have been so
registered, "Principal Party" shall refer to whigbeof such Persons is the issuer of the CommockStaving the greatest aggregate market
value.

(c) The Company shall not consummate any such tidason, merger, sale or transfer unless the lraidParty shall have a sufficient
number of authorized shares of its Common Stocklwhave not been issued or reserved for issuanertoit the exercise in full of the
Rights in accordance with this Section 13 and unper thereto the Company and such PrincipalyPdrall have executed and delivered to
the Rights Agent a supplemental agreement proviftinthe terms set forth in paragraphs (a) anaf{lhis

Section 13 and further providing that, as soonrastjzable after the date of any consolidation,gaepr sale of assets mentioned in parac
(a) of this

Section 13, the Principal Party will

(i) prepare and file a registration statement uriderAct, with respect to the Rights and the séiesrpurchasable upon exercise of the Rights
on an appropriate form, and will use its best effto
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cause such registration statement to (A) beconeetefE as soon as practicable after such filing @)demain effective (with a prospectus at
all times meeting the requirements of the Act) luh# Expiration Date; and

(i) will deliver to holders of the Rights histogtfinancial statements for the Principal Party aadh of its Affiliates which comply in all
respects with the requirements for registratiofrorm 10 under the Exchange Act.

The provisions of this Section 13 shall similarfyply to successive mergers or consolidations @ssal other transfers. In the event that a
Section 13 Event shall occur at any time afterdteurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event, the Righitéch have not theretofore been exercised
shall thereafter become exercisable in the manestribed in Section 13(a).

(d) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreementlte tontrary,

Section 13 shall not be applicable to a transaat&stribed in subparagraphs

(x) and (y) of Section 13(a) if (i) such transantie consummated with a Person or Persons whoraehsiares of Common Stock pursuant to
a Qualifying Offer (or a wholly owned subsidiaryarfy such Person or Persons), (ii) the price paresbf Common Stock offered in such
transaction is not less than the price per shafgoaimon Stock paid to all holders of shares of ComiBtock whose shares were purchased
pursuant to such tender offer or exchange offer and

(iii) the form of consideration being offered tathemaining holders of shares of Common Stock @umtsto such transaction is the same as
the form of consideration paid pursuant to suclleemffer or exchange offer. Upon consummationmyf such transaction contemplated by
this Section 13(d), all Rights hereunder shall expi

Section 14. Fractional Rights and Fractional Shares

(a) The Company shall not be required to issudifmas of Rights, except prior to the Distributioate as provided in Section 11(p) hereof, or
to distribute Rights Certificates which evidencacfional Rights. In lieu of such fractional Rightsgre shall be paid to the registered holders
of the Rights Certificates with regard to whichlsfiactional Rights would otherwise be issuableaarount in cash equal to the same frac

of the current market value of a whole Right. Forpgmses of this Section 14(a), the current markktesof a whole Right shall be the closing
price of the Rights for the Trading Day immediatptior to the date on which such fractional Rightsuld have been otherwise issuable. The
closing price of the Rights for any day shall be ldst sale price, regular way, or, in case no satdtakes place on such day, the average of
the closing bid and asked prices, regular wayitlree case as reported in the principal consol@i&t@nsaction reporting system with respect
to securities listed or admitted to trading onMtlev York Stock Exchange or, if the Rights are msiet or admitted to trading on the New
York Stock Exchange, as reported in the principalsolidated transaction reporting system with resfmesecurities listed on the principal
national securities exchange on which the Rigtgdiated or admitted to trading, or if the Righte aot listed or admitted to trading on any
national securities exchange, the last quoted price
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or, if not so quoted, the average of the high Inid law asked prices in the over-the-counter madeteported by NASDAQ or such other
system then in use or, if on any such date thetRigte not quoted by any such organization, theageeof the closing bid and asked prices as
furnished by a professional market maker makingagket in the Rights selected by the Board of Doexbf the Company. If on any such
date no such market maker is making a market imRtghts the fair value of the Rights on such datdetermined in good faith by the Board
of Directors of the Company shall be used.

(b) The Company shall not be required to issudifyas of shares of Preferred Stock (other thartifsas which are integral multiples of one
one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock) epercise of the Rights or to distribute certificatehich evidence fractional shares of
Preferred Stock (other than fractions which aregral multiples of one one-thousandth of a shafereferred Stock). In lieu of fractional
shares of Preferred Stock that are not integratiphe$ of one one-thousandth of a share of PredeBteck, the Company may pay to the
registered holders of Rights Certificates at theetsuch Rights are exercised as herein providesraunt in cash equal to the same fraction
of the current market value of one one-thousantithahare of Preferred Stock. For purposes of3bigion 14(b), the current market value of
one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Staklshone one-thousandth of the closing price stiare of Preferred Stock (as determined
pursuant to

Section 11(d)(ii) hereof) for the Trading Day imreadly prior to the date of such exercise.

(c) Following the occurrence of a Triggering Evehg Company shall not be required to issue frastimf shares of Common Stock upon
exercise of the Rights or to distribute certifisatehich evidence fractional shares of Common Stbickeu of fractional shares of Common
Stock, the Company may pay to the registered heldeRights Certificates at the time such Rightserercised as herein provided an am
in cash equal to the same fraction of the curraarket value of one (1) shares of Common Stock plagposes of this

Section 14(c), the current market value of onesb&iCommon Stock shall be the closing price of sim&re of Common Stock (as determi
pursuant to

Section 11(d)(i) hereof) for the Trading Day imnedly prior to the date of such exercise.

(d) The holder of a Right by the acceptance ofRlghts expressly waives his or her right to receaing fractional Rights or any fractional
shares upon exercise of a Right, except as pethbitehis Section 14.

Section 15. Rights of Action. All rights of actiomrespect of this Agreement are vested in thee@sge registered holders of the Rights
Certificates (and, prior to the Distribution Datiiee registered holders of the Common Stock); aryd@gistered holder of any Rights
Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Date, thie Common Stock), without the consent of the Rigtgent or of the holder of any other
Rights Certificate (or, prior to the Distributiorai2, of the Common Stock), may, in his or her owhalf and for his or her own benefit,
enforce, and may institute and maintain any suattpa or proceeding against the Company to enfartetherwise act in respect of, his or her
right to exercise the Rights evidenced by such Rigtertificate in the
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manner provided in such Rights Certificate anchia Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing oryaremedies available to the holders of
Rights, it is specifically acknowledged that thédeos of Rights would not have an adequate remethwafor any breach of this Agreement
and shall be entitled to specific performance efabligations hereunder and injunctive relief agaattual or threatened violations of the
obligations hereunder of any Person subject toAgizement.

Section 16. Agreement of Rights Holders. Every &plaf a Right by accepting the same consents aregkagvith the Company and the Ric
Agent and with every other holder of a Right that:

(a) prior to the Distribution Date, the Rights wikk transferable only in connection with the transeff Common Stock;

(b) after the Distribution Date, the Rights Cedifies are transferable only on the registry bobkiseoRights Agent if surrendered at the
principal office or offices of the Rights Agent dgsated for such purposes, duly endorsed or accoiegdy a proper instrument of transfer
and with the appropriate forms and certificatefy/fakecuted;

(c) subject to Section 6(a) and Section 7(f) hergef Company and the Rights Agent may deem aatlttie person in whose name a Rights
Certificate (or, prior to the Distribution Dategthssociated Common Stock certificate) is regidtasethe absolute owner thereof and of the
Rights evidenced thereby (notwithstanding any mmtatof ownership or writing on the Rights Cerifies or the associated Common Stock
certificate made by anyone other than the CompanlyeoRights Agent) for all purposes whatsoeved, rgither the Company nor the Rights
Agent, subject to the last sentence of

Section 7(e) hereof, shall be required to be affiébly any notice to the contrary; and

(d) notwithstanding anything in this Agreementhe tontrary, neither the Company nor the Rightsrigball have any liability to any holc
of a Right or other Person as a result of its ilitgkio perform any of its obligations under thig#ement by reason of any preliminary or
permanent injunction or other order, decree onguissued by a court of competent jurisdiction yalgovernmental, regulatory or
administrative agency or commission, or any statuile, regulation or executive order promulgateémacted by any governmental autho
prohibiting or otherwise restraining performancesoth obligation; provided, however, the Compangimse its best efforts to have any ¢
order, decree or ruling lifted or otherwise ovemtedt as soon as possible.

Section 17. Rights Certificate Holder Not Deemeghareholder. No holder, as such, of any Rightsifi@ate shall be entitled to vote, receive
dividends or be deemed for any purpose the holfftreonumber of on¢housandths of a share of Preferred Stock or admgr stecurities of tr
Company which may at any time be issuable on tleecese of the Rights represented thereby, nor singthing contained herein or in any
Rights Certificate be construed to confer uponhibleler of any Rights Certificate, as such, anyhefrights of a shareholder of the Company
or any
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right to vote for the election of directors or upmmy matter submitted to shareholders at any ngeétigreof, or to give or withhold consent to
any corporate action, or to receive notice of nmggstior other actions affecting shareholders (exagprrovided in Section 24 hereof), or to
receive dividends or subscription rights, or othieeyuntil the Right or Rights evidenced by suchh® Certificate shall have been exercised
in accordance with the provisions hereof.

Section 18. Concerning the Rights Agent.

(a) The Company agrees to pay to the Rights Agsasanable compensation for all services renderédhgyeunder and, from time to time,
on demand of the Rights Agent, its reasonable esggeand counsel fees and disbursements and oshersiments incurred in the
administration and execution of this Agreement iedexercise and performance of its duties hereufithe Company also agrees to
indemnify the Rights Agent for, and to hold it hdess against, any loss, liability, or expense, irediwithout negligence, bad faith or willful
misconduct on the part of the Rights Agent, forthimg done or omitted by the Rights Agent in coriwgcwith the acceptance and
administration of this Agreement, including readdeattorneys' fees and expenses and the cosexardses of defending against any claim
of liability in the premises. In no case will thégRts Agent be liable for special, indirect, inaii@ or consequential loss or damage of any
kind whatsoever (including but not limited to I@sbfits), even if the Rights Agent has been adviskttie possibility of such damages. Any
liability of the Rights Agent will be limited to thamount of fees paid by the Company hereundes. Thi

Section 18(a) shall survive the termination of thggeement.

(b) The Rights Agent shall be protected and shalli no liability for or in respect of any actiaken, suffered or omitted by it in connection
with its administration of this Agreement in rel@nupon any Rights Certificate or certificate fan@non Stock or for other securities of the
Company, instrument of assignment or transfer, pafattorney, endorsement, affidavit, letter, oetidirection, consent, certificate,
statement, or other paper or document believed taytie genuine and to be signed, executed andewtezessary, verified or acknowledged,
by the proper Person or Persons.

Section 19. Merger or Consolidation or Change ahNa@f Rights Agent.

(a) Any corporation into which the Rights Agentamy successor Rights Agent may be merged or witbtwihmay be consolidated, or any
corporation resulting from any merger or consol@ato which the Rights Agent or any successor Rigtgent shall be a party, or any
corporation succeeding to the corporate trust arediolder services business of the Rights Ageahgrsuccessor Rights Agent, shall be the
successor to the Rights Agent under this Agreemvéhbut the execution or filing of any paper or dayther act on the part of any of the
parties hereto; provided, however, that such catmr would be eligible for appointment as a suscefights Agent under the provisions of
Section 21 hereof. In case at the time such suoc&ghts Agent shall succeed to the agency crdatdtiis Agreement, any of the Rights
Certificates shall have been countersigned butlalitered, any such successor Rights Agent maytdatepountersignature
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of a predecessor Rights Agent and deliver suchtRigkrtificates so countersigned; and in caseatitime any of the Rights Certificates st
not have been countersigned, any successor RiglgistAnay countersign such Rights Certificates eithéhe name of the predecessor or in
the name of the successor Rights Agent; and isuah cases such Rights Certificates shall haviuthi®rce provided in the Rights
Certificates and in this Agreement.

(b) In case at any time the name of the Rights Agkall be changed and at such time any of thetRigkrtificates shall have been
countersigned but not delivered, the Rights Ageay mdopt the countersignature under its prior nantedeliver Rights Certificates so
countersigned; and in case at that time any oRigbts Certificates shall not have been counteesigithe Rights Agent may countersign such
Rights Certificates either in its prior name oitgichanged name; and in all such cases such Rigntfficates shall have the full force
provided in the Rights Certificates and in this égment.

Section 20. Duties of Rights Agent. The Rights Agerdertakes the duties and obligations imposethisyAgreement upon the following
terms and conditions, by all of which the Compang the holders of Rights Certificates, by theirggtance thereof, shall be bound:

(a) The Rights Agent may consult with legal courfag¢lo may be legal counsel for the Company), aedoinion of such counsel shall be
full and complete authorization and protectionhie Rights Agent as to any action taken or omitted m good faith and in accordance with
such opinion.

(b) Whenever in the performance of its duties uridisr Agreement the Rights Agent shall deem it ssagy or desirable that any fact or
matter (including, without limitation, the identitf any Acquiring Person and the determinationaofrfent market price") be proved or
established by the Company prior to taking or suffpany action hereunder, such fact or mattergembther evidence in respect thereof be
herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed todoelusively proved and established by a certficagned by the Chairman of the Board,
the President, any Vice President, the TreasungrAasistant Treasurer, the Secretary or any AmgiSecretary of the Company and
delivered to the Rights Agent; and such certificsdtall be full authorization to the Rights Agent &my action taken or suffered in good faith
by it under the provisions of this Agreement inaete upon such certificate.

(c) The Rights Agent shall be liable hereunder datyits own negligence, bad faith or willful miseduct.

(d) The Rights Agent shall not be liable for orregson of any of the statements of fact or recttaigained in this Agreement or in the Rights
Certificates or be required to verify the same égt@s to its countersignature on such Rights featies), but all such statements and recitals
are and shall be deemed to have been made by thpa®y only.
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(e) The Rights Agent shall not be under any respditg in respect of the validity of this Agreemieor the execution and delivery hereof
(except the due execution hereof by the Rights ganin respect of the validity or execution ofyaRights Certificate (except its
countersignature thereof); nor shall it be resgaador any breach by the Company of any covenaobodition contained in this Agreement
or in any Rights Certificate; nor shall it be respible for any adjustment required under the piows of

Section 11 or Section 13 hereof or responsibléffermanner, method or amount of any such adjustorethe ascertaining of the existence of
facts that would require any such adjustment (eixadth respect to the exercise of Rights evidenmg®ights Certificates after actual notice
of any such adjustment); nor shall it by any acebader be deemed to make any representation oantaras to the authorization or
reservation of any shares of Common Stock or PrerleBtock to be issued pursuant to this Agreemeahy Rights Certificate or as to
whether any shares of Common Stock or PreferreckStdl, when so issued, be validly authorized #@s®lied, fully paid and nonassessable.

() The Company agrees that it will perform, exeguatcknowledge and deliver or cause to be perforeastuted, acknowledged and
delivered all such further and other acts, instmis@nd assurances as may reasonably be requited BRights Agent for the carrying out or
performing by the Rights Agent of the provisiongtié Agreement.

(9) The Rights Agent is hereby authorized and tir@¢o accept instructions with respect to thegrerhnce of its duties hereunder from the
Chairman of the Board, the President, any ViceiBees$, the Secretary, any Assistant SecretaryJthasurer or any Assistant Treasurer of
the Company, and to apply to such officers for eglvr instructions in connection with its dutiesdat shall not be liable for any action taken
or suffered to be taken by it in good faith in aclamce with instructions of any such officer.

(h) The Rights Agent and any shareholder, direcfficer or employee of the Rights Agent may bwsl| er deal in any of the Rights or other
securities of the Company or become pecuniarilgragted in any transaction in which the Company beainterested, or contract with or
lend money to the Company or otherwise act as aly freely as though it were not Rights Agent urthis Agreement. Nothing herein shall
preclude the Rights Agent from acting in any ottegracity for the Company or for any other legaitgnt

() The Rights Agent may execute and exercise ditlgeorights or powers hereby vested in it or perfany duty hereunder either itself or by
or through its attorneys or agents, and the Riggent shall not be answerable or accountable fgraah, default, neglect or misconduct of
any such attorneys or agents or for any loss t@trapany resulting from any such act, default, @etgbr misconduct; provided, however,
reasonable care was exercised in the selectioga@mtthued employment thereof.

()) No provision of this Agreement shall require tRights Agent to expend or risk its own funds thieowise incur any financial liability in
the performance of any of its duties hereundendhé exercise of its rights if there shall be ogable grounds for believing that
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repayment of such funds or adequate indemnificatgminst such risk or liability is not reasonaldgwared to it.

(k) If, with respect to any Right Certificate surdered to the Rights Agent for exercise or trangfer certificate attached to the form of
assignment or form of election to purchase, as#ise may be, has either not been completed omitedi@an affirmative response to clause 1
and/or 2 thereof, the Rights Agent shall not take farther action with respect to such requestest@se of transfer without first consulting
with the Company.

Section 21. Change of Rights Agent. The Rights Agemny successor Rights Agent may resign andsoharged from its duties under this
Agreement upon thirty (30) days' notice in writimgiled to the Company, and to each transfer ageheaCommon Stock and Preferred
Stock, by registered or certified mail, and to tloéders of the Rights Certificates by first-classilmrhe Company may remove the Rights
Agent or any successor Rights Agent upon thirty (B/s' notice in writing, mailed to the Rights Ager successor Rights Agent, as the case
may be, and to each transfer agent of the Commaek $ind Preferred Stock, by registered or certifiexdl, and to the holders of the Rights
Certificates by first-class mail. If the Rights Adeshall resign or be removed or shall otherwiseohee incapable of acting, the Company
shall appoint a successor to the Rights Agenhdf@Gompany shall fail to make such appointmentiwighperiod of thirty (30) days after
giving notice of such removal or after it has beetified in writing of such resignation or incapidby the resigning or incapacitated Rights
Agent or by the holder of a Rights Certificate (wdfll, with such notice, submit his Rights Cettife for inspection by the Company), then
any registered holder of any Rights Certificate rapply to any court of competent jurisdiction foetappointment of a new Rights Agent.
Any successor Rights Agent, whether appointed byGbmpany or by such a court, shall be a corperatiany affiliate of such a corporat
organized and doing business under the laws dfittited States or of the State of New York (or of ather state of the United States so |

as such corporation is authorized to do businessbasking institution in the State of New York),good standing, which is authorized under
such laws to exercise corporate trust powers aadhbgect to supervision or examination by federatate authority and which has at the time
of its appointment as Rights Agent a combined eapitd surplus of at least $100,000,000. After agptent, the successor Rights Agent
shall be vested with the same powers, rights, slatiel responsibilities as if it had been originabiyned as Rights Agent without further ac
deed; but the predecessor Rights Agent shall dedind transfer to the successor Rights Agent aogepty at the time held by it hereunder,
and execute and deliver any further assurance eg@mee, act or deed necessary for the purposdatéothan the effective date of any such
appointment, the Company shall file notice theinafriting with the predecessor Rights Agent andneimansfer agent of the Common Stock
and the Preferred Stock, and mail a notice thdrewfiting to the registered holders of the RigBertificates. Failure to give any notice
provided for in this

Section 21, however, or any defect therein, stalaffect the legality or validity of the resignati or removal of the Rights Agent or the
appointment of the successor Rights Agent, asdbe may be.
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Section 22. Issuance of New Rights Certificateswhithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreerner of the Rights to the contrary, the
Company may, at its option, issue new Rights Geatiés evidencing Rights in such form as may beaygal by its Board of Directors to
reflect any adjustment or change in the Purchaise Bnd the number or kind or class of shareshmraecurities or property purchasable
under the Rights Certificates made in accordantie tive provisions of this Agreement. In additianconnection with the issuance or sale of
shares of Common Stock following the Distributioat® and prior to the redemption or expiration @f Rights, the Company (a) shall, with
respect to shares of Common Stock so issued opsosiant to the exercise of stock options or uadgremployee plan or arrangement,
granted or awarded as of the Distribution Datejpon the exercise, conversion or exchange of dexitiereinafter issued by the Company,
and (b) may, in any other case, if deemed necessappropriate by the Board of Directors of therany, issue Rights Certificates
representing the appropriate number of Rights imeaction with such issuance or sale; provided, wewehat (i) no such Rights Certificate
shall be issued if, and to the extent that, the @amy shall be advised by counsel that such issuanatl create a significant risk of material
adverse tax consequences to the Company or therPersvhom such Rights Certificate would be issweu (i) no such Rights Certificate
shall be issued if, and to the extent that, appatgadjustment shall otherwise have been madeurof the issuance thereof.

Section 23. Redemption and Termination.

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company maytsabption, at any time prior to the earlier oftfig close of business on the tenth day
following the Stock Acquisition Date (or, if thedgk Acquisition Date shall have occurred priortte Record Date, the close of business on
the tenth day following the Record Date), or (iig t=inal Expiration Date, redeem all but not Iésmtall the then outstanding Rights at a
redemption price of $0.001 per Right, as such ammay be appropriately adjusted to reflect anylssptit, stock dividend or similar
transaction occurring after the date hereof (sedemption price being hereinafter referred to as'Redemption Price"). Notwithstanding
anything contained in this Agreement to the cogtrre Rights shall not be exercisable after thst ficcurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Event
until such time as the Company's right of redenmpliereunder has expired. The Company may, at fisrgpay the Redemption Price in
cash, shares of Common Stock (based on the "currarket price", as defined in Section 11(d)(i) loéref the Common Stock at the time of
redemption) or any other form of consideration deérmppropriate by the Board of Directors.

(b) Immediately upon the action of the Board ofd@tors of the Company ordering the redemption eRIghts, evidence of which shall have
been filed with the Rights Agent and without angttier action and without any notice, the right xereise the Rights will terminate and the
only right thereafter of the holders of Rights $hal to receive the Redemption Price for each Rsghteld. Promptly after the action of the
Board of Directors ordering the redemption of thgh®s, the Company shall give notice of such red@ngo the Rights Agent and the
holders of the then outstanding Rights by mailinghsnotice to all such holders at each holdertssldgress as it appears upon the registry
books of the Rights Agent or, prior to the Disttibn Date, on the registry books of the transfesrdador the Common Stock. Any notice
which is mailed in the manner herein
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provided shall be deemed given, whether or nohtiider receives the notice. Each such notice afmgation will state the method by which
the payment of the Redemption Price will be made.

Section 24. Notice of Certain Events.

(@) In case the Company shall propose, at any diitee the Distribution Date, (i) to pay any dividepayable in stock of any class to the
holders of Preferred Stock or to make any othdridigion to the holders of Preferred Stock (otthem a regular quarterly cash dividend out
of earnings or retained earnings of the Compamy(jj)ao offer to the holders of Preferred Stoaghts or warrants to subscribe for or to
purchase any additional shares of Preferred Stoskares of stock of any class or any other séesyitights or options, or (iii) to effect any
reclassification of its Preferred Stock (other thamreclassification involving only the subdivisiohoutstanding shares of Preferred Stock), or
(iv) to effect any consolidation or merger intovath any other Person (other than a Subsidiarjhef@ompany in a transaction which
complies with Section 11(0) hereof), or to effecy @ale or other transfer (or to permit one or nudrigs Subsidiaries to effect any sale or
other transfer), in one transaction or a serigglafed transactions, of more than 50% of the assetarning power of the Company and its
Subsidiaries (taken as a whole) to any other Pess@&ersons (other than the Company and/or anyg &tubsidiaries in one or more
transactions each of which complies with Sectiofo)Lhereof), or (v) to effect the liquidation, ddstion or winding up of the Company,
then, in each such case, the Company shall gieadb holder of a Rights Certificate, to the exfeasible and in accordance with Section 25
hereof, a notice of such proposed action, whicli shacify the record date for the purposes of sstolk dividend, distribution of rights or
warrants, or the date on which such reclassificattonsolidation, merger, sale, transfer, liquiglatidissolution, or winding up is to take plz
and the date of participation therein by the hadsgrthe shares of Preferred Stock, if any such @ato be fixed, and such notice shall be so
given in the case of any action covered by clai)s® (ii) above at least twenty (20) days prioithe record date for determining holders of
the shares of Preferred Stock for purposes of aatibn, and in the case of any such other actioleast twenty (20) days prior to the date of
the taking of such proposed action or the dateadi@pation therein by the holders of the sharfeBreferred Stock whichever shall be the
earlier.

(b) In case any of the events set forth in Sectibfa)(ii) hereof shall occur, then, in any suchecds the Company shall as soon as practic
thereafter give to each holder of a Rights Cedifi¢ to the extent feasible and in accordance Séittion 25 hereof, a notice of the occurrence
of such event, which shall specify the event ardatnsequences of the event to holders of RighteruBection 11(a)(ii) hereof, and (ii) all
references in the preceding paragraph to Pref&teck shall be deemed thereafter to refer to Com&took and/or, if appropriate, other
securities.

Section 25. Notices. Notices or demands authottigeithis Agreement to be given or made by the Riglgtsnt or by the holder of any Rights
Certificate to or on the Company shall be suffitiegiven or made if sent by first-class mail, gt prepaid, addressed(until another addres:
is filed in writing with the Rights Agent) as folics:

-31-



Motorcar Parts & Accessories, Inc. 2727 Maricopa@&tTorrance, California 90503 Attention: Prestden

Subject to the provisions of Section 21, any naticdemand authorized by this Agreement to be garamade by the Company or by the
holder of any Rights Certificate to or on the RgyAgent shall be sufficiently given or made if sbyffirst-class mail, postage prepaid,
addressed (until another address is filed in wgitirith the Company) as follows:

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company Two Rlway
New York, New York 10004 Attention: Compliance Depaent

Notices or demands authorized by this Agreemehgetgiven or made by the Company or the Rights Agetite holder of any Righ
Certificate (or, if prior to the Distribution Dati the holder of certificates representing shaféSommon Stock) shall be sufficiently given
made if sent by first-class mail, postage prepaddiressed to such holder at the address of sudkrted shown on the registry books of the
Company.

Section 26. Supplements and Amendments. Prioret®thtribution Date and subject to the penultinsgrtence of this Section 26, the
Company and the Rights Agent shall, if the Compsmyirects, supplement or amend any provisionisfAlgreement without the approval
any holders of certificates representing shargSashmon Stock. From and after the Distribution Datid subject to the penultimate sentence
of this Section 26, the Company and the Rights Aghkall, if the Company so directs, supplementoerad this Agreement without the
approval of any holders of Rights Certificates idey

(i) to cure any ambiguity, (ii) to correct or supplent any provision contained herein which maydfedative or inconsistent with any other
provisions herein,

(iii) to shorten or lengthen any time period hermem or (iv) to change or supplement the provisioereunder in any manner which the
Company may deem necessary or desirable and whithnot adversely affect the interests of the Bdf Rights Certificates (other than
Acquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associate of Aoquiring Person); provided, this Agreement maylm supplemented or amended to
lengthen, pursuant to clause (iii) of this sentelia¢ a time period relating to when the Rights n@yredeemed at such time as the Rights are
not then redeemable, or (B) any other time perigdas such lengthening is for the purpose of ptistgcenhancing or clarifying the rights
and/or the benefits to, the holders of Rights. Uttendelivery of a certificate from an appropriafficer of the Company which states that the
proposed supplement or amendment is in compliarittetiae terms of this Section 26, the Rights Agamdll execute such supplement or
amendment. Notwithstanding anything contained im Agreement to the contrary, no supplement or aimemt shall be made which chan
the Redemption Price, the Final Expiration Date,Rlurchase Price or the number of one one-thousswila share of Preferred Stock for
which a Right is exercisable.
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Prior to the Distribution Date, the interests & tiolders of Rights shall be deemed coincident thi¢hinterests of the holders of Common
Stock.

Section 27. Successors. All the covenants and gions of this Agreement by or for the benefit af @ompany or the Rights Agent shall b
and inure to the benefit of their respective susaesand assigns hereunder.

Section 28. Determinations and Actions by the Badrirectors, etc. For all purposes of this Agreai any calculation of the number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding at any parti¢mtee, including for purposes of determining thetjzular percentage of such
outstanding shares of Common Stock of which angd?eis the Beneficial Owner, shall be made in at@oce with the last sentence of Rule
13d-3(d)(1)(i) of the General Rules and Regulationder the Exchange Act. The Board of DirectorthefCompany shall have the exclusive
power and authority to administer this Agreement tnexercise all rights and powers specificallgrged to the Board or to the Company, or
as may be necessary or advisable in the admingstrat this Agreement, including, without limitatipthe right and power to (i) interpret the
provisions of this Agreement, and (ii) make allaetatinations deemed necessary or advisable fordimngstration of this Agreement
(including a determination to redeem or not redéieerRights or to amend the Agreement). All sucloast calculations, interpretations and
determinations (including, for purposes of claugeb€low, all omissions with respect to the foregpiwhich are done or made by the Board
in good faith, shall (x) be final, conclusive andding on the Company, the Rights Agent, the halddthe Rights and all other parties, and
(y) not subject the Board to any liability to thelders of the Rights.

Section 29. Benefits of this Agreement. Nothinghis Agreement shall be construed to give to amgdteother than the Company, the Ri¢
Agent and the registered holders of the Rightsif@ztes (and, prior to the Distribution Date, regred holders of the Common Stock) any
legal or equitable right, remedy or claim undes tAgreement; but this Agreement shall be for tHe aad exclusive benefit of the Company,
the Rights Agent and the registered holders oRtights Certificates (and, prior to the DistributiDate, registered holders of the Common
Stock).

Section 30. Severability. If any term, provisionyenant or restriction of this Agreement is heldabgourt of competent jurisdiction or other
authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable, teenainder of the terms, provisions, covenantsrasttictions of this Agreement shall rem
in full force and effect and shall in no way beeated, impaired or invalidated; provided, howetleat notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, if any such term, prioviscovenant or restriction is held by such caurauthority to be invalid, void or
unenforceable and the Board of Directors of the Gamy determines in its good faith judgment thatsieng the invalid language from this
Agreement would adversely affect the purpose aatibf this Agreement, the right of redemptionfeeth in Section 23 hereof shall be
reinstated and shall not expire until the closbudiness on the tenth day following the date ohsletermination by the Board of Directors.
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Section 31. Governing Law. This Agreement, eacthRégnd each Rights Certificate issued hereunddr lshaeemed to be a contract made
under the laws of the State of New York and fopallposes shall be governed by and construed or@acce with the laws of such State
applicable to contracts made and to be performécegnwithin such State.

Section 32. Counterparts. This Agreement may belggd in any number of counterparts and each df saanterparts shall for all purposes
be deemed to be an original, and all such countsrphall together constitute but one and the sasteiment.

Section 33. Descriptive Headings. Descriptive hegsliof the several Sections of this Agreementraserted for convenience only and shall
not control or affect the meaning or constructib@amy of the provisions hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be duly executed and their rasgecorporate seals to be
hereunto affixed and attested, all as of the dalyyaar first above written.

Attest: MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC.

By /sl Peter Bronberg By /'s/ Richard Marks
Name: Peter Bronberg Name: Richard Marks
Title: Chief Financial Oficer Title: President

& Assistant Secretary

Attest: CONTI NENTAL STOCK TRANSFER &
TRUST COVPANY

By /'s/ Tuul i kki Huovi nen By /sl WIlliamF. Seegraber

Name:  Tuul i kki Huovi nen Name: W Illiam F. Seegraber

Title: Assistant Secretary Title: Vice President
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Exhibit A

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

of
MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC.
Under Section 805 of the Business Corporation Lathe State of New York

We the undersigned, Richard Marks, President, &telrBromberg, Assistant Secretary of MotorcarP&rAccessories, Inc., a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the Sthiew York, in accordance with the provisions et8on 104 of the Business Corporation
Law of the State of New York, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

1. The name of the corporation is Motorcar Pariscessories, Inc. (hereinafter called the "Corpord). The name under which the
Corporation was formed was Motorcar Parts & Asgesianc.

2. The Certificate of Incorporation was filed b thepartment of State of the State of New York @nil®2, 1968.

3. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Compaay,amended heretofore (the "Certificate of Incaafon™), is further amended by the
addition of the following provisions stating themiloer, designation, relative rights, preferenceslamithtions of a series of Preferred Shares
of the Company designated as "Series A Juniordfaating Preferred Stock."

4. To accomplish the foregoing amendment, a newose(c) of Article FOURTH is added to the Certdte of Incorporation, which section
(c) of Article FOURTH reads in its entirety as folls:

"(c) SERIES A JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK

(1) Designation and Amount. The shares of suclesatall be designated as "Series A Junior Paatioip Preferred Stock™" and the numbe
shares constituting such series shall be 20,000.

(2) Dividends and Distributions.



(A) The holders of shares of Series A Junior Pigrdittng Preferred Stock shall be entitled to reeeivhen, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors out of funds legally available for therpose, quarterly dividends payable in cash ondkeday of March, June, September and
December in each year (each such date being rdfertgerein as a "Quarterly Dividend Payment Datdinmencing on the first Quarterly
Dividend Payment Date after the first issuance sthare or fraction of a share of Series A Juniati€pating Preferred Stock, in an amount
per share (rounded to the nearest cent) equaétgréater of (a) $0.01 or (b) subject to the piowidor adjustment hereinafter set forth, 1,000
times the aggregate per share amount of all casgthetids, and 1,000 times the aggregate per shavarar{payable in kind) of all non-cash
dividends or other distributions other than a dévid payable in Common Stock or a subdivision ofastanding Common Stock (by
reclassification or otherwise), declared on the @mm Stock since the immediately preceding Quarteiydend Payment Date, or, with
respect to the first Quarterly Dividend PaymenteDatnce the first issuance of any share or fraatifoa share of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock. In the event the Corporation sitadiny time after February 24, 1998 (the "Righ¢slBration Date") (i) declare any dividend
on Common Stock payable in Common Stock, (ii) suldéi the outstanding Common Stock, or (iii) comhiine outstanding Common Stock
into a smaller number of shares, then in each sash the amount to which holders of shares of S&rigunior Participating Preferred Stock
were entitled immediately prior to such event undause (b) of the preceding sentence shall bestatjlby multiplying such amount by a
fraction the numerator of which is the number airgls of Common Stock outstanding immediately aftieh event and the denominator of
which is the number of shares of Common Stockwleae outstanding immediately prior to such event.

(B) The Corporation shall declare a dividend otréisition on the Series A Junior Participating Breéd Stock as provided in Paragraph (A)
above immediately after it declares a dividendistridhution on the Common Stock (other than a divid payable in Common Stock);
provided that, in the event no dividend or disttiba shall have been declared on the Common Stadkgithe period between any Quarterly
Dividend Payment Date and the next subsequent €laRividend Payment Date, a dividend of $0.01 gleare on the Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock shall neverthelesgayable on such subsequent Quarterly Dividend ayDate.

(C) Dividends shall begin to accrue and be cumsatin outstanding shares of Series A Junior Ppdiitig Preferred Stock from the
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date next precedingdde of issue of such shares of Series A JunidicReating Preferred Stock, unless the
date of issue of such shares is prior to the redatd for the first Quarterly Dividend Payment Datewhich case dividends on such shares
shall begin to accrue from the date of issue oh&lares, or unless the date of issue is a QuaRaridend Payment Date or is a date aftel
record date for the determination of holders ofeb@f Series A Junior Participating Preferred Sttitled to receive a quarterly dividend
and before such Quarterly Dividend Payment Datejthrer of which events such dividends shall beégiaccrue and be cumulative from such
Quarterly Dividend Payment Date. Accrued but ungiitiends shall not bear interest. Dividends pmidhe shares of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock in an amount lesa tha total amount of such
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dividends at the time accrued and payable on suates shall be allocated pro rata on a share-lye$tzsis among all such shares at the time
outstanding. The Board of Directors may fix a relcdate for the determination of holders of shafeSasies A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock entitled to receive payment of a dividendlistribution declared thereon, which record datdldie no more than 30 days prior to the
date fixed for the payment thereof.

(3) Voting Rights. The holders of shares of Sefiekinior Participating Preferred Stock shall hawe fbllowing voting rights:

(A) Subject to the provision for adjustment herétieaset forth, each share of Series A Junior Bigeting Preferred Stock shall entitle the
holder thereof to 1,000 votes on all matters sulechito a vote of the shareholders of the Corpanatiothe event the Corporation shall at any
time after the Rights Declaration Date (i) declang dividend on Common Stock payable in CommonlSt@¢ subdivide the outstanding
Common Stock, or (iii) combine the outstanding Camrtock into a smaller number of shares, thermah esuch case the number of votes
per share to which holders of shares of SeriesndodiParticipating Preferred Stock were entitlednediately prior to such event shall be
adjusted by multiplying such number by a fractibe humerator of which is the number of shares sh@on Stock outstanding immediately
after such event and the denominator of whichasilimber of shares of Common Stock that were awdstg immediately prior to such
event.

(B) Except as otherwise provided herein or by Iéhe, holders of shares of Series A Junior Partiziga®referred Stock and the holders of
Common Stock shall vote together as one classlonatiers submitted to a vote of shareholders @Qbrporation.

(C) (i) If at any time dividends on any Series Aidu Participating Preferred Stock shall be in arsan an amount equal to six (6) quarterly
dividends thereon, the occurrence of such contiogshall mark the beginning of a period (hereirlechh "default period") which shall
extend until such time when all accrued and ungdailends for all previous quarterly dividend pe$cand for the current quarterly dividend
period on all shares of Series A Junior ParticigpPreferred Stock then outstanding shall have Heelared and paid or set apart for
payment. During each default period, all holder®iferred Stock (including holders of the Seriedufior Participating Preferred Stock)
with dividends in arrears in an amount equal to(8)xquarterly dividends thereon, voting as a ¢lassspective of series, shall have the right
to elect two (2) directors.

(il) During any default period, such voting righttbe holders of Series A Junior Participating Brefd Stock may be exercised initially at a
special meeting called pursuant to subparagraptofithis

Section 3(C) or at any annual meeting of sharehs)dad thereafter at annual meetings of sharetgylgeovided that such voting right shall
not be exercised unless the holders of ten pe(@@ab) in number of shares of Preferred Stock ontktey shall be present in person or by
proxy. The absence of a quorum of the holders afi@on Stock shall not affect the exercise by thelésa of Preferred Stock of such voting
right. At any meeting at which
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the holders of Preferred Stock shall exercise swting right initially during an existing defaulepod, they shall have the right, voting as a
class, to elect directors to fill such vacancigéany, in the Board of Directors as may then euwjsto two (2) directors or, if such right is
exercised at an annual meeting, to elect two (&cthrs. If the number which may be so electedhgtspecial meeting does not amount to the
required number, the holders of the Preferred Sshell have the right to make such increase imthmeber of directors as shall be necessary
to permit the election by them of the required nemifter the holders of the Preferred Stock shaile exercised their right to elect directors
in any default period and during the continuancsuwh period, the number of directors shall nonbecased or decreased except by vote of
the holders of Preferred Stock as herein providgulicssuant to the rights of any equity securitesking senior to or pari passu with the Se

A Junior Participating Preferred Stock.

(iii) Unless the holders of Preferred Stock shdiring an existing default period, have previowestercised their right to elect directors, the
Board of Directors may order, or, subject to thevisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, aseamded, any stockholder or shareholders
owning in the aggregate not less than ten perd®d6) of the total number of shares of PreferredlStutstanding, irrespective of series,
request, the calling of special meeting of the addbf Preferred Stock, which meeting shall theoaupe called by the President, a Vice-
President or the Secretary of the Corporation.déodf such meeting and of any annual meeting attwholders of Preferred Stock are
entitled to vote pursuant to this Paragraph

(C)(iii) shall be given to each holder of recordRyeferred Stock by mailing a copy of such nota@aim or her at his or her last address as the
same appears on the books of the Corporation. ®eehing shall be called for a time not earlier tB@rdays and not later than 60 days after
such order or request or in default of the calbfiguch meeting within 60 days after such orderequest, such meeting may be called on
similar notice by any shareholder or shareholdensiing in the aggregate not less than ten percé@8)bf the total number of shares of
Preferred Stock outstanding. Notwithstanding theevisions of this Paragraph (C)(iii), no such spkgiaeting shall be called during the pei
within 60 days immediately preceding the date fif@dthe next annual meeting of the shareholders.

(iv) In any default period, the holders of Commdncg, and other classes of stock of the Corporafiapplicable, shall continue to be

entitled to elect the whole number of directordluhe holders of Preferred Stock shall have exatitheir right to elect two (2) directors
voting as a class, after the exercise of whichtrighthe directors so elected by the holders efétred Stock shall continue in office until
their successors shall have been elected by sudbrear until the expiration of the default periadd (y) any vacancy in the Board of
Directors may (except as provided in Paragraphij@¥(this Section 3) be filled by vote of a majgrof the remaining directors theretofore
elected by the holders of the class of stock whkieleted the Director whose office shall have becwatant. References in this Paragraph (C)
to directors elected by the holders of particulass of stock shall include directors elected hatirectors to fill vacancies as provided in
clause (y) of the foregoing sentence.

(v) Immediately upon the expiration of a defaultipd, (x) the right of the holders of Preferred &t@s a class to elect directors shall cease,
(y) the term of any
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directors elected by the holders of Preferred Stxck class shall terminate, and (z) the numbéire€tors shall be such number as may be
provided for in the Certificate of IncorporationBy-laws irrespective of any increase made purstatite provisions of Paragraph (C)(ii) of
this Section 3 (such number being subject, howdwerhange thereafter in any manner provided bydaim the Certificate of Incorporation
or By-Laws). Any vacancies in the Board of Diresteffected by the provisions of clauses (y) andnzhe preceding sentence may be filled
by a majority of the remaining directors.

(D) Except as set forth herein, holders of SeriekiAior Participating Preferred Stock shall havespecial voting rights and their consent
shall not be required (except to the extent theyeatitled to vote with holders of Common Stoclseisforth herein) for taking any corporate
action.

(4) Certain Restrictions.

(A) Whenever quarterly dividends or other divideodslistributions payable on the Series A Juniati€ipating Preferred Stock as provided
in Section 2 of this Section (c) are in arrearsréfter and until all accrued and unpaid dividesnt$ distributions, whether or not declarec
shares of Series A Junior Participating PrefertediSoutstanding shall have been paid in full, @weporation shall not

(i) declare or pay dividends on, make any othetrilistions on, or redeem or purchase or otherwisgiiae for consideration any shares of
stock ranking junior (either as to dividends or mifiquidation, dissolution or winding up) to theri®s A Junior Participating Preferred Stock;

(i) declare or pay dividends on or make any ottistributions on any shares of stock ranking oty (either as to dividends or upon
liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with the1&es A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, exadipidends paid ratably on the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock and all suatity stock on which dividends are payable or iears in proportion to the total amounts to
which the holders of all such shares are thenledtit

(iii) redeem or purchase or otherwise acquire forsideration shares of any stock ranking on ayéeither as to dividends or upon
liquidation, dissolution or winding up) with ther&es A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, preddhat the Corporation may at any time
redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares dflathyparity stock in exchange for shares of angksof the Corporation ranking junior
(either as to dividends or upon dissolution, ligiidn or winding up) to the Series A Junior Papié@ting Preferred Stock; or

(iv) purchase or otherwise acquire for consideratiny shares of Series A Junior Participating PrefeStock, or any shares of stock ranking
on a parity with the Series A Junior Participatifrgferred Stock, except in accordance with a psecloffer made in
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writing or by publication (as determined by the Bbaf Directors) to all holders of such shares upoach terms as the Board of Directors,
after consideration of the respective annual divitlmtes and other relative rights and preferentése respective series and classes, shall
determine in good faith will result in fair and égible treatment among the respective series ssela

(B) The Corporation shall not permit any subsidiafyhe Corporation to purchase or otherwise aegiair consideration any shares of stock
of the Corporation unless the Corporation couldiasrParagraph (A) of this Section 3, purchase lngratise acquire such shares at such time
and in such manner.

(5) Reacquired Shares. Any shares of Series A d®adicipating Preferred Stock purchased or otisenacquired by the Corporation in any
manner whatsoever shall be retired and cancelleaptty after the acquisition thereof. All such gksshall upon their cancellation become
authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stodkreay be reissued as part of a new series ofiredf&tock to be created by resolution or
resolutions of the Board of Directors, subjecttte tonditions and restrictions on issuance seh fogtein.

(6) Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up.

(A) Upon any liquidation (voluntary or otherwiséjssolution or winding up of the Corporation, netdbution shall be made to the holder:
shares of stock ranking junior (either as to dimikeor upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up)the Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock unless, prior thereto, the holdéshares of Series A Junior Participating Prete8eock shall have received an amount equal
to 1,000 times the Exercise Price, plus an amogunaleto accrued and unpaid dividends and distidmstithereon, whether or not declared, to
the date of such payment (the "Series A LiquidaRoeference"). Following the payment of the fullamt of the Series A Liquidation
Preference, no additional distributions shall belen® the holders of shares of Series A Junioiidiaating Preferred Stock unless, prior
thereto, the holders of Common Stock shall haveived an amount per share (the "Common Adjustmexjiipl to the quotient obtained by
dividing

(i) the Series A Liquidation Preference by (ii) @00(as appropriately adjusted as set forth in stagwaph (C) below to reflect such events as
stock splits, stock dividends and recapitalizatiamith respect to the Common Stock) (such numbetanse (i), the "Adjustment Number").
Following the payment of the full amount of the i8srA Liquidation Preference and the Common Adj&sttin respect of all outstanding
shares of Series A Junior Participating PrefertediSand Common Stock, respectively, holders ofeSek Junior Participating Preferred
Stock and holders of Common Stock shall receive theable and proportionate share of the remaiasgets to be distributed in the ratio of
the Adjustment Number to 1 with respect to suchidPred Stock and Common Stock, on a per share,basigectively.

(B) In the event, however, that there are not sigffit assets available to permit payment in fuhef Series A Liquidation Preference and the
liquidation preferences of all other series of predd stock, if any, which rank on a parity witle tBeries A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, then such remaining assets shall be diséabiatably to the holders of such parity
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shares in proportion to their respective liquidatiweferences. In the event, however, that thexear sufficient assets available to permit
payment in full of the Common Adjustment, then sumimaining assets shall be distributed ratabljéoholders of Common Stock.

(C) In the event the Corporation shall at any tafter the Rights Declaration Date (i) declare aivydénd on Common Stock payable in
Common Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding ComrBtwock, or (iii) combine the outstanding CommoncBtimto a smaller number of
shares, then in each such case the Adjustment Numb#ect immediately prior to such event shalddjusted by multiplying such
Adjustment Number by a fraction the numerator ofolthis the number of Common Stock outstanding imiatety after such event and the
denominator of which is the number of Common Stibekt were outstanding immediately prior to suchnéve

(7) Consolidation, Merger, etc. In case the Corfioneshall enter into any consolidation, mergembaation or other transaction in which
Common Stock are exchanged for or changed inta atbek or securities, cash and/or any other ptgp#ren in any such case the shares of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock shtalhe same time be similarly exchanged or chailgad amount per share (subject to the
provision for adjustment hereinafter set forth) &dgo 1,000 times the aggregate amount of stodurgges, cash and/or any other property
(payable in kind), as the case may be, into whictleiowhich each share of Common Stock is changezkchanged. In the event the
Corporation shall at any time after the Rights Reation Date (i) declare any dividend on Commorcisfmayable in shares of Common
Stock, (ii) subdivide the outstanding Common Staxk(iii) combine the outstanding Common Stock iatemaller number of shares, then in
each such case the amount set forth in the pregseimtence with respect to the exchange or chargjeoes of Series A Junior Participating
Preferred Stock shall be adjusted by multiplyingtrsamount by a fraction the numerator of whicthis tumber of shares of Common Stock
outstanding immediately after such event and tm®aénator of which is the number of shares of Comr8tock that were outstanding
immediately prior to such event.

(8) No Redemption. The shares of Series A Junididfzating Preferred Stock shall not be redeemable

(9) Ranking. The Series A Junior Preferred Sto@tlshnk junior to all other series of the Corparats Preferred Stock as to the payment of
dividends and the distribution of assets, unlesgéhms of any such series shall provide otherwise.

(10) Amendment. The Certificate of Incorporatios,gmended, of the Corporation shall not be furdmeended in any manner which would
materially alter or change the powers, preferencepecial rights of the Series A Junior PartidippPreferred Stock so as to affect them
adversely without the affirmative vote of the haklef a majority or more of the outstanding shafeSeries A Junior Participating Preferred
Stock, voting separately as a class.

(11) Fractional Shares. Series A Junior PartiaijgpRreferred Stock may be issued in fractionssifare which shall entitle the holder, in
proportion to such holders fractional shares,
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to exercise voting rights, receive dividends, pé#ptite in distributions and to have the benefilbbther rights of holders of Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock."

5. The manner in which the foregoing amendmenhefCertificate of Incorporation was authorized fsllows: The Board of Directors of tt
Corporation authorized the amendment under thepatittvested in said Board under the provisionghefCertificate of Incorporation and of
Section 502 of the Business Corporation Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have subscribed this documerthe date set opposite each of our names kaholeo hereby affirm, under
the penalties of perjury, that the statements @oatbtherein have been examined by us and aratrdeorrect.

Date: February 24, 1998

Name: Richard Marks
Title: President

Name: Peter Bromberg
Title: Chief Financial Officer
and Assistant Secretary
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Exhibit B
[Form of Rights Certificate]
Certificate No. R- Rights

NOT EXERCISABLE AFTER MARCH 12, 2008 OR EARLIER REDEEMED BY THE COMPANY. THE RIGHTS ARE SUBJECT T
REDEMPTION, AT THE OPTION OF THE COMPANY, AT $0.0ER RIGHT ON THE TERMS SET FORTH IN THE RIGHTS
AGREEMENT. UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, RIGHTS BENECIALLY OWNED BY AN ACQUIRING PERSON (AS SUCH
TERM IS DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENT) AND ANY SBSEQUENT HOLDER OF SUCH RIGHTS MAY BECOME NULL
AND VOID. [THE RIGHTS REPRESENTED BY THIS RIGHTS GHIFICATE ARE OR WERE BENEFICIALLY OWNED BY A
PERSON WHO WAS OR BECAME AN ACQUIRING PERSON OR A¥FILIATE OR ASSOCIATE OF AN ACQUIRING PERSON
(AS SUCH TERMS ARE DEFINED IN THE RIGHTS AGREEMENTACCORDINGLY, THIS RIGHTS CERTIFICATE AND THE
RIGHTS REPRESENTED HEREBY MAY BECOME NULL AND VOIIN THE CIRCUMSTANCES SPECIFIED IN

SECTION 7(e) OF SUCH AGREEMENT.]1

Rights Certificate
MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC.

This certifies that , gistered assigns, is the registered owner of tineben of Rights set forth above, each of
which entitles the owner thereof, subject to thentg provisions and conditions of the Rights Agreamdated as of February 24, 1998 (the
"Rights Agreement"), between Motorcar Parts & Asteies, Inc., a New York corporation (the "Companghd Continental Stock Transfer
& Trust Company , a New York corporation (the "RiglAgent"), to purchase from the Company at ang torior to 5:00 P.M. (New York
City time) on March 12 , 2008 at the office or offs of the Rights Agent designated for such purpmsiés successors as Rights Agent, one
one-thousandth of a fully paid, n@ssessable share of Series A Junior Participatefgifed Stock (the "Preferred Stock") of the Comypa
a purchase price of $65.00 per one one-thousaridilsioare (the "Purchase Price"), upon presentatidrsurrender of this Rights Certificate
with the Form of Election to Purchase and relatedificate duly executed. The number of Rights ewnickd by this Rights Certificate (and
number of shares which may be purchased upon eeetteéreof) set forth above, and the Purchase peicehare set forth above, are the
number and Purchase Price as of March 12, 1998&imasthe Preferred Stock as constituted at suah dae Company reserves the right to
require prior to the occurrence of a Triggering

1 The portion of the legend in brackets shall lseiited only if applicable and shall replace theg@ding sentence.
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Event (as such term is defined in the Rights Ageatinthat a number of Rights be exercised so thigtwhole shares of Preferred Stock will
be issued.

Upon the occurrence of a Section 11(a)(ii) Eventdiach term is defined in the Rights AgreementhefRights evidenced by this Rights
Certificate are beneficially owned by (i) an Acdog Person or an Affiliate or Associate of any séaguiring Person (as such terms are
defined in the Rights Agreement), (ii) a transfeséany such Acquiring Person, Associate or Afféizor (iii) under certain circumstances
specified in the Rights Agreement, a transfere@ pérson who, after such transfer, became an Aonguierson, or an Affiliate or Associate
of an Acquiring Person, such Rights shall beconmeamd void and no holder hereof shall have anitrigith respect to such Rights from and
after the occurrence of such Section 11(a)(ii) Even

As provided in the Rights Agreement, the PurchagseRind the number and kind of shares of PrefeBtedk or other securities, which may
be purchased upon the exercise of the Rights esteby this Rights Certificate are subject to miodifon and adjustment upon the
happening of certain events, including Triggeringks.

This Rights Certificate is subject to all of thents, provisions and conditions of the Rights Agreatmwhich terms, provisions and conditi
are hereby incorporated herein by reference ancragzirt hereof and to which Rights Agreement egiiee is hereby made for a full
description of the rights, limitations of rightdlimations, duties and immunities hereunder ofRights Agent, the Company and the holders
of the Rights Certificates, which limitations ofjhits include the temporary suspension of the esaldity of such Rights under the specific
circumstances set forth in the Rights Agreemenpi€of the Rights Agreement are on file at thevabmentioned office of the Rights Agent
and are also available upon written request tdriilghts Agent.

This Rights Certificate, with or without other RigfCertificates, upon surrender at the principétefor offices of the Rights Agent
designated for such purpose, may be exchangedébher Rights Certificate or Rights Certificatediké tenor and date evidencing Rights
entitling the holder to purchase a like aggregatalver of one one-thousandths of a share of Pref&teck as the Rights evidenced by the
Rights Certificate or Rights Certificates surrerdkeshall have entitled such holder to purchaghidfRights Certificate shall be exercised in
part, the holder shall be entitled to receive upamender hereof another Rights Certificate or Rigertificates for the number of whole
Rights not exercised.

Subject to the provisions of the Rights Agreemtirg,Rights evidenced by this Certificate may beesded by the Company at its option at a
redemption price of $0.001 per Right at any timero the earlier of the close of business onh@ tenth day following the Stock Acquisiti
Date (as such time period may be extended pursodhné Rights Agreement), and (ii) the Final Expaa Date. In addition, the Rights may
be exchanged, in whole or in part, for shares oh@on Stock, or shares of preferred stock of the @omw having essentially the same value
or economic rights as such shares. Immediately tip@action of the Board of Directors of the
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Company authorizing any such exchange, and withoytfurther action or any notice, the Rights (otiran Rights which are not subject to
such exchange) will terminate and the Rights willyanable holders to receive the shares issugdda such exchange. No fractional shares
of Preferred Stock will be issued upon the exerofseny Right or Rights evidenced hereby (othentiractions which are integral multiples
of one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stakaich may, at the election of the Company, belevced by depositary receipts), but in
lieu thereof a cash payment will be made, as pexaVid the Rights Agreement.

No holder of this Rights Certificate shall be datitto vote or receive dividends or be deemedrfigrurpose the holder of shares of Prefe
Stock or of any other securities of the Companyciwimay at any time be issuable on the exerciseofierer shall anything contained in the
Rights Agreement or herein be construed to corgenuhe holder hereof, as such, any of the rightésstockholder of the Company or any
right to vote for the election of directors or upanmy matter submitted to shareholders at any ngeéigreof, or to give or withhold consent to
any corporate action, or, to receive notice of ingstor other actions affecting shareholders (eixasprovided in the Rights Agreement), or
to receive dividends or subscription rights, oresttise, until the Right or Rights evidenced by tfRights Certificate shall have been exerc
as provided in the Rights Agreement.

This Rights Certificate shall not be valid or olligry for any purpose until it shall have been ¢etsigned by the Rights Agent.

WITNESS the facsimile signature of the proper @fficof the Company and its corporate seal.

Dated:
ATTEST: MOTOR CAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC.
By
Assistant Secretary Title:

Countersigned:

CONTINENTAL STOCK TRANSFER
& TRUST COMPANY

By

Authorized Officer

[Form of Reverse Side of Rights Certificate]



FORM OF ASSIGNMENT
(To be executed by the registered holder if sudtdralesires to transfer the Rights Certificate.)
FOR VALUE RECEIVED
hereby sells, assigns and transfer unto
(Please print name and address of transferee)

this Rights Certificate, together with all righitld and interest therein, and does hereby irreblyczonstitute and appoint

Attorney, to transfer the within Rights Certificaia the books of the within-named Company, with fiolwer of substitution.

Dated: ,19

Signature

Signature Guaranteed:



Certificate
The undersigned hereby certifies by checking th@piate boxes that:

(1) this Rights Certificate [] is [ ] is not beisgld, assigned and transferred by or on behafférson who is or was an Acquiring Person or
an Affiliate or Associate of any such Acquiring B&m (as such terms are defined pursuant to thefRhgireement);

(2) after due inquiry and to the best knowledgéhefundersigned, it [ ] did [ ] did not acquire fRights evidenced by this Rights Certificate
from any Person who is, was or subsequently be@armfecquiring Person or an Affiliate or Associateanf Acquiring Person.

Dated: ,19 Signature

Signature Guaranteed:
NOTICE

The signature to the foregoing Assignment and @zate must correspond to the name as written tiperiace of this Rights Certificate in
every particular, without alteration or enlargemenany change whatsoever.
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FORM OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE
(To be executed if holder desires to exercise Rigipresented by the Rights Certificate.)
To: MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC.:

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to egerci Rights represented by this RightsfiCate to purchase the shares of
Preferred Stock issuable upon the exercise of thbt&R(or such other securities of the Companyf@ny other person which may be issuable
upon the exercise of the Rights) and requestscréficates for such shares be issued in the refraad delivered to:

Please insert social security
or other identifying number

(Please print name and address)

If such number of Rights shall not be all the Rigiatidenced by this Rights Certificate, a new Rigbertificate for the balance of such Ric
shall be registered in the name of and delivered to

Please insert social security
or other identifying number

(Please print name and address)

Dated: ,19 Signature

Signature Guaranteed:



Certificate
The undersigned hereby certifies by checking th@piate boxes that:

(1) the Rights evidenced by this Rights Certifidat@re [ ] are not being exercised by or on bebhh Person who is or was an Acquiring
Person or an Affiliate or Associate of any such éidgg Person (as such terms are defined pursoahetRights Agreement);

(2) after due inquiry and to the best knowledgéhefundersigned, it [ ] did [ ] did not acquire fRghts evidenced by this Rights Certificate
from any Person who is, was or became an AcquRieigon or an Affiliate or Associate of an Acquiringrson.

Dated: ,19 Signature

Signature Guaranteed:
NOTICE

The signature to the foregoing Election to PurclaaskCertificate must correspond to the name asawripon the face of this Rights
Certificate in every particular, without alterationenlargement or any change whatsoever.
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Exhibit C

DETAILED SUMMARY OF RIGHTS TO PURCHASE
SERIES A JUNIOR PARTICIPATING PREFERRED STOCK

On February 24, 1998, the Board of Directors of ddcar Parts & Accessories, Inc. (the "Company")pteld a Shareholder Rights Plan,
providing that one Right shall be attached to esd@re of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per shiaee’'Gommon Stock"), of the Company.
Each Right entitles the registered holder to pusetfeom the Company a unit (a "Unit") consistingpoé one-thousandth of a share of Series
A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par val0ed% per share (the "Preferred Stock"), at a pwelpaice (the "Purchase Price") of $65.00
per one one-thousandth of a share of Preferrek $aottJnit"), subject to adjustment. The descriptand terms of the Rights are set forth in
the Rights Agreement (the "Rights Agreement"), date of February 24, 1998, between the CompanyCamtinental Stock Transfer & Trust
Company, a New York corporation, as Rights Agem (fRights Agent").

Initially, the Rights will be attached to all Comm&tock certificates representing shares thenandstg, and no separate Rights Certificate
will be distributed. The Rights will separate frehe Common Stock upon the earlier of (i) 10 dayie¥dng a public announcement that a
person or group of affiliated or associated pergans'/Acquiring Person") has acquired, or has olgiithe right to acquire, beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of the outstanding shaféommon Stock (the "Stock Acquisition Date") oy ten business days following the
commencement of a tender offer or exchange oftgntiould result in a person or group beneficialynang 20% or more of such outstand
shares of Common Stock (the earlier of (i) and {fii¢ "Distribution Date"). The definition of Acqing Person, subject to certain limitations
set forth in the Rights Agreement, excludes Mel kdaRichard Marks and their Affiliates or Assocaténtil the Distribution Date, (i) the
Rights will be evidenced by the Common Stock cegtes and will be transferred with and only witltls Common Stock certificates, (ii)
new Common Stock certificates will contain a natatincorporating the Rights Agreement by referesnug

(iii) the surrender for transfer of any certificaier Common Stock outstanding will also constitihie transfer of the Rights associated with
the Common Stock represented by such certificate.

The Rights are not exercisable until the DistributDate and will expire at the close of busines$anch 12, 2008 unless earlier redeeme
the Company as described below. At no time willRights have any voting power.

As soon as practicable after the Distribution DRights Certificates will be mailed to holders etord of the Common Stock as of the close
of business on the Distribution Date and, thereatite separate Rights Certificates alone will espnt the Rights. Except as otherwise
determined by the Board of Directors, only shafeS@mmon Stock issued prior to the Distribution ®uaiill be issued with Rights.
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In the event that an Acquiring Person becomes éneficial owner of 20% or more of the then outstagaghares of Common Stock (unless
such acquisition is made pursuant to a tender cnange offer for all outstanding shares of the Camypat a price determined by a majority
of the independent directors of the Company whaateepresentatives, nominees, Affiliates or Agstes of an Acquiring Person to be fair
and otherwise in the best interest of the Compayits shareholders after receiving advice from @nmore investment banking firms (a
"Qualifying Offer")), each holder of a Right wilhéreafter have the right to receive, upon exersisares of Common Stock (or, in certain
circumstances, cash, property or other securifitseoCompany), having a value equal to two tininesExercise Price of the Right. The
Exercise Price is the Purchase Price times the euoftshares of Common Stock associated with eagit Rnitially, one). Notwithstanding
any of the foregoing, following the occurrence ny @f the events set forth in this paragraph (fl-~in Events"), all Rights that are, or
(under certain circumstances specified in the Ridigreement) were, beneficially owned by any AdggitPerson will be null and void.
However, Rights are not exercisable following tieeworence of any of the Flip-in Events set fortabuntil such time as the Rights are no
longer redeemable by the Company as set forth below

In the event that following the Stock Acquisitiomt®, (i) the Company engages in a merger or busicm@abination transaction in which the
Company is not the surviving corporation (othenthamerger consummated pursuant to a Qualifyingrftii) the Company engages in a
merger or business combination transaction in wtiiehCompany is the surviving corporation and tben@ion Stock of the Company is
changed or exchanged; or

(iii) more than 50% of the Company's assets oriegmpower is sold or transferred, each holder Right (except Rights which have
previously been voided as set forth above) shalig#fter have the right to receive, upon exerdisbeoRight, common stock of the acquiring
company having a value equal to two times the Eserrice of the Right.

The Purchase Price payable, and the number of bhitseferred Stock or other securities or propessyable upon exercise of the Rights are
subject to adjustment from time to time to prewdihttion (i) in the event of a stock dividend om,asubdivision, combination or
reclassification of, the Preferred Stock, (ii) dltlers of the Preferred Stock are granted certgris or warrants to subscribe for Preferred
Stock or convertible securities at less than threectt market price of the Preferred Stock, or (ifppon the distribution to holders of the
Preferred Stock of evidences of indebtedness etaésxcluding regular quarterly cash dividends)faubscription rights or warrants (other
than those referred to above).

With certain exceptions, no adjustments in the Rase Price will be required until cumulative adjushts amount to at least 1% of the
Purchase Price. No fractional Units will be issaed, in lieu thereof, an adjustment in cash wilhiede based on the market price of the
Preferred Stock on the last trading date priohtodate of exercise.

At any time until ten days following the Stock Adsjtion Date, the Company may redeem the Rightgtinle, but not in part, at a price of
$0.001 per Right. Immediately upon the
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action of the Board of Directors ordering redempiid the Rights, the Rights will terminate and ¢tmdy right of the holders of Rights will be
to receive the $0.001 redemption price.

Until a Right is exercised, the holder thereofsash, will have no rights as a shareholder of the@any, including, without limitation, the
right to vote or to receive dividends. While thetdbution of the Rights will not be taxable to s#fzolders or to the Company, shareholders
may, depending upon the circumstances, recogmablaincome in the event that the Rights beconeeotsable for shares of Common St
(or other consideration) of the Company as sehfabiove or in the event that the Rights are reddeme

Other than those provisions relating to the priatgzonomic terms of the Rights, any of the prawisiof the Rights Agreement may be
amended by the Board of Directors of the Compaioy po the Distribution Date. After the Distributiddate, the provisions of the Rights
Agreement may be amended by the Board in ordeur® any ambiguity, to make changes which do noees#ly affect the interests of
holders of Rights (excluding the interest of anygficing Person), or to shorten or lengthen any timeod under the Rights Agreement;
provided, however, that no amendment to adjustithe period governing redemption shall be madeselh $ime as the Rights are not
redeemable.

A copy of the Rights Agreement is being filed witte Securities and Exchange Commission as an ExbibiRegistration Statement on
Form 8-A. A copy of the Rights Agreement is avdiatee of charge from the Company. This Summargdiiption of the Rights does not
purport to be complete and is qualified in its extyi by reference to the Rights Agreement, whidhdsrporated herein by reference.
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THIRD AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "Amedment") is entered into as of February 10, 199&rix between
MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, INC., a New York coration ("Borrower"), and WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONA
ASSOCIATION ("Bank").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Borrower is currently indebted to Bankguant to the terms and conditions of that certaedi Agreement between Borrower
and Bank dated as of June 1, 1996, as amendedifranto time ("Credit Agreement").

WHEREAS, Bank and Borrower have agreed to cerfaimges in the terms and conditions set forth irCireslit Agreement and have agreed
to amend the Credit Agreement to reflect said chang

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theefpcand sufficiency of which are hereby acknowksdighe parties hereto agree 1
the Credit Agreement shall be amended as follows:

1. Section 1.2(d) is hereby deleted in its entjratyd the following substituted therefor:

"(d) UNUSED COMMITMENT FEE. Borrower shall pay tcaBk a fee equal to one-fifth of one percent (0.2p&)annum (computed on the
basis of a 360-day year, actual days elapsed)emavbrage daily unused amount of the Line of Creditch fee shall be calculated on an
annual basis by Bank and shall be due and paysi®iyower in arrears within five (5) days aftechkailling is sent by Bank."

2. Except as specifically provided herein, all teramd conditions of the Credit Agreement remaifulinforce and effect, without waiver or
modification. All terms defined in the Credit Agraent shall have the same meaning when used il\thendment. This Amendment and the
Credit Agreement shall be read together, as onerdent.

3. Buyer hereby remakes all representations anchwées contained in the Credit Agreement and imsadfall covenants set forth therein.
Borrower further certifies that as of the dateto$ tAmendment there exists no Event of Defaultefshdd in the Credit Agreement, nor any
condition, act or event which with the giving oftice or the passage of time or both would congtituty such Event of Defau



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAmendment to be executed as of the day andfiystwritten above.

MOTORCAR PARTS & WELLS FARGO BANK,
ACCESSORI ES, | NC. NATI ONAL ASSCCI ATI ON

By: /S/ PETER BROVBERG By: /S/ JOHN P. MANNI NG

Title: CFO John P. Manni ng

Vi ce President

By: /S/ RI CHARD MARKS

Title: PRES|I DENT



Name

MVR Products Pte Limited

Unijoh Sdn, Bhd

SUBSIDIARIES

Juri

sdiction of Organization

Singapore

Malaysia



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢ee Registration Statement pertaining to th@4istock option plan of Motorcar Parts
Accessories, Inc. on Form S-8 of our report datexy 9, 1998 which is included in the annual reparForm 10-K for the year ended March
31, 1998.

/sl Richard A Eisner & Conpany, LLP

Ri chard A Eisner & Company, LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k
June 25, 1998



ARTICLE 5
CIK: 0000918251

NAME: MOTORCAR PARTS & ACCESSORIES, IN'

PERIOD TYPE YEAR
FISCAL YEAR END MAR 31 199¢
PERIOD END MAR 31 199¢
CASH 3,108,001
SECURITIES 0
RECEIVABLES 29,841,00
ALLOWANCES 250,00t
INVENTORY 54,736,00
CURRENT ASSET¢ 89,297,00
PP&E 10,588,00
DEPRECIATION 3,447,001
TOTAL ASSETS 98,245,00
CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,964,00
BONDS 0
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0
PREFERREL 0
COMMON 64,00(
OTHER SE 68,063,00
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 98,245,00
SALES 112,952,00
TOTAL REVENUES 112,952,00
CGS 91,317,00
TOTAL COSTS 100,581,00
OTHER EXPENSE¢ 0
LOSS PROVISION 0
INTEREST EXPENSE 1,577,00i
INCOME PRETAX 10,794,00
INCOME TAX 4,192,001
INCOME CONTINUING 6,602,001
DISCONTINUED 0
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 6,602,00!
EPS PRIMARY 1.2C
EPS DILUTED 1.1¢€
End of Filing
Pewerad By lilHiM_tm -
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